STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, JANUARY 20, 2015 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for January 20, 2015

CONSENT AGENDA
(All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member of
the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and
acted upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak. )

4. For possible action approval of December 2014 Treasurer Report
5. For possible action approval of Justice Court Quarterly Report

6. For possible action approval of First Reading of William Hill Race & Sports Book,
Business/Gaming License application

7. For possible action approval of First Reading of Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse,
Business/Gaming License application

8. For possible action approval of Business License First Readings -
a. AHERN RENTALS, INC. - General / 1777 Peru Drive (equipment rental) TRI
1




o

NORTECH, GEOTECHNICAL/CIVIL CONSULTANTS, LTD., -- 300 Western Rd #3 ~ Reno
(eng)

DAN’S WELDING & MACHINE, LLC - 1320 East Glendale ~ Sparks (welding contractor)
IONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI

RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC
HIGHLAND FLOORS, INC. - 4050 S, McCarran ~ Reno (flooring contractor)

LIGHTNING PROTECTION SYSTEMS, LLC - 90 Cutler Dr. ~ N. Salt Lake City, UT
(lightning prot.)

CUSTOM LAWN & LANDSCAPE MAINT. INC., -- 5125 Tenaya Creek Ln ~ Reno
(landscaper)

CLAYTON COATINGS, INC. - 8742 East Via de Commercio ~ Scottsdale, AZ (contractor)
DULGAR CONSTRUCTION, LLC - 6301 Bonita Ct ~ Sparks (carpentry contractor)

 m oo

[

—ie

END OF CONSENT AGENDA

9. DISCUSSION ONLY {No Action ~ No Public Comment); Committee/Staff Reports

10. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Quarterly financial updates for fiscal
year 2014/2015

11. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

12, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration of appointment of Dr. James C McLennan
to serve as County Health Officer per NRS 439.310

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTTION:  Approval of the Continuation of Residential
Construction Tax for Storey County Schools.

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: National Radon Action Month Proclamation

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Presentation and request for adoption of the Storey
County Hazard Mitigation Plan.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action approval of Payroll Checks date
01/02/2015 for $427,484.18. Accounts payable checks date 01/09/2015 for $315,685.05 and
$6,637.62.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Auditors Recommendations pertaining to
Storey County Audit Report for the period ended June 30, 2014.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT AND PLANNING

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: In accordance with Condition No. 2.2 of Special Use Permit
No. 2000-222-A-5 (SUP) held by Comstock Mining, LLC, the SUP holder (Comstock Mining)
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners a major modification to its mine operating plan
so that the Board may validate that the modification conforms to the conditions of the existing
SUP. The major modification will allow Comstock Mining’s ore haul trucks to cross over a
portion of State Route 342 between the Lucerne Pit and the ‘east resource area’, an area

2




immediately east of the Lucerne Pit, in southern Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada. The subject

area and plans are included in Enclosures A-C.

19. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION, LICENSING BOARD SECOND READINGS:

a. ROSENDIN ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 880 Mabury Road ~ San Jose, CA (electrical
contractor)

b. PANDA RESTAURANT GROUP - General / 745 Sparks Blvd ~ Sparks (caterer)

c. PEED EQUIPMENT CO - Contractor / 1480 Nandina Avenue ~ Perris, CA (heavy equipment)

d. SCHUFF STEEL COMPANY - Contractor / 1841 West Buchanan ~ Phoenix, AZ (steel erector)

e. QUALITY CONTROL SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 61 Continental Drive ~ Reno (hvac
contractor)

f. SURFACE PREP & MAINTENANCE -~ Contractor / 240 Linden Street ~ Reno (asphalt
contractor)

STERLING CRANE, LLC ~ Contractor / 2211 5% Street ~ Elko (heavy lift services)
ANNING-JOHNSON CO - Contractor / 13250 Temple Avenue ~ City of Industry, CA (metal
deck install}

SUNVELOPE SOLAR, INC. - Contractor / 96 Glen Carran Cir ~ Sparks (solar contractor)
SAFWAY SERVICES, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 1991 ~ Milwaukee, W1 {scaffolding equip)

- ANSBERRY SIGNCRAFT - General / 10865 Osage Road ~ Reno (signage manufacturer)
HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES - General / 236 East Sydney (welding equip supply) TRI

9

et

20. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

21. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE;

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440,

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of agriculture policy, this institution is
prohibited from discriminating on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex, religion, age, disability
(Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.) To file a complaint of discrimination write to USDA,
Director, Office of civil rights, 1400 Independence avenue, S.W., Washington, D.C. 20250-9410 or call
(800) 795-3272 (voice) or 202-6382 (TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and

3




lender. The TTY, VCO voice carry over) or HCO hearing carry over) number is 800-326-6868; voice
only 800-326-6868. Check the customer Guide section of your telephone book under Services for
Individuals with a Hearing or Speech Disability.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING

I, Vanessa Stephens, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before January 13, 2015; Virginia
City Post Office, Storey County Courthouse, Virginia City Fire Department, Virginia City Highlands
Fire Department and Lockwood Fire Department.

By MM

Vanessa Stephens, ClerW-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 20, 2015 Estimate of time required: 5 min.

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [

1. Title: Approval of Treasurer Report for December 2014

2. Recommended motion: Approval of report as submitted

3. Prepared by: Vanessa Stephens
Department: Clerk & Treasurer Telephone: 847-0969

4. Staff summary: Report is attached,
5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Clerk & Treasurer

@d((?ﬁty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

——
N

Agenda Item No. 4




oo

Q0"
00"

€L T¥E
~6T" 905"
-T6°65¢€"
-2 8TL"
-L8 p6L’
T0°86G "

-b69€8

-1z 0LT’
96°E5L "

[elv

-60°959"
-LST6TT"
-99°5L5°

aa-

-0% FLE’
~g570Z6 "

-95°L9S

-P9° L5’

~00 0%S

-05°¥89 "
-0s z9g’

0o
~00° 099

-00° 000"
-L6ggg’
-6L 868"
-98°6¥% "’
-80'61E’
-gp-oce”’
EE E09”
-$8°528°
-06°9€€”’
SE P69’

Q0 0SsT

-TL° 980"

-00"¥T
=0T T0T
68730
00"ooT

oo oo0”
o0 oetT”

CE"BEY
0L ¥68

ol
04"

¥6-9.8"
L8 TE6’
oo-ooe’
-DE ¥ZE "

oo

00"

oo0”
|344 00"
¥ co-
OV oo-
9te 69’
€80T 00"
€6 00"
"TLT 00"
Tee'T oo’
14 [+hy

oo
LE 00"
(14 00"
143 o0

a0’
T2g 0Q”
1 00"
‘6% 00-
60t o0

oo
Tée'z 0o0-
:11k4 00"

a0

Qa°
0001 00°
L9Z'T 00°
SLEZ T el
€61t 1o
TEZ 00’
¢33 oo
ST oo-"
ozl e
voE 00
962 ag”

00-
TLE'T 00"

0o-
'Zos oo’
‘LBT'9 00"

[l
14 [H+hy
T 00"

00-

‘8LT g o0’
DS zoz”
zz sve’

65T*L Q0"
SET'E 00"

00"

00"
B¥L oo’
a oe’
066°'T [+hy
T 00’

00" o1 [elo 00"

[=lvhy 0o o0 L

[t ag- ae- el

00" Lelv iy el 00"

04a° 00" 00" 865068
00° L0 POL'IEY S5°580'S€L 61 LZE'ES
00 AR AA Z%'9Z6°SE L67066°8T
oo’ oo 00" op-

co- -¥8°0T 00 og*

[HvRg 00" 00" TS 10S°g38
00" Q0° Lele Dy [t1thy

oo’ 00 00" [1]10g

90 00" 00" o0

Q- 00" oo- co008'e
00" oo’ o’ 00"

oo o2 [ co”

00- ey oe-” 0o”

00" [+ co- 05" ¥2R°%
og- 05°8S¢E o0 EEERE
U 090" oo PY 6TIL L
00~ a0 Q0 9Z'BEDTDY
0o Q0" 00" 0o

o0 00" 00° 9T LS5'6bE
00° 20 ES9 [ 2-1 48] ESTFI0TE
a0 o0t 00" [Hvhe

oo- oe” oe- oo

oo’ (g 0o0° oe’

[+lely Z¥ IT9 % TG %€ ST 5STIRT OV
co- 0o Qa- 00"

00"’ ~00°TES 00" LY LYE'SED
00" EETTPE oo 20

Q- 00" oQ- co-

00° 00" [=3s Iy oo”

a0- 00 0o- 00-

00- e v oo-

oG’ -G6'£TT oo og-

oo’ co- oo’ ¢

00" 05°I00°0T E9°LER'SE 0% £F¥ 162
(U 00" Q0 00"

oo 00" Qo- £9°29% 9
oo L¥ BEZ'96T ZZ 09¢ ‘859 LL YERLLE
00" 0o- 00" oo

oo 00" oo- 00"

00" 0o [ 00"

00" oo- oc- oo-

00" v ce-’ 00"

oo’ 0" o0 oG-

oo -T€ 852 02T -£5°8v83°898 -9 ECVE'SEE’T
00" oo- 00" elelg

oc’ oo 00° 0g-

6o~ o0 00" 00’

00" Q- 00" 0o

Q0” 00° 0o oo’

09" oo’ [l o3¢0

HONTTTE

T

ONIONE IN0 SHEIASNYHL NI SUdASNYaL

afeq

SHIHONOA NIAOL STIOEAYE

¥I0Z/CT Hod
LIIHS ONTONYIYE ATHLNOW
ONILNOODDY §uHTINSYIUL
HTUNSVEEL ALNNOD AZHOLS

oo-

00"

00"

00"
SLOTLFLILT
~LSTZEYLEE
-8Z 196 '€¥
-20'596°21

00"
-99°F0C 0P

00"
~00"0SZ

oo’
-00°5%S
-8L°ZBT'9
~00'8LS

00"

-9E EST'6TT
-£3°625°'9
-0T"Z86'09
~6%"¥56°9TE
-00 0¥
-86°6T0’BST
-TETLEL'LE

0o*

00"

00"
-PSTETR'8L
-8%°¥50 2T

[
-FETESLI0T

[N

00"

00"

00"

00"

-00° 05
~LT 6PE'0S

00"

-TE EET' P
-%6 58T’ 596

0o

co*

00’

00"

00"

00"

08°CLL'9IE T

00"
oo
90" LEY
00"
goe-’
oo-

SINAKISUNASTIA SIATITE

0o’

00"

00"
-€T°T¥6°£22
06 ¥EE'Y
-10°980 "0LT
-T0° 209 LT3
~SR°6Z8'040°T
85°809'26
-6LTETOHET
-1T CLE TPF'T
96°£09°T

06’
-60°TTL &€
-68°9EZ‘9T
~99'L6E ' ¥E
00"

-PSTGPG SEE
-TLTZ¥TER
~68"PET’Q
-T9'Z45°'2E
-60-00s

-89 TOZ LAY E
-Z0°LBE QT
00"

-00- 039
-00°000'000°T
-06 BROEPZ T
-TE B¥R°E5Z'T
~EETGLTFEQ'T
~LETE0¥TIZ
-00°000700T
6E E09'ST
-5 526 '02L
-06°9€E ' ¥0T
527878 ‘562
00" 002
~LZ OED'809'T
-00"%T
-T¥ 0EE’T0S
-6E FBEPEL’D
00' 002
00°000°2

007 00T T
0E"GEY

0L ¥68‘BLT '8
0G" 20 '6ST 'L
TI‘ZE9'E0E'E
oo”

oo*
88'6LE'GVL
LB TEG"9
00°00Z 065 °¢
-06° %26 T

QUYMYC ~Tvd

BANNE TTY TYLOL

ONIGIOH SIXYL QIUNDFS 006
ONIGTOH SHXWL CHENDISNO 008
ary TEnLOW GLE

ADNIDUAWE JUIL 05T
IJTHESIA WIS 052
NOTSSIWWOD WSI¥NOL DA OET
LOELO¥d IV DA 0EZ

aNnd HaIE YL 5, JATEEHS 0TE
SINVHED TYEIqXL 90T

MIVEAYA INL CO0Z

aMnd J¥vd 06T

IAN TdL 68T

aNnd IN0CD dDILSAL L8T
INECIDDY INEOIANY S8T
I¥OCD IDTALSIA 08T

a¥YCH MOYIWEHDEY ¥ ¥IVA G4T
AIRLE 0LT

QNAd ADOTONHDHEL 59T

183a TOOHDS 09T

TOOHDS OST

LENOD BO¥d 0%

ODYYA §I7EM ANCH WASN SET
YAMAS HOIAIO WINIDATA OET
ALID VINIBMIA 40 NMOL 0ZT
TIIH AT709 40 NMOL 0TT
NOIIVZITIEVIS (0T

WALSAS HILUYM 060

QNOd FUALOGHLSYUANT 080
SIDELCYd TYLIAYD GL0
NOILISINGOV INAWATAOE 090
HDIA¥ES 050

ary TYNLOW &5

LITULSIC Z¥Id 0%0
ADNEDNENT FHId S0

4414 050

NOTLOLIISHN %20

SaYoY 0%¢

¥YL- FONYISISSY INADTONI S0
TYOIAAW INIDIANI 010
TYEANAS 100

YOSSESSY HSYD ALLEE 506
JATHEHS HSYD ZLLEd %06
HSYD ALLEd €06

SNIOD TI0 T06

INNODDY dIDT HIVIS 96T
LINHYW AZNOW ODYWS §TT3M T6T
INOODOY 2D OPWVYA $ITEM 66T
SATYS AL¥A40¥d ¥ 40 € 86T
SAVYOD WNWE SSANISOT L6T
MNYE NI 45D S6T

ONIQTIOH TEN0D IDTAISIA 96T
HSWD YOS OD¥YE STIEM €51
FONVENSNI HLTVEH 76T

NOLIATHOSHO 10%

TRISGEIST ST/RT/T0 :umy
00TZYL :oN 3z0dey




98STEIER'T $ EIDLL'S S UGESL § LB6LLST © STELZ'EE 5 - S OVESS'TZZ S ¢ETEET S BLZETD § Lk § SLTOLOL § GEZSL0Z $ 0179603 § 6e650'918 § TG99LZ0V & CVECHS6Z % V10L ANvHES
- 5 - $ - 5 - $ - § - §
- $ 381324
- $ - s - 5 - H - ] - $ 1510 %
M $ - 5 - 50 - 3 - $ 1510 Xd
I5HN
OF'SER'SSZ 5 £9°94YS ¢ - $ 186255 § B6°E s - $ GEEIVIE 5 BSEQE  § ELTRDT § [DZBI 5 ISA69FT § SEOWE & 805565 § BI900TE $ LLST968 5 09'90£E $  DJ3SNMTVLOL
JuawAediang
OE'SE3'®SE & £9'9Ll’s § L8'625°ST & BG'E S SEELVLE § BYGOE  $ ELTEOT § L0489 5 TIS/E9TT 5 SEOMYE § 9t'956’G $ BZO0S'TS § LLSTIGR § 0990€'FE s STOZ/HT02
- s - $ - $ - s - s - $ - s - s - $ - 5 - § - § - 5 - s - $  HOIMdwioL
- $ PIOZ/ETOT
- $ - 5 - 3 - s - s - 5 - s - s - s - $ - 3 - s - $ - H le3oigng
. $ EI0Z/TE0T
- s ZI0Z/TT0Z
- ) TrOE /o107
- S etoz/s00z
- $ 600Z/300Z
- $ 200Z/£00Z
HOSSISSY
95°060'REZT 5 - 3 SOEST § - $ 000057 % r7eoz4E 5 - $ TOOTY'BBT § €C2Z51 § SOTSTS § bLOVSE § bDOEA0GS & O6TIELT $ 2O'5Z0TTS $ OOESRYOT § VLOST'ESE 5 DEOILESC $ S1V10L 14043
- $ PRindag punyay
95'060'BET'T $ - S 96'€9T § - § O00ST  § (lTesTLT 3 - 5 TOSIPEEL § ETRST § SOTS'S § YZTOPSE § POENES § SETIEUL § 79SZ0'IS ¢ OUESE'VOr $ PLOST'ESE §  p8°OTT'EST § Q3UNJISTviOL
L6'966'REE'E § - $ - § CO008T § TOGKET TOSSORLT § SE9TV'T § TUBESY § EUSEVE § OTUEYSS § SLONOT & veo0o'Er ¢ £L90T6YT §  BL6569EF §  GOSLNTVT $  STferavioL
TERIS'E s 9IEIT 3 0T $ 829 § T8y $ 0691 5 29ee $ S5y § 8T6EE $ 55108 3 ssassy jeads
SPTEVLETT § 00°008'T $ ToeweT § STEOB'LLY § TISWEVL § IETERY 5 TLUGL'E § 9TOFKSS § SUWNEST § SYIMELY § SEISE'PT & B8L'GSE'0EE §  US'ELSTHE 3 STOZ/¥10T
£9676'96 5 - s - $ - $ o000z $ 9°0Z0'92 § GE'O9E'TT  § 85'se $ PEZIE  § TOISE S5 SUOWSE  § TZSWOT § SUBIOE § fzova'sT § 9506T'ST 5 SITP9'0Z $  HOWUd WILOL
98'¢8esT 5 - s - s - $ 0000 $ 9TrELT & - S 05066  § f¥9T § S $ PS9E & 9Ee $ SSFBL 5 06825 $ TTIWLT % 06VES'T S 00TBY'T $  vIoZ/EToz WioL
55955y {eadg
00002 5 9TTELT 3 05066t § Zt'9T S Vv $ VE9E % 9ETES S 88'bgr 3 DE'RZS $ TILT & 05WEET  $ OUESPL g vLOZ-ET0E
£L9r8'Eg 00'68T'VE & 63606 TZTEL $ OF8ST 5 MbIE ¢ TUISEEZ  § EED9E  § BLESYE ¢ 90'S06TT $ 909ET'IT § SLESTET $ le303gng
rav'st § wreTL'e  § LBE00T 4 o0z9t $ Yess § 089E % IB'SZ S vt $ L9°7ES $ 8L0SLT S OLORS % 55522 $  EToTETOZImoL
isIssy [RIDads
WweTL'T  § L8'E00T  $ 0T9T § 1&ss $ 089t S TsZo § Loer 5 L9TES S BEOSLT  § OU9RLS  § SSSLL $ ET0Z-TI0Z
ISVl ] orvis'e  § 8T've8'T $ 995L % 8res S LY 5 LTTI6S S O06ELT $ BTEOS $ 09'809°C S 9gERYS  § SSELZ 4 ZY0Z-ITOZ 1m0l
ssassy |eaads
ELatR1s s QYT & BUPEE'T 5 99°5T $ 8TES S LewE 5 fTtes S O6'ELT $ BTEDS § 09'809'T  § 9E6HKS  § SSETL % ZT0Z-110Z
THe89'LT S £9'19%'s & 608I6T 5§ 85T $ E87S R 41 S ¥L'86% 4 orast 5 E£9°605 $ S5IPT & vL'ovz'a % 110Z/0T0Z
TE0Zv'er S 99'960'9 & 06Z8LL 5 ELWT § 0Usr $ 186 $ §5'95% $ GLE9T § TLELY $ sessv'z 8 BE'SEL'S S 010Z/600Z
ToorE'sT H €Fpag’s § EOPSST S v8TT S 6LTP S T9Se § 60SBp S 89°THT § 0820r s rropt'c % aT656"Y 4 5007/3002
SY'ERR H 6TEBE S 96'E6 S 10 S 09 $ PEOT  $ €667 3 98 ERE 4 § GERTT $ L7008 S BOOTSLO0Z
pE'as9 H 1SRIE S ZO'85 5 o s 091 $ or9 S ovBr 5 ZES S TrST S Bg6L s 09°98T 5§ t00t/ovor
95099 % EE'9TE g 05'¢S 5 BLT $ vl 5 685 $ OoL'9f $ Y § 1TPE S L9EL 5 OUELT H 900Z/500%
00LLL S 6 E0T 9 PETI $ o0t $ TED $ vl 3 ESE S EOT $ o00E $ o0orst B SSE $ $00Z/¥00C
Wi0L % ¥y 1NSAD %9 ¥/ OYIBSKEL  SALTYNID  NwqABJ IME  WIWI/IH)4 HLMNOA 1V QNI Q3N ani AUves nov dv) gaHIS dO H)§ Qm 1SNan! THHINID YIUNSTINL
591 9059€-100  POIPE-TO0  (LOES-ZOL-TCO 00 00T 114 100 14 oto 173 090 09T 1144 005-T00 100

PTOE 18qwa3eg 40 HINQIW JHL 404 VA Y




666666 UbnOIUL T
sS309yD BuTtpurlsino
DNTILNAODDY S.HHMOSYHIL

¥I/6T/2T
¥1/50/2T
vi/s1/8

¥1/92/21
¥I/9¢/21
¥1/92/21
vI/92/2T
yr/9e/eT
¥PI/92/2T
¥L/92/2T
PI/92/2T
¥i/92/21
$T/92/2T
P1/92/2T
PT/92/21T
P1/92/2T
YI/92/21
vi/92/21
AVEIEA
¥T/92/21
vT/92/21
¥1/92/21
¥T/9¢/C1
¥T/92/2T
¥1L/92/271
PTI/92/¢1
¥1/92/21
PT/92/2T
vr/9z/21
$1/92/27T
pr/oe/eT
v1/92/e1
¥1/2T/2T
PI/ei/eT
¥I/ET/CT
$L/ET/CT
PL/ET/CT
PT/ZT/CT
PT/ET/2T
PT/CT/ET
TT/92/1T1
PL/92/TT
PL/98/1T
PI/92/TT
PT/PT/TT
YI/FT/TT
¥YI/PT/TIT
PI/TE/0T
¥1/TE/01T
PT/TE/0T
YL/LT/OT
¥T/E€0/0T
¥1/50/6

vi/se/L

832d Mo3yUp
¥T/12/21 - oomOO\o

LTZPH# DOSSY ¥UIIHOIA TdI4
L 2HYD 'SsEH
¥D/NOILIETIOD dHd4 ASIHHHS
YANOUCD 0D HACHSYM

JNI S¥N0L ALID YINIOD®IA
INEWAOTAARd TYENY VASO
¥NIA LNAWATNOH dHODNYdE Sn
D4 MOIOd0N ¥ NEHAELS
dIINED D0¥d ¥ do0d SHLIWS
W NEETHIVI ‘I ICHS

JYAMOd HSYHDUNA

BOYNYW MSTd DITdNd YAYAHAN
AHANSYIANL AN

JTTTOALENOD AEN

T ON 0D HENIDNH ALYFEdIT
SIMET dIAVd ‘¥MEdI0Od
NOSNHOf ¥ Qd¥MaE =odnp
HOIAYAS HANNAATE TYNNILNI
SNOISSHNANI HAILVAONNI
DNIDVWNIQHUDIW LAASHAT HOHIH
HOIET NILSAD ‘WHI¥ND

L ADNYN NYED

I1I HONH ’YIHOYITTYED
AINOOS SYIDHN0A

ANOL ‘NESOA

(DA) HIDINCHHD ADCLSHOD
HEId ALNOOD NOAT GVIINAD
dIHSYANILIVA COTIID

ONI gd0d TYLIAVD

ONI FdId SNOLANG

ONI M20QT ENIITY

IAVTIAVYG ‘HIZNEMOYNW ' NQSITIVY
DNI S¥00I ALID WINIDMNIA
A YNYL NOdJdS

d OTEDNY ‘INIY¥LHA

E NHHJAHLS ‘' LAVHANIW
MHYHEI INTTENID

a7l ¥dD HTIONI¥d ¥ dIAYCQ
TYNOISSHAONd % SSHNISNA
{ONHH) SNTd SHEHIYHELLYYI
ONI S¥O0L ALID YINIDMIA
d OTHDNY 'INTHELEJ

airl ¥do "TIONIEE ¥ AIAYd
DNI OD ATddRS DU7d dEodad
HAIA 'TYNOIDHY HOHVL HMYI
0 NNVdd ‘NOLXVH

QLT INHNAOTHARA SAY
OILYSNAJWOD ADNHOY oITdnd
T OD HONYNIA TYNOISSEAONd
DNI aNYeEavodd I104% .LOH
DDA

I OD HDONYNIA TYNOISSEAONT
SAOEMOD HENOISEWOL HHIL
(DA) FTIINCIHD ADOLSHCD

auey ssAoTdud/Iopuss
woxg

MoeUD woaqg

Z¥:8T:91

ALNNCO AHMOLS

T05006
ZTT
ST9006
068TO0T
£68ECTY
8%8ICT
grecod
£CS¥0¥
¥8LE0P
T6BEOY
S0EEQE
DEBEOF
6CZT0T
9ZZTO0T
LSS¥0¥
299%0%
LSOEOT
0OERO®
0%FECOT
P8600T
TOSPOT
89SV0¥
€80€0%
6TLEOY
FPIEFOF
9966
T8L66
89CTE0¥
Z6LGCOT
SLP0OT
S6LEOF
18%00%
£E68E0F
8LTEOV
S6EBEOY
PPSEOF
T96E0F
S8TE0¥
£9%00T
LE866
£68€0F
S68L07
SBECOF
S8ZECYE
T66C0T
S¥YSPOF
S8Z0CT
685Z0T
¥o0%0¥
E£SLECY
CBOECT
PO0F0¥
T06E0¥
9966

# wosiag beag

SWTI uny

66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
661
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
661
66T
661
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T
66T

sueg

ST/EZT/T0
Z9LTAG

T8EPEL ¥4
89¢€¥%L ud
TEZFE ¥d
ETTI8 D
LTTTI8 MDD
STTIT8 MAD
STTIT8 MO
ZTTT8 Mo
TTTTI8 MO
LOTTE8 A2
ZOTTI8 M2
S60T8 MO
E60T8 D
T&60T8 ¥HD
280Teg MO
SB0TE D
P80T8 D
080T8 D
6L0T8 ¥D
SL0T8 HD
€LO0TI8 AD
0LO0T8 WD
890T8 MO
090T8 D
650T8 D
LS0T8 2D
€50T8 MO
TS0T8 D
8%0T8 D
S¥YOT8 MO
LEDTS M2
SEQTE  MD
9Z0T8 D
600T8 D
S6608 MO
L9608  AD
L¥608 D
PE£608 D
TZ608 AL
8T&608 X0
23608 2D
ELB0OB MDD
£€808 D
0Z808 HD
£FL08 MDD
9ZL08 WD
58908 ¥D
8%908 MO
L¥908 MO
c1208 AD
ces08 MDD
cov¥o8 2D
£€8T08 D
Li9ealL AD
# ooud dr
: s3ed uny
:oN axodsy



Z

abea

687086 'IET FIEI0L

687086 'TET 1 I230) Mueg
SZ IT0'T PL/6T/CT O DHED 'S8HH
Junowy 23ea MoaUD sweny szaioydwuy/Iopusha
$I/TE/ZT - 00/00/0 woxg
666666 UbnoIL T #3}yo9yd wWoIg
gxosyp Burpueisang
DNILNAQODVY SwATUNSYAAL C¥:8Z:ST

ALNDOD ATIOLS

ZTT

00 66T ¥BETPE ¥4

# uosxag bes jueg # yoeup di

DWTL uny

ST/ZT/TI0 * 23ed unyg
z9LTad :oN axodey




€0°'596°¢€
§0°996°¢€

0T OV
00 QF
S¥' 9

co- 3L
00°" 09

00°89T°T

997198
00°0¢
0T 2T
6% °"28Z
0§8°Le
0Z 8GE
00°6L
00°0ST
00" 08T
Q0 te
€ LET
58 ¢
6676
00 €E
00°0zZ
£6 08T
9% " 8%
%6 "G
£E°L
86°5
00" sZ
00" L%T
S8 LT

AUy

:Tej0l

11301 yueg

60/%T/2T
¥L/ET/2
¥T/€T/9
¥T/91/S
¥T/12/€
?T/L0/€
¥T/LO/E
€T/TO/TT
€1/8T/0T
£1/%0/0T
€T/02/6
€1/90/6
£€1/60/8
€1/82/9
€T/¥1/9
€T/S2/1T
€T/€0/T
TI/0E/TT
ZI/0T/8
TI/%0/1T
TL/1e/%
0I/ZI/€
60/0Z/TT
60/9T/T
80/10/L
80/10/L
80/6T/G
80/8T/¢
LO/8T/2T

213eg YoIID
¥I/TE/2T - 00/00/0
666666 Ubnoiyl T

JILIL NYOTIAWY 153914
ODIYW ' AHJUOKW

¥ LIYEIHd TIYOON

DNI DIDHOTAYOD

AIN A0 DOSSY S ¥0SSHSSY
DNI OI90THY0D

J0 SHAWYHD AHTIYA NCOSHYD
- HYEQEHEd ‘¥YIaNIg

NITHH A¥VH ‘HEpIdD

dADHCG AUN

HAYS % SSYIH ‘MDO0T M 3 D
ADTYIYd ANEONE AATIWHS
ONI aNvgavodd I1ods LOH
WOo4dD

HYI09dd ‘HEaNdd

¥ OIAYIDC ‘YISHEIAD

(D) IANYdOdd HIVILS Id
SIJ0C ‘¥HNAVH

a7 INVAOHd SYDTIIAWY

DNI d3IANES TVDdAT VAYAEN
gdonag LA LEVOEd

¥Id ‘a¥Ed ‘AANNED ‘¥FJI0L
HAINISHT ‘9IManT

AAPID  HNITHEN
¥NILSIHA‘1L0nd

HOI¥EHE ‘JALTIYMIDNdG

AHTYA I NIAHA

SNYOT HWOH dAaIMAAILNOOD
T SUHNINYE sdD

sueN SoAcTdWE/Iopuss
woIs

#A29YD woIxs

£303YD BUTPUEIZING
PNILNACDDY SwdEINSYHUL
ALNOOD AHAOLS

6C:60:80

€8E00T
688BE0F
0S¥H0¥
LL9EOT
T90€E0T
LLITOV
SEEvov
6S6ECY
Z0EVCY
43444
SE00T

eLEROY
£9LEO0T
04900T
656E0%
8Z6E0Y
86866

L907%0¥%
6F6E0F
69CTOT
T89¢€0¥
a¥6Z0¥
6CFEOY
8LYTOF
S90c0¥F
ES0ECY
S66Z0%
S6TTOF
6£6T0F

# uosasg beg

SWTI unyg

S6T
S6T
S61
G671
96T
96T
SaT
S6tT
S6T
G671
S6T
S6T
96T
S6T
S6T
S6T
S6T
S6T
S6T
S6T
6T
S61
96T
56T
S61
S6T
S6T
S6T
a6T

suey

ST/€T/10
29LTad

TTIS592 dA
8868L M¥D
¥868L MDD
OTL8L MDD
STE8L D
gET8L D
£2T8L MO
8L0LL MO
£L69L WO
0L89L D
S¥99L MO
TO99L  HO
€6CoL D
2Z8sL  MD
€995L  AD
STS¥L D
Z8EFL D
¥90%L AD
866ZL MO
€960L D
LZ¥69 MDD
¥1€98 MO
8€ESS  AD
SE929 D
56809 MO
TE809 MO
eEEF02 MO
02865 M3
6ET6S MO
# oayp 4L
:2ded uny

:oN azodey



Storey County Board of County Commisioners

Agenda Action Report
Meeting Date: Tuesday, January 20, 2015 Estimate of Time Required: 5 min
Agenda: Consent Regular [ Public Hearing Required {J
1. Title: Justice Court Quarterly Report
2. Recommended Motion: Approve
3. Prepared By: E.F. Herrington, Justice of the Peace
Department: Justice Court 775-847-0962
4, Staff Summary:
5. Supporting Materials: EOP Listings for October, November, and December 2014
6. Fiscal Impact: None
Funds Available: n/a Fund: [ Comptroller [
7. Legal Review Required: District Attorney [
8. Reviewed By:
] Department Head Department Name: Commissioners’ Office
O County Manager [0 Other Agency Review
o. Board Action:
L] Approve ] Approved with Modifications
L1 Denied LI Continued

Agenda ltem No. 6




775-847-0962 © Facsimilef 77555470915
www.storeycounty.org

2BJAN -2 AMI0: 06

ORLY CUHTY
1

26 South B Street, Second Floor
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

January 2, 2015 B8Y

QUARTERLY REPORT

Pursuant to NRS 4,100, attached please find End of Period Listing Reports for October, November,
December, 2014.

I, E.F. Herrington, Virginia Township Justice of the Peace, Storey County, Nevada, do hereby certify that
to the best of my knowledge and belief, the attached information is a fuli, true and correct statement of

NRS 4.100.
Ello——

E.F. Herrington
Justice of the Peace

Subscribed and sworn before me

thisg‘_ day of ;\&')Qﬂg L Ce 4 2019

ﬁ,\mé/(

Jus?:TE?a /:o u"rt Cle I:k‘f




Date: 10/30/2014 11:2¢6
CRTR7170

End Of Period Listing - Actuzl)
VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT .
From 09/30/2014 13:1%:05.89 :
To 10/30/2014 11:22:12.81

I

Page:

Disbursed Total

EOM FOR OCTOBER 2014

Acgount

1F AA FEE - STATE (AOC)
170-000~34206
1F AM FEE - JUSTICE/187-000-35104

1F AA FEE ~ JUVENILE/001-000-35103
1F AA FEE - STATE

{GENERAL) /170-000-35114

1F AR PEE - GENETIC MARKER
ANALYSIS/180-000-35101

1F ATTORNEY REIMBURSEMENT
FEE/001-000-34245

1F BOND PROGCESSING FEE -
COUNTY/001-000-34204

1F CIVIL FEES/001-000-34204

1F CIVIL FEES - COURT
ACCOUNT/187-000-35104

1F CHEMICAL ANALYSIS
FEE/001-000-35101

1F DOMESTIC VIOLENCE
FEE/170-000~34208

1F FINE - STATE OF
NEVADA/170-000~34214

1F FINE - CQUNTY/001-000-35109

1F COURT FACILITY FEE/001-000-35111

1F MARRIAGE FEE/170-000-34212
1¥ RECORDS SEARCH/001-000-34204
1F SPECIALTY COURT FEE

(MISD) /170-000-34217

1F BOND FPILING FEE VICTIM OF
CRIMES/170-000~35108
MARRIAGE-After hours/000-000-00000

*%** End 0f Report **w

7,334.00

Payee Name Cheak Check Disbursed Amount Number

Numbexr. Status Code of Casges
NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A N/&a 1,718.00 49
VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE N/A N/A 261.00 40
COURT .
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/a 76.00 40
NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A N/A 155,00 33
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 135,00 46
STOREY COUNTY TREASUGRER N/A N/A 40,00 1
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 37.50 2
STCREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 157.50 0
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 230.75 2
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/3A N/A 0.00 1
NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A N/A 35.00 1
NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/a N/A 20.00 1
STOREY CCUNTY TREASURER N/A N/3 3,134.00 60
VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE N/A N/A 445_00 47
COURT .
NEVADA STATE TREASURER N/A N/A 35.400 ]
STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 497.25 0
NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A . N/A 307.00 47
NEVADAR STATE CONTROLLER N/ ' N/a 50.00 2
E.F. Herrington N/A N/B 280.00 4




Date: 12/17/2014 09:40 End Of Period Listing ~ Actual ) Page: 1
CRTR7170 VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT
From 10/30/2014 11:22:12.81
To 12/02/2014 09:52:51.9)]

Disbursed Total

EOM NOV 2014 8,282.50
Agcount Payee Name Check Check Disbursed 'Amount Numbexr
Numbar Status Code of Caseas
1F AA FEE - STATE (AOC) NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A . N/A : 1,914.00 49
170-000-34206
1¥ AA FEE - JUSTICE/L1B7-000-35104 VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE N/A N/A 336.00 44
COURT
1F AA FEE - JUVENILE/001-000-35103 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 96.00 44
1F AA FEE - STATE NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/n N/A 229.00 42
{GENERAL) /170-000~-35114 .
1F AA FEE - GENETIC MARKER STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 120.00 39
ANALYSIS/180-000-35101 .
1F ATTORNEY REIMBURSEMENT STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 85,00 1 |
FEE/001-000-34245
1F BOND PROCESSING FEE =~ STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A : 75.00 4 m
COUNTY/001-000-34204 ) i
1F CIVIL FEES/001~000-34204 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER /A - N/A 127.50 4 . m
1F CIVIL FEES - COURT . STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 193.50 11 i
ACCOUNT/187-000-35104 . .
1F COPY FEES/0G1-000-34204 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/2 N/A . 6.7% 2
1F FINE -~ COUNTY¥/001~-000-351009 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER M/A N/A 3,863.00 51
1F COURT FACILITY FEE/Q01-000-35112 VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE N/A N/A 450.00 43
COURT '

1F MARRIAGE FEE/170-000-34212 NEVADA STATE TREASURER N/A ! N/A 15.00 0
1F RECORDS SEARCH/001~000-34204 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 277.580 8]
1F SPECIALTY COURT FEE NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A N/2 287.50 41
(MISD)/170-000-34217 )
1F SMALL CLAIMS FERS/001-000-34204 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/a N/A o . 93.75 1 -
1F CENSUS FEE170-000-34201 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/3 ' 3.00 4 !
P e nE RS 1060 0 ®Bo000  ATRYADR, STATE CONTROLLER WA W 19949 3 |

. - - 1

*#** End of Report *%




bate: 12/31/2014 12:33 End Of Period Listing - Actual Page:. 1
CRTR7170 VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT

From 12/02/2014 09:52:51.91

Ta 12/31/2014 11:56:;45.39

! Disbursed ¥otal

EOM DEC 2014 11,632.00

Account Payge Name Cheak Chack Dighursed Amount Number
Nunber . Status Code ' of Casaes
1F AA FEE - STATE (R0OC) NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A N/A 2,462,50 52
170~000-34206
1F AA FEE -~ JUSTICEB/187-000-35104 VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE N/Aa N/R 385.00 48
COURT
1F AR FEE - JUVENILE/G01-000-35103 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER H/A N/A 110.00 48
1F AA FEE - STATE NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/& N/n 245,00 42
{GENERAL) /170-000-35114 .
IF AR FEE - GENETIC MARKER STCREY COMNTY TREASURER N/A N/R 144.00 41
ANALYSIS/180-000-35101 )
1F BOND PROCESSING FEE - STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/a H/A : 56.25 3
COUNTY/001-000-34204
1F CIVIL FEES/001-000-34204 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 228.75% 1
1F CIVIL FEES - COURT STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/R 235.00 4
ACCOUNT/187-000-35104
1F CHEMICAL ANALYSIS STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 60.00 1
FEE/001-000~35101
1F COPY FEES/001-000-34204 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/R - 2.25 0
1F FINE - COUNTY/001-000-35109 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A N/A 6,258,00 60
1F COURT FACILITY FEE/Q01-000-35111 VIRGINIZ TOWNSHIP JUSTICE N/a N/A i 475.00 44
COURT

1F MARRIAGE FEE/170-000-34212 NEVADA STATE TREASURER N/A N/A 35.00 0
1F RECORDS SEARCH/001-000-34204 STOREY COUNTY TREASURER N/A ; N/n 417,75 ] :
1F SPECIALTY COURT FEE NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/B N/a 342.50 46 -
(MISD)}/170-000-34227 .
1F DUI SPECIALTY COURT FEE NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A N/B ' 100,00 1 . m
(ROC) /170-000-3420¢
1¥ BOND FILING FEE VICTIM OF NEVADA STATE CONTROLLER N/A N/A 75.00 3

CRIMES/170-000-35108 .
/ N/A 210,00 3

; . A :
MARRIAGE-After hours/000-000~-00000 E.F. Herrington N/ _

#¥% End of Report ***




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/20/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: William Hill Race & Sports Book, Business / Gaming License application

2. Recommended motion  Approve as part of consent agenda.

3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4, Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Depart B%NG Gerald Antinoro

@Wnty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

s B |
Eo

Agenda Item No. {p




STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

January 7, 2015

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the January 20, 2015 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READING:

A. WILLIAM HILL RACE & SPORTS BOOK.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: {775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 1/20/15 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Virginia City Brewery & Taphouse, Business/Liquor license application
2. Recommended motion  Approve as part of consent agenda.
3. Prepared by: Melissa Field
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary:

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda letter

6. Fiscal impaet: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_X__ Department Head Department Name: Gerald Antinoro

@{kcm Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
{1 Approved [
[ Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued :

| Iy S—)

Agenda Ttem No. 7/




STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

January 7, 2015

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office
Pat Whitten, County Manager

Fr: Melissa Field

Please add the following item(s) to the January 20, 2015 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READING:

A. VIRGINIA CITY BREWERY & TAPHOUSE.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: |~ |1~ {55 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [x] Regular agenda[] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings

2. Recommended motion; None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda)
[ move to approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request)

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: =~ None _
¥ / District Attorney

&. Reviewed by:
X Department

@“_)f{rlty Manager Other agency review:

Department Name: Community Development

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[] Denied [

] Approved with Modifications
] Continued

Agenda Item No. 8




Storey County Community Debvelopment
Busginess Jicenging

TEUAL

P O Box 526 » Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-2366 + Fax (775) 847-0835 + buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office January 12, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri

Please add the following item(s) to the January 20, 2016, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

A. AHERN RENTALS, INC. - General / 1777 Peru Drive (equipment rental) TRI

B. NORTECH, GEOTECHNICAL/CIVIL CONSULTANTS, LTD., - 300 Western Rd #3 ~ Reno (eng.)
C. DAN’S WELDING & MACHINE, LLC ~ 1320 East Glendale ~ Sparks (welding contractor)

D. IONIX, LLC - General / 222 East Sydney (metal fabrication) TRI

E. RICH DOSS, INC. - General / 201 Wild Horse Canyon Drive (transportation) MCC

F. HIGHLAND FLOORS, INC. - 4050 S. McCarran ~ Reno (flooring contractor)

G. LIGHTNING PROTECTION SYSTEMS, LLC - 90 Cutler Dr. ~ N. Salt Lake City, UT (lightning prot.)
H. CUSTOM LAWN & LANDSCAPE MAINT. INC., - 5125 Tenaya Creek Ln ~ Reno (landscaper)

I. CLAYTON COATINGS, INC. — 8742 East Via de Commercio ~ Scottsdale, AZ (contractor)

J. DULGAR CONSTRUCTION, LLC - 6301 Bonita Ct ~ Sparks (carpentry contractor)

Inspection Required
ec: Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept. Assessor’s Office

Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Fritz Klingler, Fire Dept.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 20, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10-15 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Consideration of appointment of Dr. James C McLennan to serve as County Health Officer
per NRS 436.310.

2. Recommended motion: Move to approve appointment of Dr. James C McLennan to serve as the
replacement County Health Officer per NRS 439.310

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin

Department: Community Services Telephone: 847-0986

4. Staff summary: NRS requires each County to establish a County Board of Health consisting of County
Commissioners, the Sheriff and the County Health Officer. We make this appointment each odd
number year and in the event of a vacancy, appoint the appropriate replacement. As you are aware
Community Health Alliance (CHA) (formerly known as Health Access Washoe County (HAWC),
closed their Virginia City clinic on July 10, 2014. Dr. Terri Wong of CHA had been serving as our
health officer. Historically, the role of our County Health Officer and Board has been mostly limited
to compliance with NRS 439.550 which mandates addressing the immunization of children in our
public schools and childcare facilities. We are requesting the appointment of Dr. James C McLennan
to serve as the Health Officer for Storey County. Upon hopeful confirmation of your appointment, Dr.
McLennan will review the Storey County School District’s Immunization Schedule as recommend by
the School Nurse. Dr. McLennan will be compensated at a rate of $500.00 per month for his services
for a total cost of $6,000.00 annually.

5. Supporting materials: Contract for Services of Independent Contractor
6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: YES Fund: 001-116-57012 Comptroller

7. Legal review required: .
PS!'EL District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:

CMV—Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

Q%nty Manager Other agency review:

9, Board action:
[1 Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

| |
[ T—

Agenda Item No. | 2_




CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR
A CONTRACT BETWEEN

STOREY COUNTY
FOR AND ON BEHALF OF STOREY COUNTY
(COUNTY)

AND

DR. JAMES C MCLENNAN, MD
(CONTRACTOR)

WHEREAS, Storey County (hereinafter County), a political subdivision of the State of
Nevada, from time to time requires the services of independent contractors; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services of JAMES C MCLENNAN, MD (hereinafter
Contractor) herein specified are both necessary and desirable and in the best interests of County;
and

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that it is duly qualified, equipped, staffed, ready, willing
and able to perform and render the services as the Storey County Health Officer hereinafter
described;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements herein made, the parties mutually
agree as follows:

1. EFFECTIVE DATE OF CONTRACT. This contract shall be effective January 20, 2015
through December 31, 2017.

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. The parties agree that Contractor, his
associates and employees shall have the status of an independent contractor and that this
contract, by explicit agreement of the parties, incorporates and applies the provisions of NRS
284.713, as necessarily adapted, to the parties, including that Contractor is not a Storey County
employee and that there shall be no:

(1) Withholding of income taxes by the County;

(2} Industrial insurance coverage provided by the County;

(3) Participation in group insurance plans which may be available to employees of the

County;,

(4) Participation or contributions by either the independent contractor or the County to
the public employees’ retirement system,

(5) Accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave;

(6) Unemployment compensation coverage provided by the County if the requirements
of NRS 612.085 for independent contractors are met.

3. RiGaTs. Contractor and County agree to the following rights consistent with an
independent contractor relationship:

a. Contractor has the right to perform services for others during the term of this
Agreement.




b. Contractor has the sole right to control and direct the means, manner and method
by which the services required by this Agreement will be performed.

¢. Contractor shall not be assigned a work location on County premises.

d. Contractor, at Contractor’s sole expense, will furnish all equipment and materials
used to provide the services required by this Agreement.

e. Contractor, at Contractor’s sole expense, has the right to hire assistants as
subcontractors, or to use Contractor’s employees to provide the services required by
this Agreement.

f. Contractor or Contractor’s employees or contract personnel shall perform the
services required by this Agreement, and Contractor agrees to the faithful
performance and delivery of described services in accordance with the time frames
contained herein; County shall not hire, supervise or pay any assistants to help
Contractor.

g. Neither Contractor nor contractor’s employees or contract personnel shall receive
any training from County in the skills necessary to perform the services required by
this Agreement.

h. County shall not require Contractor or Contractor’s employees or contract
personnel to devote full time to performing the services required by this Agreement.

Contractor further certifies the following:

1. Contactor is licensed by the State of Nevada or other political subdivision to
provide similar services to other clients/customers.

J. Contractor’s federal tax identification number is 20-2744902

K. Contractor understands that it is solely responsible to pay any federal and state
taxes and/or any social security or related payments applicable to money received for
services provided under the terms of this contract. Contractor understands that an
IRS Form 1099 will be filed by County for all payments County makes to Contractor.

4. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE. Contractor shall, as a precondition to the performance of
any work under this contract and as a precondition to any obligation of the County to make any
payment under this contract, provide the County with a work certificate and/or a certificate
issued by a qualified insurer in accordance with NRS 616B.627. Contractor also shall, prior to
commencing any work under the contract, complete and provide the following written request to
a qualified insurer:

James C McLennan, MD has entered into a contract with Storey County to perform work
from January 20, 2015 to December 31, 2017 and requests that the insurer provide to
Storey County 1) a certificate of coverage issued pursuant to NRS 616B.627 and 2)
notice of any lapse in coverage or nonpayment of coverage that the contractor is required
to maintain. The certificate and notice should be mailed to:

Storey County Manager

Post Office Box 176

Virginia City, Nevada 89440




Contractor agrees to maintain required workers compensation coverage throughout the
entire term of the contract. If contractor does not maintain coverage throughout the entire term
of the contract, contractor agrees that County may, at any time the coverage is not maintained by
contractor, order the contractor to stop work, suspend the contract, or terminate the contract. For
each six month period this contract is in effect, contractor agrees, prior to the expiration of the
six month period, to provide another written request to a qualified insurer for the provision of a
certificate and notice of lapse in or nonpayment of coverage. If contractor does not make the
request or does not provide the certificate before the expiration of the six month period,
contractor agrees that County may order the contractor to stop work, suspend the contract, or
terminate the contract.

Contractor agrees to maintain required workers compensation coverage throughout the
entire term of the contract. If Contractor does not maintain coverage throughout the entire term
of the contract, Contractor agrees that Storey County may, at any time the Contractor does not
maintain coverage, order the Contractor to stop work, suspend the contract, or terminate the
contract. For each six-month period this contract is in effect, Contractor agrees, prior to the
expiration of the six-month period, to provide another written request to a qualified insurer for
the provision of a certificate and notice of lapse in or nonpayment of coverage. If Contractor
does not make the request or does not provide the certificate before the expiration of the six-
month period, Contractor agrees that Storey County may order the Contractor to stop work,
suspend the contract, or terminate the contract.

Contractor may, in lieu of furnishing a certificate of an insurer, provide an affidavit
indicating that he is a sole proprietor and that:

A. Inaccordance with the provisions of NRS 616B.659, has not elected to be
included within the terms, conditions and provisions of chapters 616A to 616D,
inclusive, of NRS; and

B. Is otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and provisions

5. MEDICAL LICENSE. Contractor agrees to maintain their medical license(s) in active
status and good standing for the State of Nevada during the term of this Contract. Failure to
maintain these licenses will result in immediate termination of this contract. Any complaints
filed against the Consultant arising out of their duties as a medical provider must be reported to
the County within ten days of being filed with an appropriate medical licensing board. Copies
the medical licenses must be sent to the Storey County Manager and the Storey County Social
Services.

6. GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE. Storey County’s liability coverage will extend
to the Storey County Health Officer as an officer of Storey County while acting within the
course and scope of his/her duties as such. Storey County Health Officer’s coverage by virtue
of this written contract includes coverage such as is included in Storey County’s liability
coverage including general or automobile liability and wrongful acts as defined in the policy
form, but only with respect to operations by or on behalf of Storey County as Storey County
Health Officer. Coverage does not apply to any liability arising in any private capacity as a
physician out of the rendering of or failure to render professional services (including




furnishing of food or beverages in connection therewith) including medical, surgical, dental
X-ray or nursing service or treatment and furnishing or dispensing of drugs or medical, dental
or surgical supplies.

7. MEDICAL MALPRACTICE INSURANCE. Contractor agrees to acquire and maintain
medical malpractice insurance in the minimum amount of $1,000,000 during the term of this
contract. Proof of medical malpractice insurance must be sent to the Storey County Manager
and the Storey County Social Services. Such proof of medical malpractice insurance must be
provided at least annually throughout the term of this contract and Storey County must be
notified at least 30 days in advance of any cancellation or nonrenewal of such insurance.

8. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The parties agree that the services to be performed are
as follows: the Contractor will serve as the Storey County Health Officer pursuant to Storey
County Code 8.24 and NRS 439.280-360 as specified in Attachment A.

9. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. Contractor agrees to provide the services set forth in
Attachment A at a cost not to exceed $500 per month and a total cost of $6,000 annually.

Contractor shall be responsible for all other expenses incurred while performing services
under this Agreement, including without limitation licenses fees, memberships and dues;
automobile and other travel expenses; insurance premiums; and all salary, expenses and other
compensation paid to Contractor’s employees or contract personnel Contractor hires to perform
the services described by this Agreement.

10. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. This contract may be revoked without cause by either
party prior to the date set forth in paragraph (2), provided that a revocation shall not be effective
until 30 days after a party has served written notice upon the other party. The Contractor shall
submit invoices for work performed to the date notice was given. :

11. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT. This contract shall be construed and interpreted
according to the Jaws of the State of Nevada. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be
resolved by binding arbitration, with an arbiter selected from a list maintained by the Nevada
Supreme Court of senior/retired judges, with both parties to pay their own attorney fees. If the
partics cannot agree on an arbiter, then the party defending the controversy shall make the
ultimate decision on the arbiter. There shall be no presumption for or against the drafter in
interpreting or enforcing this Contract.

12. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS, Contractor shall fully and completely
comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations, orders, or requirements of
any sort in carrying out the obligations of this contract, including, but not limited to, all federal,
state, and local accounting procedures and requirements and all immigration and naturalization
laws

13. ASSIGNMENT. Contractor shall neither assign, transfer nor delegate any rights,
obligations or duties under this contract without the prior written consent of the County.




14. COUNTY INSPECTION. The books, records, documents and accounting procedures
and practices of Confractor related to this contract shall be subject to inspection, examination and
audit by the County.

15. DISPOSITION OF CONTRACT MATERIALS. Any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives or other documents, data, or other materials prepared by or supplied to Contractor in
the performance of its obligations under this contract shall be the exclusive property of the
County and all such materials shall be remitted and delivered, at Contractor's expense, by
Contractor to the County upon completion of the project, or termination or cancellation of this
contract.

16. PUBLIC RECORDS LAW. Contractor expressly agrees that all documents ever
submitted, filed, or deposited with the County by Contractor, unless designated as confidential
by a specific statue of the State of Nevada, shall be treated as public records pursuant to NRS Ch.
239 and shall be available for inspection and copying by any person, as defined in NRS § 0.039,
or any governmental entity.

17. INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor agrees to indemnify and save and hold the County,
its agents and employees harmless from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising
from the performance of this contract by Contractor or Contractor's agents or employees.

18. MODIFICATION OF CONYRACT. This contract constitutes the entire contract between
the parties and may only be modified by a written amendment signed by the parties and approved
by the Board of County Commissioners.

19. NoTiCES. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given
under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given 3 days
after mailing by United States, postage prepaid, first class mail addressed to the other party at the
addresses set forth below:

FOR COUNTY:

Storey County

P.O. Box176

Virginia City, Nevada 894440
(775) 847-0968

Fax: (775)847-0949

FOR CONTRACTOR:

James C. McLennan, MD
513 Hammill Lane

Reno, Nevada 89511
(775) 358-3522




20. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that this Agreement incorporates
the Health Information Portability and Accountability Act attached as Attachment B.

21. SEVERABILITY. The illegality or invalidity of any provision or portion of this
Agreement shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement and this Agreement
shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the non-enforceability of such provision
shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of the Agreement unenforceable.

22. NO APPROPRIATION OF FUNDS. All payments and services provided under this
agreement are contingent upon the availability of the necessary public funding. In the event that
Storey County does not receive the funding necessary to perform in accord with the terms of this
Agreement, this Agreement shall automatically terminate and all fees due and owing shall be paid.

IN WITNESS WHEREOGF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be signed and
intend to be legally bound thereby.

Pat Whitten, date
Storey County Manager

James C McLennan, MD date




ATTACHMENT A

STOREY COUNTY HEALTH OFFICER DUTIES

The county health officer shall be the executive officer of the county board of health.

The county health officer is empowered to inspect for conditions that pose a threat to the health,
welfare and safety of the public’ may cause the reasonable and immediate abatement of such
condition.

As the executive officer of the county board of health, the county health officer shall:

a)
b)

c)
d)
€)

f)

g

Oversee all sanitary conditions of the county in which the board is created

Make such rules and regulations as may be necessary for the prevention, suppression and
control of any contagious or infectious disease dangerous to the public health.

To abate nuisances in accordance with law;

To establish and maintain an isolation hospital or quarantine station when necessary;

To restrain, quarantine and disinfect any person sick with or exposed to any contagious or
infectious disease dangerous to the public health;

To appoint quarantine officers when necessary to enforce quarantine; and shall provide

whatever medicines, disinfectants and provisions which may be required; and shall
arrange for the payment of all debts or charges so incurred from any funds available; but
cach patient shall, if able, pay for his food, medicine, clothes and medical attendance;
Subject to the prior review and approval of the county commission, to adopt a schedule
of reasonable fees to be collected for issuing or renewing any health permit or license

required to be obtained from such board pursuant to state law or ordinance adopted by
any political subdivision. Such fees shall be for the sole purpose of defraying the costs
and expenses of the licensing and permit procedures and investigations related thereto
and not for general revenue purposes

The county health officer shall fulfill all other duties or requests as directed by the Storey County
Board of Commissioners.




ATTACHMENT B

HEALTH INFORMATION PORTABILITY AND
ACCOUNTABILITY ACT

1. DEFINITIONS.

1.1 Contractor shall mean James C McLennan, MD and his associates or employees.

1.2 Covered Entity shall mean Storey County.

1.3 Individual shall have the same meaning as the term "individual" in 45 CFR §
164.501 and shall include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with
45 CFR § 164.502(g).

1.4 Privacy Rule shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable
Health Information at 45 CFR part 160 and part 164, subparts A and E.

1.5 Protected Health Information shall have the same meaning as the term “protected
health information” in 45 CFR § 164.501, limited to the information created or received by
Contractor from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

1.6 Required by Law shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law” in
45 CFR § 164.501.

1.7 Secretary shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human
Services or his designee.

1.8 Service Agreement or Agreement shall mean that certain agreement between
Contractor and Covered Entity.

All other capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings assigned in the
Privacy Rule.

2. OBLIGATIONS AND ACTIVITIES OF CONTRACTOR.

2.1 Contractor agrees to not use or further disclose Protected Health Information
other than as permitted or required by the Agreement or as Required by Law.

2.2 Contractor agrees to use appropriate safeguards to prevent use or disclosure of the
Protected Health Information other than as provided for by this Agreement.

2.3 Contractor agrees to mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is
known to Contractor of a use or disclosure of Protected Health Information by Contractor in
violation of the requirements of this Agreement.

2.4 Contractor agrees to report to Covered Entity any use or disclosure of the
Protected Health Information not provided for by this Agreement of which it becomes aware.

2.5  Contractor agrees to ensure that any agent, including a subcontractor, to whom it
provides Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by Contractor on
behalf of Covered Entity, agrees to the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this
Agreement to Contractor with respect to such information.




2.6 Contractor agrees to provide access, at the request of Covered Entity, and in the
time and manner designated by Covered Entity, to Protected Health Information in a Designated
Record Set, to Covered Entity or, as directed by Covered Entity, to an Individual in order to

meet the requirements under 45 CFR § 164.524.

2.7  Contractor agrees to make any amendment(s) to Protected Health Information in a
Designated Record Set that the Covered Entity directs or agrees to pursuant to 45 CFR § 164.526
at the request of Covered Entity or an Individual, and in the time and manner designated by
Covered Entity.

2.8 Contractor agrees to make internal practices, books, and records relating to the
use and disclosure of Protected Health Information received from, or created or received by
Contractor on behalf of, Covered Entity available to the Covered Entity, or at the request of

the Covered Entity to the Secretary, in a time and manner designated by the Covered
Entity or the Secretary, for purposes of the Secretary determining Covered Entity's compliance
with the Privacy Rule. ‘

2.9  Contractor agrees to document such disclosures of Protected Health Information
and information related to such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond
to a request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in
accordance with CFR § 164.528.

2.10  Contractor agrees to provide to Covered Entity or an Individual, in time and
manner designated by Covered Entity, information collected in accordance with Section 2.9 of
this Agreement, to permit Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an
accounting of disclosures of Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR § 164.528.

3. PERMITTED USES AND DISCLOSURES BY CONTRACTOR.

31 General Use and Disclosure Provisions: Except as otherwise limited in this I
Agreement, Contractor may use or disclose Protected Health Information on behalf of, or to
provide services to, a Covered Entity for the following purposes, if such use or disclosure of
Protected Health Information would not violate the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity, or
violate the minimum necessary policies and procedures of Covered Entity, for the purpose of
performing the Service Agreement.

3.2 Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions:

3.2.1 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Contractor may use

Protected Health Information for the proper management and administration of the

Business Associate or to carry out the legal responsibilities of the Contractor.

3.2.2  Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Contractor may disclose

Protected Health Information for the proper management and administration of the

Contractor, provided that disclosures are required by law, or Contractor obtains

reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that it will

remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the
purpose for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person notifies the Contractor of
any instances of which it is aware in which the confidentiality of the information has
been breached.




3.2.3 Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Contractor may use
Protected Health Information to provide Data Aggregation services to Covered Entity as
permitted by 42 CFR § 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B).

3.2.4 Contractor may use Protected Health Information to report violations of
law to appropriate federal and State authorities, consistent with § 164.502(;)(1).

4. OBLIGATIONS OF COVERED ENTITY.

4.1 Covered Entity shall notify Contractor of any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy
practices to the extent that such limitation may effect Contractor's use or disclosure of Protected
Health Information.

42  Covered Entity shall provide Contractor with any changes in, or revocation of,
permission by Individual to use or disclose Protected Health Information, if such changes affect
Contractor's permitted or required uses and disclosures,

4.3 Covered Entity shall notify Contractor of any restriction to the use or disclosure
of Protected Health Information that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR §
164.522, to the extent that the same may effect Contractor's use or disclosure of Protected Health
Information.

4.4  Permissible Requests by Covered Entity: Covered entity shall not request
Contractor to use or disclose Protected Health Information in any manner that would not be
permissible under the Privacy Rule if done by Covered Entity (unless permitted for a Contractor
under the Rule for data aggregation or the management and administrative activities of
Contractor.)

5. TERM AND TERMINATION.

5.1 Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of the date first written
above, and shall terminate when all of the Protected Health Information provided by Covered
Entity to Contractor, or created or received by Contractor on behalf of Covered Entity, is
destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, if it is infeasible to return or destroy Protected
Health Information, protections are extended to such information, in accordance with the
termination provisions in this Section. Termination of this Agreement shall automatically
terminate the Service Agreement.

5.2 Termination for Cause. Upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material breach by
Contractor, Covered Entity shall provide an opportunity for Contractor to cure the breach or end
the violation, and Covered Entity shall:

5.2.1 Provide an opportunity for Contractor to cure the breach or end the
violation and terminate this Agreement if Contractor does not cure the breach or end the
violation within the time specified by Covered Entity, or

5.2.2 Immediately terminate this Agreement if Contractor has breached a
material term of this Agreement and cure is not possible.

5.2.3  If neither termination nor cure are feasible, Covered Entity will report the
violation to the Secretary.

53  Effect of Termination.

10




53.1 Except as provided in the following paragraph, upon termination of this
Agreement, for any reason, Contractor shall return or destroy all Protected Health
Information received from Covered Entity, or created or received by Contractor on behalf
of Covered Entity. This provision shall apply to Protected Health Information that is in
the possession of subcontractors or agents of Contractor. Contractor shall retain no copies
of the Protected Health Information.

5.3.2 Inthe event that Contractor determines that returning or destroying

the Protected Health Information is infeasible, Contractor shall provide to
Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make return or destruction infeasible.
Upon mutual agreement of the Parties that return or destruction of Protected Health
information is infeasible, Contractor shall extend the protections of this Agreement to
such Protected Health Information to those purposes that make the return or destruction
infeasible, for so long as Contractor maintains such Protected Health Information.

6. MISCELLANEOUS.

6.1 Regulatory References. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the Privacy
means the section as in effect or as amended, and for which compliance is required.

6.2 Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this

Agreement from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with the requirements
of the Privacy Rule and the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law
104-191.

6.3 Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Contractor under Section 5.3 of
this Agreement shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

6.4 Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved in favor of a
meaning that permits Covered Entity to comply with the Privacy Rule.

Reviewed and Acknowledged by:

By:
James C McLennan, MD (date)

11




AFFIDAVIT

1, James McLennan, MD, being duly sworn, depose and declare:

1) T am a Sole Proprietor;
2) I'will not use the services of any employees in the performance of this contract;

3) I'have elected to not be included in the terms, conditions, and provisions of NRS
Chapters 616A- 616D, inclusive; and

4) I am otherwise in compliance with the terms, conditions and provisions of NRS
chapters 616A-616D.

I release Storey County and Storey County from all liability associated with claims made against
me and my company, in the performance of this contract, that relate to compliance with NRS
Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive.

Signed this _ day of ,

James C McLennan, MD

State of Nevada
County of Storey

On this day before the undersigned Notary Public,
personally appeared James C McLennan, MD having proved on a satisfactory basis to be the
person whose name is subscribed to this instrument and acknowledge that James C McLennan,
MD executed it.

Witness my hand and official seal.

Notary's Signature

12




NEVADA STATE BOARD OF
MEDICAL EXAMINERS
PO Box 7238, Reno NV 80518

1516882559 - www.aiiedboard.Jwy.gov

ST E

" “Ihis certifies that James Cameron McLENNAN , M.D.
holds Active Status Medical Doctor Hicensure

i the state of Nevads in sccordance with Nevads

Revised Statutes Chapter 630.
License Number: Issued: MI@!!%Z :
4536 Erpires: 063012015

3L

President, Nevada State Board of Medical Examiners




DATEMMDDAYYYY)

ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE | ssars2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUEDAS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY ANO CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLIGIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRAGT BETWEEN. THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE:HOLDER. L )

IMPORTANT: {f the certficate holder 1a an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the palicy(les) must be eidorsed. if SUBROGATION 1SWAIVED, subject to

tha terms and canditions of the policy, certaln policias may require an endorsement. A sfatement'an this certificate dogs. notconfer rights.to the
cerfificats hotdar in e of such endorsement{s). . .

PRODUCER T " . -
ggpgﬂ xgggﬁgnm SERVICES PRONE™ " (775) 324-5583 _ . Tk oo d 775) 324-5398
Lo 4
Renc, NV 89515-0069 B e~ e
WSSURER{S} AFFORDING COVERAGE b MATCE
. msuReR A NMIC '
INSURED: James Mclennan, MD Inc. INSURER £
| (NSURERG.
513 Hammill Lane INSURERD;
Reno‘, Nv 83511 JWE
. g WOUEGREL e i
GOVERAGES o CERTIFICATE NUMBER:. ___REVISION NUMBER; ‘

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT. THE POLICIES OF INSURANGE. LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED 7O THE INSURED HAMED AZOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICAYED. HOTWITHSTANDING ANY REGUIREMENT. . TERM OR GONDITION OF ANY CONTRAGT OR OTHER DOGUMENT WATH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR' MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE APFORDED BY. THE POLIGIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 5 SUBJECT. TO ALY, THE TERMS,
EXCLUSONS AND CONDITIONS DF SUCH po:‘;acnss.'v.gawrs%gm MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLASMS.

TR {YPE OF INSURANGE _ PR POMCY NUNBER ) ' uMTS
© | GENERAL LABILITY | EACH dc%gnasnca 3
COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABLITY | PREMSES tie cecuangs) . | S
} cumsance [ ocour N
| sErsonaL s aDymURY  ES
- L CERDS
| SENERAL AGGHEGATE $
GENL AGGREGATE LT APPLIES PEF: PRODUCTS - COMPIOP.AGS |5
POLSCY! lpér% LG N X $
AUTOMOBHE UABILITY i B CWIT .
E || anyauto BODILY INJURY . {Perpemacn)  }$
ﬁ%gs"wﬁﬂ SCHEQULED | BODILYINJURY. [Por secident) 1§
] NCH-DWHED - T
|} MIREDAUTOS AUTOS L (Escacoidend
EE]
| e Le  GGGUR" : EACH DECURRENCE s
EXCESS tIAR 4 Jieramsmsor] ] AGGREGATE L
uep LI REmEnnoN's 1 T 1=
WORKERS COMPRNSATION " _QM:STA T .
AND EMPLOYERS'UARUTY & - -
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNEREXECUTIVE : EL EACH ACCIDENT: 5
OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED?: WA - AR
{Mandatoryla NH) ELDISERSE - EAEMPtOVEE |5
Ar désaibe undar 1 - . -
SERREOR G GosraTionE o . | PP
A Profaasional Liab. Wvo0217s 6/1/14 {6/1/15 }§1,000,000 Bach Incident
: $3,000,000 Aggregate

R SCRIFTION OF OFCRATIONS / LGGATIGNS ! VEHICLES {Atlach ACORD 101, Addfional Reimaris Scherlo f mora space Ia reauired;
Covared Employeas:

James, Mclennan, M.D.
Jessica E. Lesperance, FA
Danielle Grate, PA-C

CERTIEICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POUCIES: BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRAYION DATE THEREOF, NOUCE WILL BE DELIVERED
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLIGY. PROVISIONS,

¥ 619882010 ACORD CORPORATION, ‘Al rights reserved,
ACORD 25(2010/05) The ACORE name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




01/09/2015% FRI 14:38 PAX Ifioo1/002

Storey County, Nevada

Commissioners” Meeting Agenda Item Request

The Storey County Boatd of Commissioners has established a policy for placement of items on its
meeting agendas. This policy states that all requests must be made in writing, and must include all
supporting documentation at the time the request is submitted.

‘The deadline for submitting a request for an item to be placed on the agenda is noon on the Monday
of the week preceding the Commissionets® Meeting. (Ttems received afier the deadline will be placed
on the agenda of a subsequent meeting, )

Date of Meeting: 2™ Meeting in January 2015 Date Request Submitted: 12/10/14

- -
Agenda ltem Requested: Approval of the Continuation of Residential Construction Tax for Storey
County Schools

This item is intended for: [} Discussion Only Discussion and Action (af the Board’s discretion) .

Supporting documentation is attached [] No supporting documentation is necessaty

Requested by:  Patti Lamb

(please print name clearly)

Address: 124 South E Street, Virginia City, NV, 89440

Phone: 775-847-0983 Email (optional): plamb@storey.ki2.nv.us

Please submit this completed form to:
or FAX to:

sslgzaggrgy Clerk’s Office Storey County Clerk’s Office

775) 847-0921
Virginia City NV 89440 (77%)

... Fold at Arrows Here and Above to Place in a Window Envelope - - - - - —»
For Office Use Only
Date Request Received: Received: [_]InPerson [X] Via FAX By:
[ Supporting documentation attached - # of pages | Meeting date of this item: |- 20 |D

For additional information, please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office
(775) 847-0969 or email vdixon@storeycounty.org

(%




01/09/2015 FRI 14:38 FAX Riooz/002

Trustees STOREY COUNTY SCHOOL DISTRICT Dr. Robert Slaby, Superintendent
Colleen Conley, President PO BoxC

Jeff Nevin, Clevk 124 South “E” Street

Christine Miller, Member Virgi Ria Ci[y, NV 89440

Dawn Miller, Mepiber

Sherron Shell,, Member Where the Expectation is Excellence

January 7, 2015

Storey County Commissioners
Marshall Mc Bride
- Lance Gilman
Jack Mc Guffey
Drawer D : ; ' )
Virginia City, NV 89440

Dear Storey County Commissioners;
Please accept this letter as a formal request to the County Commissioners to permit Storey
County School District to continue the Residential Construction Tax at the present rate of

$500.00 per home unit. This request was approved at our January 7, 2015 board meeting.

Thank you for your support!

Sincerely,

Storey County S%ool Distrigt Bpard of Trustees
Colleen Conley., K{/f;f AL ”W

Jeff Nevin A '
Christine Miller Lo R S SN
Dawn Miller '

Sharon Snell V/OW\ 8 3

4

FEE e

Storey Cou-m‘y School District does not diseriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex or disability.
Telephone: (775) 847-0983 Fax: 847-0989




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 20, 2015 ~ Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: National Radon Action Month Proclamation

2. Recommended motion: [ move to proclaim January 2015 as National Radon Action Month in
Storey County.

3. Prepared by: Cherie Nevin
Department: Community Services Telephone: 775-847-0986

4. Staff summary: January is National Radon Action Month, and the University of Nevada, Reno
Cooperative Extension Program encourages comniunities to comprehend the dangers of radon by
issuing a proclamation and providing educational materials to residents. The Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) estimates 21,000 Americans die each year from radon-caused lung
cancer, killing more people than secondhand smoke, drunk driving, falls in the home, drowning or
house fires. Radon-caused Iung cancer is preventable. A simple three-day test can determine if a
house has a radon problem, and winter is an ideal time to test a home for radon. In Nevada, one in
four Nevada homes tested found radon concentrations at or above the EPA action level. According
to experts, living in a home with radon concentrations at the action level poses as much risk of
developing lung cancer as smoking half a pack of cigarettes a day. If radon problems are found,
they can be fixed.

5. Supporting materials: Proclamation

6. Fiscal impact: NONE

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
kM ]/District Attorney
8. Reviewed py:
C Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

wun’ty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[1] Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[ —

Agenda Item No. \Ar




NATIONAL RADON ACTION MONTH
Proclamation by Storey County, Nevada

WHEREAS, many Storey County residents don’t know about radon, yet need to know, for the
safety and well-being of their families, as radon is a colorless, odorless, naturally occurring
radioactive gas that is the leading cause of lung cancer among nonsmokers; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. EPA estimates 21,000 people in the U.S. die each year from lung cancer
caused by indoor radon exposure and lung and bronchus cancer kills more people in a year than
any other cancer; and

WHEREAS, radon kills more people than secondhand smoke, drunken driving, falls in the
home, drowning or home fires; and

WHEREAS, any home in Storey County may have elevated levels of radon, even if neighboring
homes do not, and living in 2 home with an average radon level of 4 picocuries per liter of air
poses a similar risk of developing lung cancer as smoking half a pack of ci garettes a day; and

WHEREAS, testing is the only way to know if a radon problem exists, and testing is easy and
inexpensive, and when identified, the problems can be fixed; and

WHEREAS, University of Nevada Cooperative Extension, the Nevada Division of Public and
Behavioral Health and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency support efforts to encourage
all Storey County residents to test their homes for radon, mitigate elevated levels of radon, and
have new homes built with radon-reducing materials and features.

NOW, THEREFORE, We, the Storey County Board of County Commissioners, do hereby
proclaim January 2015, as
NATIONAL RADON ACTION MONTH
In Storey County, Nevada

Dated this 20" day of January 2015 by:

Marshall McBride, Commission Chairman

........




¥ Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: January 20, 2015 Estimate of time required: 10 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Presentation and request for adoption of the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan.

2. Recommended motion: I move to approve and adopt the Storey County Hazard Mitigation
Plan as presented.

3. Prepared by: Joe Curtis
Department: Emergency Management Telephone: 775-847-0986

4. Staff summary: With four Federal declarations in the last ten years, Storey County recognizes the
consequences of disasters and the need to reduce the impacts of natural and human-caused hazards. County
officials also know that with careful selection, mitigation actions in the form of projects and programs can
become long-term, cost effective means for reducing the impact of natural and human-caused hazards.
Applying this knowledge, the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Planning Task Force prepared the Storey
County, Nevada, Hazard Mitigation Plan. With the support of various County officials, the State of
Nevada, and the United State Department of Homeland Security/Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA), this plan is the result of 12 months’ worth of work through the Local Emergency Planning
Committee to create a hazard mitigation plan that will guide the County toward greater disaster resistance in
full harmony with the character and needs of the community and region. The Storey County, Nevada
Hazard Mitigation Plan has been updated in compliance with Section 322 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster
Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford Act or the Act), 42 U.S.C. 5165, enacted under Sec. 104 the
Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA. 2000), Public Law 106-390 of October 30, 2000. Since the first plan
was adopted in 2006, many mitigation actions have been completed and the status of actions from the 2010
plan is contained in Appendix F. This updated plan identifies on-going and new hazard mitigation actions
intended to eliminate or reduce the effects of future disasters throughout the County.

5. Supporting materials: Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan
FEMA Approval Letter
Resolution
6. Fiscal impact: NONE
Funds Available: Fund: _ Comptroller

7. Legal review required: ,
E_S(!\_\\/District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:

Q%,D{paﬂment Head Department Name: Conumissioner’s Office
@ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
] Approved
(] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

-

Agenda Item No. [6




U.S. Depm'lment of ITomeland Security
1111 Broadway, Suitc 1200
Oakland, CA. 94607-4052

December 16, 2014

Joe Curtis

Storey County Emergency Manager
Storey County, NV

PO Box 603

Virginia City, NV 89440

Dear Mr. Curtis: ‘ g

We have completed out review of the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan, and have
determined that this plan is eligible for final approval pending its adoption by Storey County.

Formal adoption documentation must be submitted to the Regional office by the Jurisdictions
within one calendar year of the date of this letter, or the entire plan must be updated and
resubmitted for review. We will approve the plan upon receipt of the documentation of formal
adoption,

If you have any questions regarding the planning or review processes, please contact Phillip
Wang, Hazard Mitigation Plansing Specialist at (510) 627-7753, or by email at
phillip.wang@fema.dhs.gov.

Sincerely,

FEMA Region IX

ce: '
Debbie M. Tanaka, State Hazard Mitigation Officer
Karen I. Johnson, Nevada Division of Emergency Management

www.ferma.goy




Resolution #15-419

WHEREAS STOREY COUNTY has historically experienced severe damage from natural and
human-caused hazards such as flooding, wildfire, drought, thunderstorms/high winds, and
hazardous materials incidents on many occasions in the past century, resulting in loss of property
and life, economic hardship, and threats to public health and safety;

WHEREAS the STOREY COUNTY Hazard Mitigation Plan (the Plan) has been developed after
more than one year of research and work by Storey County Office of Emergency Management in
association and cooperation with the Storey County Planning Team for the reduction of hazard
risk to the community;

WHEREAS the Plan specifically addresses hazard mitigation strategies and plan maintenance
procedures for STOREY COUNTY;

WHEREAS the Plan recommends several hazard mitigation actions/projects that will provide
mitigation for specific natural and human caused hazards that impact STOREY COUNTY with
the effect of protecting people and property from loss associated with those hazards;

WHEREAS a public meeting was held to present the Plan for comment and review as required
by law;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED
by the STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, that:
1. The Plan is hereby Adopted as an official plan of STOREY COUNTY

2. The respective officials identified in the mitigation strategy of the Plan are hereby directed to
pursue implementation of the recommended actions assigned to them.

3. Future revisions and Plan maintenance required by the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and
FEMA, are hereby adopted as a part of this resolution for a period of five (5) years from the
date of this resolution.

4. An annual report on the progress of the implementation elements of the Plan shall be
presented to the, Local Emergency Planning Commission by October 31% of each calendar
year,

PASSED by the Storey County Commission, this 20th day of January 2015.

Commission Chair, Marshall McBride Date

Commissioner, Lance Gilman Date

Commissioner, Jack McGuffey Date




Hazard Mitigation Plan

Storey County
2014




TABLE OF GONTENTS

Executive SUMMATY .....ovoveriesnnrisncssossorsssssarersnnans tesssneennssnenssssnnssnnasenentraresrasaaresassbusasnas ES-1
‘Section 1 Official Record of AdOPHON......cie v ceseessesesssesessenns 11
1.1 Disaster Mitigation Act 0f 2000 .....cccceeriviiveeireciie et ee e 1-1

1.2 Adoption by the Local Governing Body and Supporting Document ...... -1

Section 2 BACKGIOUNG ..ot smssssnsssncs s s ssasss e s s s ss e sssresssessessaresens 2-1
2.1 Plan Purpose and AUhOLILY .....cvruereeeieereeereeereieeceer e es oo, 2-1

2.2 Stafford Act Grant PrOZramMS ... ceieeiorirneeeoeeeeeeeee e ee e 2-1

2.3 Plan Orgamzation.........ccooeeviiriees st esees s 2-2

Section 3 CommURNity DeSCriPtON ...t ssss et s snessseeane 31
31 History, Location, and Geography..........oceeerveeereeeeeeeeeeeeereeseoeseeens 3-1

32 GOVEINIMENL.....iev ittt ettt ettt esees e s eseeees 3-2

3.3 DemOgraphiCs ....c.cccovriiniciieeistcre ettt 3-3

3.4 Land Use and Development Trends........c.ooceveeererveeoeroeereesenseseeesnensn o, 3-4

Section 4 Planning ProCess ... s isssesessessesssesesesssesessssesssosess 4-1
4.1 Overview of Planning Process .......ueuoeeeveeeeereevesrereeseeesee s, 4-1

4.2  Hazard Mitigation Planning COmmUttee ........c.ceevreeveerverereressieenensinns 4-3

4.2.1 Formation of the Planning Committee.............oceevereereeeecnrrnnn. 4-3

4.2.2 Planning Committee Meetings & Monthly Progress................... 4-4

4.2.3 Plans, Studies, Reports and Technical Information...................... 4-6

43 Public INVOIVEIMENL ...cvvirvrrierreeieieeeiie vt ettt eee e eee e e 4-6

4.4 Incorporation of Existing Plans and Other Relevant Information............ 4-7

Section 5 RiSk ASSESSMENL ... esessssesessessseseesssenes 51
5.1 Hazard identification and screening............oocveviveeieecomeeeeeeeeeseesrenn, 5-1

5.2 Hazard Profile ....c.ocoeeeioiii e 5-5

5321 AvalanChie ..o 5-6

5.2.2 Caving Ground (Mine Collapse)......ccoevuervereereeeeeriereeneeeeaerivernnns 5-8

5.2.3  Drought oottt 5-9

5.2.4  Earthquake ... et 5-12

5.2.5  EPIAEIMC c.ouccviiiiiirrrreceeiis ettt e 5-16

5.2.6  FlOOQ .ottt ettt 5-21

5.2.7 Hazardous Materials EVENtS ......cccovovvvviveeeeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeans 5-25

5.2.8  Severe Weather ......c.oovvierreeeieeeciee et 5-28

5.2.9  TeITOTISIML i ettt ceee ettt st s s eee e e s 5-32

5.2.10 WildIand Fire ....c.ooeeeeueiineeccecte e 5-38

Section 6 ASSEE INVENTOTY civvsiieisscce s s sesseb s s bt see s ssseene e sese e e see 6-1




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 7

Section 8

Section 9

Section 10

6.1 ASSELINVEILOTY weueeererirriierriie sttt reees s s s e ee e eseseee e e sesaseesesnanans 6-1

6.1.1 Population and Building Stock ......ccccvcerirvererniieeiiree e 6-1

6.1.2  Critical Facilities and Infrastructure .......ccococoevvroveiveeerieeennnn 6-2
6.2 MEHOAOIOZY cveereiieicrii ittt ettt et r e se e ere s 6-3
6.3  Data Limitations & Future Development .............ococveceeroeveeereeerere e, 6-3

6.3.1 Future Development.........c.ccveriieeuereeuieiircireee oo e esres e 6-4
6.4 EXPOSUTe ADALYSIS ..ovovviceeiriricieieier ettt et 6-4

6.4.1  Earthquake .....ccccooeoiinieeeceee e 6-10

6.4.2  TFlash FIoOd.......cccimmmiminieneeieceeceicsee e e eneeesans 6-10

6.4.3 Riverine Flood .....c..ooevcvimniiiiece et 6-11

6.4.4  Severe WInter StOIml....c..occovmvrienenieieee s s 6-11

6.4.5 WIIIITE .ocoviiiiee ettt ettt 6-11
6.5  Repetitive LoSS PrOPEItes ....cccourerrevereeeieieeeisieese s eeeeeees o, 6-12
Capability ASSESSMENt...... .. cccrrrirrerrerrersr s st st res s st ssseen e rane 7-1
7.1  Legal and Regulatory Capabilities.........ccoovevrvieiiirerieeeeneeeessessesseeenns 7-1
7.2 Administrative and Technical Capabilities........coveeeervereeerrresreeererersvenons 7-2
7.3 Financial Capabilities.........cccocemrivierreeeriesireesiecs et erereeesees s 7-3
7.4 Current Mitigation Capabilities ..........cececeiverereiieieireisee e 7-4
Mitigation SErategy........oumimmni e ———————————— 8-1
8.1  Mitigation Goals and OBJECHIVES ......cceeiuereriverereerieirieeeeeeeee e 8-1
8.2  identifying Mitigation ACHONS........cceeverieueieirecece e, 8-2
8.3  Evaluating and prioritizing mitigation ACton ......ccovovveveereeereererereerenn, 8-6
8.4  implementing a mitigation action plamn ..........coeeermeeeeereeeeeeeeeeeeeeees 8-7
Plan Maintenance.......cuummnnnmmeinn: T b AR e e 9-1
9.1  Monitoring, Evaluating, and Updating the BMP .........c.ocvevrevverenn, 9-1
9.2 Implementation through Existing Planning Mechanisms........................ 9-2
9.3 Continued Public InVOIVEMEnt .........oeeevereeeeiceiireeeeeeeeeeeees e, 9-3

= T [T 10-1




List of Tables, Figures and Appendices

Tables

Table 3-1
Table 4-1
Table 4-2
Table 5-1
Table 5-2
Table 5-3
Table 5-4
Table 5-5
Table 5-6
Table 5-7
Table 5-8
Table 5-9
Table 5-10
Table 5-11
Table 5-12
Table 6-1
Table 6-2
Table 6-3
Table 6-4
Table 6-5
Table 7-1
Table 7-2
Table 7-3
Table 7-4
Table 8-1
Table 8-2
Table 8-3
Table 8-4

Figures

Figure 5-1
Figure 5-2
Figure 5-3

County Employers

Plan Outline & Update Efforts

Hazard Mitigation Planning Committec

Identification and Screening of Hazards

Vulnerability Ratings Rubric

Hazard Extent Classification

Hazards Rating

Droughts in Nevada

Probability of Earthquakes

Historic Occurrences of Epidemics Registered in Nevada
Historical Floods

Hazardous Material Release

Hazardous Chemical Agents Potentially Used in Terrorist Attack
Identified Hate Groups and Patriot Groups, Nevada

Wildfire Assessment Summary

Estimated Population and Building Inventory

Critical Facilities and Infrastructure

Potential Hazard Vulnerability Assessment — Population and Buildings
Potential Hazard Vulnerability Assessment — Critical Facilities

Potential Hazard Vulnerability Assessment — Infastructure

Legal and Regulatory Resources Available for Hazard Mitigation
Administrative and Technical Resources for Hazard Mitigation
County Fiscal Capability for Hazard Mitigation

Local Mitigation Capability Assessment

Mitigation Goals

Mitigation Goals and Potential Actions

STAPLE+E Evaluation Criteria for Mitigation Actions

Action Plan Matrix

Drought Monitor
Historic Earthquakes
Major Faults in County




List of Tahles, Figures and Appendices

Figure 5-4
Figure 5-5
Figure 5-6
Figure 5-7

Appendices

Appendix A
Appendix B

Appendix C
Appendix D
.Appendix E
Appendix F

Comstock Fault

Percentage of Visits for Influenza-like Iliness
State Where Person Infected w/E.coli 2009
Fire History Map

Adoption Resolution

Figures

Figure B-1 oottt Location & Populated Areas
FIgure B-2 ... er et Zoning/Land Ownership
FIgUIE B3 ittt Flood Map
Figure B-4 ..o Dry Lighting/Wildland Fire Risk
Figﬁre B et Wildfire Fuel Map
FigUIE B-6 ...ocvnriiiicnccecsci e eae st e Wildfire History Map

Public Information

Meetings Agenda & Handouts

Plan Maintenance Documents

Mitigation Goals & Actions from Previous Plan




List of Acronyms

BLM
PW
CIA
CDC
cfs
CFR
County
DHS
DMA 2000
DOJ
DOT
EHS
EMPG
EOC
EPA
EPCRA
FEMA
FBI
GIS

HAZUS-MH

HMGP
HMP
InSAR
JAVMA
LEPC

MMI
mph
NDEM
NDEP
NDF
NDOT
NERMP
NFIP

United States Bureau of Land Management

Public Works

Central Intelligence Agency

Center for Disease Control

cubic feet per second

Code of Federal Regulations

Storey County

Department of Homeland Security

Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000

Department of Justice

United States Department of Transportation

Extremely Hazardous Substance

Emergency Management Planning Grant

Emergency Operation Center

United States Environmental Protection Agency
Emergency Planning and Community Right to Know Act
Federal Emergency Management Agency

Federal Bureau of Investigation

Geographic Information System

(abbreviation for HAZards United States) is a geographic information

system-based natural hazard loss estimation software package developed
and freely distributed by the Federal Emergency Management Agency

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program

Hazard Mitigation Plan

Interferometric Synthetic Aperture Radar
Journal of the Federal coordinator for Meterology
Local Emergency Planning Committee
Magnitude

Modified Mercalli Intensity

miles per hour

Nevada Division of Emergency Management
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection
Nevada Division of Forestry

Nevada Department of Transportation
Nevada Earthquake Risk Mitigation Plan
National Flood Insurance Program




ListofAcronyms

NBMG
NPS
NRC
NWS
OFCM
PDM
POC
SERC
SFHA
SHMO
SPWB
Stafford Act
State
SR
UBC
UNR
URM
URS
Usc
USDA
USEPA
USFS
USGS
WMD

Nevada Bureau of Mines & Geology

National Park Service

National Response Center

National Weather Service

Office of the Federal Coordinator for Meteorology
Pre-Disaster Mitigation

Point of Contact

State Emergency Response Commission
Special Flood Hazard Area

State Hazard Mitigation Officer

State Public Works Board

Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act
State of Nevada

State Route

Uniform Building Code

University of Nevada Reno

Unreinforced Masonry Buildings

URS Corporation

United States Code

US Department of Agriculture

United States Environmental Protection Agency
United States Forest Service

United States Geological Survey

Weapons of Mass Destruction




Executive Summary

Across the United States, natural and human-caused disasters have led to increasing levels of
death, injury, property damage, and interruption of business and government services. The toll
on families and individuals can be immense and damaged businesses cannot contribute to the
economy. The time, money and effort to respond to and recover from these emergencies or
disasters divert public resources and attention from other important programs and problems.
With four Federal declarations in the last ten years, Storey County, Nevada, recognizes the
consequences of disasters and the need to reduce the impacts of natural and human-caused
hazards.

The elected and appointed officials of the County also know that with carefu] selection,
mitigation actions in the form of projects and programs can become long-term, cost effective
means for reducing the impact of natural and human-caused hazards. Applying this knowledge,
the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Planning Task Force prepared the Storey County, Nevada,
Hazard Mitigation Plan. With the support of various County officials, the State of Nevada, and
the United State Department of Homeland Security/Federal Emergency Management A gency
(FEMA), this plan is the result of several months worth of work to create a hazard mitigation
plan that will guide the County toward greater disaster resistance in full harmony with the
character and needs of the community and region.

People and property in the County are at risk from a variety of hazards that have the potential for
causing widespread loss of life and damage to property, infrastructure, and the environment. The
purpose of hazard mitigation is to implement actions that eliminate the risk from hazards, or
reduce the severity of the effects of hazards on people and property. Mitigation is any sustained
action taken to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to life and property from a hazard event.
Mitigation encourages long-term reduction of hazard vulnerability. The goal of mitigation is to
save lives and reduce property damage. Mitigation can reduce the enormous cost of disasters to
property owners and all levels of government. In addition, mitigation can protect critical
community facilities, reduce exposure to liability and minimize community disruption.
Preparedness, response, and recovery measures support the concept of mitigation and may
directly support identified mitigation actions.

The Storey County, Nevada Hazard Mitigation Plan has been updated in compliance with
Section 322 of the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relicf and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford
Act or the Act), 42 U.S.C. 5165, enacted under Sec. 104 the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000
(DMA 2000), Public Law 106-390 of October 30, 2000. Since the first plan was adopted in 2006,
many mitigation actions have been completed and the status of actions from the 2010 plan are
contained in Appendix F. This updated plan identifies on-going and new hazard mitigation
actions intended to eliminate or reduce the effects of future disasters throughout the County.




SECTIONONE Official Record of Adoptien

This section provides an overview of the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 (DMA 2000; Public
Law 106-390}, the adoption of the updated Storey County, Nevada, Hazard Mitigation Plan
(HMP) by the local governing body, and supporting documentation for the adoption.

1.1 DISASTER MITIGATION ACT OF 2000

The DMA 2000 was passed by Congress to emphasize the need for mitigation planning to reduce
vulnerability to natural and human-caused hazards. The DMA 2000 amended the Robert T.
Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act (Stafford Act; 42 United States Code
[USC] 5121-5206 [2008]) by repealing the act’s previous Mitigation Planning section (409) and
replacing it with a new Mitigation Planning section (322). In addition, Section 322 provides the
legal basis for the Federal Emergency Management Agency’s (FEMA’s) mitigation plan
requirements for mitigation grant assistance.

To implement the DMA 2000 planning requirements, the Federal Emergency Management
Agency (FEMA) published an Interim Final Rule in the Federal Register on February 26, 2002,
This rule (44 Code of Federal Regulations [CFR] Part 201) established the mitigation planning
requirements for states, tribes, and local communities. The planning requirements are described
in detail in Section 2 and identified in their appropriate sections throughout this Plan. In addition,
a crosswalk documenting compliance with 44 CFR is included as Appendix E.

1.2 ADOPTION BY THE LOCAL GOVERNING BODY AND SUPPORTING
DOCUMENT

The requirements for the adoption of an HMP by the local governing body, as stipulated in the
DMA 2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below,

Storey County, to be referred to as Storey County or the County throughout this plan, is the sole
jurisdiction represented in this HMP, There are no other political subdivisions within Storey
County. This HMP meets the requirements of Section 409 of the Stafford Act and Section 322
of the DMA 2000.

The local governing body of Storey County (Storey County Commissioners) has adopted this
HMP. The signed resolution is provided in Appendix A.

I-1




SECTIONTWO Background

This section provides an overview of the County’s HMP. This includes a review of the purpose
and authority of the HMP and a description of the document.

21 PLAN PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY

The DMA 2000, also referred to as the 2000 Stafford Act amendments, was approved by
Congress on October 10, 2000. On October 30, 2000, the President signed the bill into law,
creating Public Law 106-390. The purposes of the DMA 2000 are to amend the Stafford Act,
establish a national program for pre-disaster mitigation, and streamline administration of disaster
relief.

The HMP meets the requiremerits of the DMA 2000, which calls for all communities to prepare
hazard mitigation plans. By preparing this HMP, the County is eligible to receive Federal
mitigation funding after disasters and to apply for mitigation grants before disasters strike. This
HMP starts an ongoing process to evaluate the risks different types of hazards pose to the
County, and to engage the County and the community in dialogue to identify the steps that are
most important in reducing these risks. This constant focus on planning for disasters will make
the County, including its residents, property, infrastructure, and the environment, much safer.

The local hazard mitigation planning requirements encourage agencies at all levels, local
residents, businesses, and the non-profit sector to participate in the mitigation planning and
implementation process. This broad public participation enables the development of mitigation
actions that are supported by these various stakeholders and reflect the needs of the entire
community.

States are required to coordinate with local governments in the formation of hazard mitigation
strategies, and the local strategies combined with initiatives at the state level form the basis for
the State Mitigation Plan. The information contained in HMPs helps states to identify technical
assistance needs and prioritize project funding. Furthermore, as communities prepare their plans,
states can continually improve the level of detail and comprehensiveness of statewide risk
assessments.

For FEMA’s Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) grant program and Hazard Mitigation Grant
Program (HMGP), a local jurisdiction must have an approved HMP to be eligible for PDM and
HMGP funding for a Presidentially declared disaster after November 1, 2004. Plans approved
any time after November 1, 2004, will allow communities to be ehglble to receive PDM and
HMGP project grants.

Adoption by the local governing body demonstrates the jurisdiction’s commitment to fulfilling
the mitigation goals and objectives outlined in the HMP. Adoption legitimizes the updated HMP
and authorizes responsible agencies to execute their responsibilities. The resolution adoptmg this
HMP is included in Appendix A.

2.2 STAFFORD ACT GRANT PROGRAMS

The following grant programs require a State, tribe, or local entity to have a FEMA-approved
State or Local Mitigation Plan.

2-1




SECTIONTWO Background

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP): HMGP provides grants to State, tribes, and local
entities to implement long-term hazard mitigation measures after a major disaster declaration.
The purpose of the HMGP is to reduce the loss of life and property as a result of natural disasters
and to enable mitigation measures to be implemented during the immediate recovery from
disaster. Projects must provide a long-term solution to a problem: for example, elevation of a
home to reduce the risk of flood damages as opposed to buying sandbags and pumps to fight the
flood. In addition, a project’s potential savings must be more than the cost of implementing the
project. Funds may be used to protect either public or private property or to purchase property
that has been subjected to, or is in danger of, repetitive damage. The amount of funding available
for the HMGP under a particular disaster declaration is limited. The program may provide a State
or tribe with up to 20 percent of the total disaster grants awarded by FEMA. The cost-share for
this grant is 75/25 percent (Federal/non-Federal).

Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) Program: PDM provides funds to State, tribes, and local
entities, including universities, for hazard-mitigation planning and the implementation of
mitigation projects before a disaster event. PDM grants are awarded on a nationally competitive
basis. Like HMGP funding, a PDM project’s potential savings must be more than the cost of
implementing the project. In addition, funds may be used to protect either public or private
property or to purchase property that has been subjected to, or is in danger of, repetitive damage.
Congress appropriates the total amount of PDM funding available on an annual basis. The cost-
share for this grant is 75/25 percent (Federal/non-Federal).

Flood Mitigation Assistance (FMA): The FMA program provides funds on an annual basis so
that measures can be taken to reduce or eliminate risk of flood damage to buildings insured under
the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). FMA provides up to 75% Federal funding for a
mitigation activity grant and/or up to 90% Federal funding for a mitigation activity grant
containing a repetitive loss strategy.

Repetitive Flood Claims (RFC): The RFC program provides funds on an annual basis to
reduce the risk of flood damage to individual properties insured under the NFIP that have had
one or more claim payments for flood damages. RFC provides up to 100% Federal funding for
eligible projects in communities that qualify for the program.

Severe Repetitive Loss (SRL): The SRL program provides funds on an annual basis to reduce
the risk of flood damage to residential structures insured under the NFIP that have had one or
more claim payments for flood damages. SRL provides up to 75% Federal funding for eligible
projects in communities that qualify for the program.

2.3 PLAN ORGANIZATION
The remainder of this HMP consists of the following sections.
. Section 3 - Community Description

Section 3 provides a general history and background of the County and historical trends for
population, demographic and economic conditions that have shaped the area. Trends in land use
and development are also discussed.




SECTIONTWO Background

. Section 4 - Planning Process

Section 4 describes the planning process, identifies Planning Committee members, and the key
stakeholders within the community and surrounding region. In addition, this section documents
public outreach activities and the review and incorporation of relevant plans, reports, and other
appropriate information.

. Section 5 - Risk Assessment

Section 5 describes the process through which the Planning Committee identified and compiled
relevant data on all potential natural hazards that threaten the County and the immediately
surrounding area. Information collected includes historical data on natural hazard events that
have occurred in and around the County and how these events impacted residents and their
property.

The descriptions of natural hazards that could affect the County are based on historical
occurrences and best available data from agencies such as FEMA, the U.S. Geological Survey
(USGS), and the National Weather Service (NWS). Detailed hazard profiles include information
on the frequency, magnitude, location, and impact of each hazard as well as probabilities for
future hazard events.

. Section 6 - Vulnerability Analysis

Section 6 identifies potentially vulnerable assets such as people, housing units, critical facilities,
infrastructure and lifelines, hazardous materials facilities, and commercial facilities. These data
were compiled by assessing the potential impacts from each hazard using GIS and FEMA’s
natural hazards loss estimation model, HAZUS-MH. The resulting information identifies the full
range of hazards that the County could face and potential social impacts, damages, and economic
losses.

° Section 7 - Capability Assessment

Although not required by the DMA 2000, Section 7 provides an overview of the County’s
resources in the following areas for addressing hazard mitigation activities:

e Legal and regulatory resources

¢ Administrative and technical: The staff, personnel, and department resources available to
expedite the actions identified in the mitigation strategy

¢ Fiscal: The financial resources to implement the mitigation strategy

. Section 8- Goals, Objectives & Actions - Mitigation Strategy

As Section 8 describes, the Planning Committee developed a list of mitigation goals, objectives,
and actions based upon the findings of the risk assessment and the capability assessment. Based
upon these goals and objectives, the Planning Committee reviewed and prioritized a
comprehensive range of appropriate mitigation actions to address the risks facing the
community. Such measures include preventive actions, property protection techniques, natural
resource protection strategies, structural projects, emergency services, and public information
and awareness activities.

2-3




SECTIONTWO Background

. Section 9 - Plan Maintenance Process

Section 9 describes the Planning Committee’s formal plan maintenance process to ensure that the
HMP remains an active and applicable document. The process includes monitoring, evaluating,
and updating the HMP; implementation through existing planning mechanisms; and continued
public involvement.

. Section 10 - References
Section 10 lists the reference materials used to prepare this HMP.

. Appendices

The appendices include the Adoption Resolution, Maps, Planning Committee Meetings, and
Public Involvement process.

2-4




SECTIONTHREE Commumity Description

This section describes the history, location, and geography of the County as well as its
government, demographic information, and current land use and development trends. The
demographics and land use development trends sections where updated.

3.1 HISTORY, LOCATION, AND GEOGRAPHY

As shown in Figure C-1 (Appendix C), Storey County is in northwestern Nevada, approximately
14 miles east of Reno, 237 miles east of San Francisco, and 441 miles northwest of Las Vegas.
The County is bordered on the west and north by Washoe County, Nevada, and on the east and
south by Lyon County, Nevada. The Truckee River Basin and Carson River Basin along with
associated streams are the primary drainage systems within Storey County. The major
transportation route to Virginia City, Storey County seat, is State Route 341, intersecting U.S.
395 near Reno via Geiger Grade and U.S. 50, southwest in Carson City. Interstate 80 (I-80) is 23
miles to the northwest in Reno. With 264 square miles of total land area, Storey County accounts
for less than one-quarter of 1 percent of the State’s total land area. This makes Storey County the
second-smallest county in Nevada. Storey County was created in 1861 and named for Captain
Edward Farris Storey, who was killed in 1860 in the Pyramid Lake Indian War. Although it is
among the smallest counties in the State, it was the most populous county in Nevada when it was
established in 1861.

The attraction to Storey County started in 1859 when miners discovered the largest deposit ever
found of gold and silver in Virginia City, called the Comstock Lode. Between the 1859 and
1878 the Comstock Lode yielded about $400 million in silver and gold. Mining has continued
since then to the present but certainly nowhere near the yields of its heyday in the late 1800’s. .
In the fall of 1859, Virginia City had a population of between 200 to 300 people. After the
Comstock Lode discovery in early 1860, approximately 10,000 people moved to the area. The
peak population for the Virginia City/Gold Hill area was in 1875 topping at around 25,000
people. The political ramifications of this significant economic and population escalation
resulted in the creation of the Nevada Territory, carved from the Utah Territory, by President
Buchanan on March 2, 1861. Today, about 4,300 residents remain with 1,027 in Virginia City,
1,500 located five miles north of Virginia City in the Virginia Highlands, another 212 just south
in Gold Hill, 1,200 in the community of Mark Twain located six miles east of Virginia City and
the remainder along the north, west, and southern county boundary areas.

Beginning with the Comstock Lode, many historic events have occurred in this area, one of
which was the arrival in late 1862 of Samuel Clemens, who worked as a reporter for the
Territorial Enterprise for 21 months, and left as Mark Twain. Also occurring in 1862 in the
Virginia City area was the organization of the San Francisco Stock Exchange Board, the first
mining exchange in the United States. The old Geiger Grade Toll Road, which was constructed

- to link Virginia City with immigrant trails and supply routes crossing the Truckee River, created
the site that would become Reno in 1868. Long after the gold and silver rush became a memory,
Storey County continues to attract more than 1.6 million tourists annually. Complementing its
mining history and established tourism draw, Storey County’s growing industrial sector has
begun to play an equally important role in strengthening its future economic outlook.

Storey County, the second smallest Nevada county, has built a reputation on always doing things
big—one of the biggest gold and silver discoveries in history and now, as of 2008 home of the

3-1




SECTIONTHREE Community Description

United State’s largest industrial park, the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Center (TRI). This 104,000-acre
center, located in the community of McCarran, has an 80-million-square-foot industrial-space
capacity. Numerous and varied commercial companies have already located there and more are
choosing the locale. Also located in the TRI area are three sophisticated power plants; Sierra
Pacific Power, Barrick Mines, and Naniwa (a power plant that provides additional power support
during peak hours). The TRI Center is in the early stages of the second phase of their current
three-phase development plan. Applications have been submitted to the County to develop an oil
refinery on site as well as several bio fuels facilities to include solid waste, medical waste, and
others. With completion of just the first phase of development the TRI Center brings
approximately an additional 8,000 to 10,000 people into Storey County each day. See Section
3.4 for development trends.

As could be expected with the extent of mining in the area, the major geophysical feature of the
County is its mountainous topography. At an elevation of 6,200 feet, Virginia City, the County
seat, is located on the steep eastern slope of Mt. Davidson which as elevation from 7,838 to
4,000. The majority of the land developed over the past 40 years has been on the perimeter of the
County, primarily in the level areas adjacent to Lyon County and along the riparian zone of the
Truckee River. The Tahoe Reno Industrial Center (TRIC) is a massive 107,000 acre park that
encompasses a developable 30,000 acre industrial complex with pre-approved industrial and
manufacturing uses. The build out of phase 2 of 3 is nearly complete. Although a considerable
amount of developable land exists in the interior of the County, the mountainous terrain and lack
of adequate road networks have combined to restrict development. As such, the development
trend of the past 40 years is being encouraged to continue.

3.2 GOVERNMENT

The Storey County Board of Commissioners consists of three elected members. Each
Commissioner is required to reside in one of three districts, which are equally divided among the
County’s population based on the census. Storey County does not have any incorporated
jurisdictions. Population districts, such as the one described above regarding the members of the
Board of Commissioners, serve a variety of means. For example, the County Master Plan
identifies four population districts for their planning purposes and the Nevada Division of Water
Resources identifies five. As the County continues to grow and the infrastructure expands the
population districts will expand and develop as well and at some point will require an official
delineation of the population districts within Storey County. Currently each Commissioner is
elected by all residents of the County to serve a 4-year term and to discuss and determine all
issues on a countywide basis. The Board of Commissioners meets each first and third Tuesday of
the month and holds additional meetings when necessary. As the County’s governing board, the
Commission has vast responsibilities spanning from budgeting to policy enactment and
erforcement. Below are some of the many services the Storey County Commissioners provide to
the residents and businesses of the County:

* Approve all County department budgets and monitor their performance
* Set the tax rate countywide, as well as water and sewer rates in Virginia City and Gold Hill

» KEstablish and monitor the policies and ordinances that run the County government

3-2




SECTIONTHREE Community Description
Key Officials
Commissioner 1 Administrative Officer District Attorney
Commissioner 2 Assessor Emergency Mar.
Commissioner 3 Auditor Fire Chief
Clerk/Treasurer IT Director

County Departments/Divisions

Assessor

Clerk/Treasurer
Cormmissioners/Human Resources
Communications

Community Services

Comptroller

District Attorney

3.3 DEMOGRAPHICS

Commumnications Director
Community Services Officer
Community Development Director
Comptroller

County Manager

Emergency Management
Fire Protection District
Information Technology
Justice Court

Planning

Public Works

Recorder

Justice of the Peace
Public Works
Sheriff

Sheriff’s Department

According to the Nevada State Demographer, the County’s population is estimated at 4,123 in
2011. This was near the 2006 population estimate of 4,132 and a 21 percent increase from the
2000 US Census population of 3,399. The Nevada State Demographer estimates the county wil
grow at a rate of 4.0% annually over the next 20 years. This is well below the state average
however due to the economic decline in Nevada since 2008 population is expected to be flat for

the next few years.

Approximately 20 percent of the total population was under 18 years, 60 percent was between 18
and 54 years, and 20 percent was 55+ years and over. The County’s nonfarm employment was
2,879 persons in 2011 (NV Department of Employment,
http://www .nevadaworkforce.com/admin/uploadedPublications/3069 2011 E&P_Final.pdf)
with an average annual wage of $43,403. The economic base of the County primarily consists of

3-3




SECTIONTHREE

Gommunity Description

Trade, Transportation and Utilities and manufacturing due to the large industrial complex near
180 in the northern part of the county. See below for the largest employers in the County. The
median household income is $59,386 and the median value of owner-occupied housing unit is

$215,200 according to the US Census Bureau.

Storey County's Largest Employers are as follows:

Table 3-1: County Employers

. Emplyer | o o Industy Number of Employess
Wal-Mart Stores Inc. McCarran General Warehousing 500-599

Petsmart inc. McCarran General Warehousing 200-299

[ntelfisource LLC McCarran General Warehousing 200-299

Storey County Virginia City Government 50-100

Source: https:/iwww.nvenergy.com/busingssfeconomicdevelopment/regionaliwestern/index.cfm

3.4

LAND USE AND DEVELOPMENT TRENDS

The majority of the land developed in Storey County during the past 40 years has been on the
perimeter of the County, primarily in the level areas adjacent to Lyon County and along the
riparian zone of the Truckee River. Storey County’s Master Plan examines the development of
four primary population areas:

Virginia City/Gold Hill: This area is located in the mountainous southwest section of the
County. The development of this area can be directly attributed to the discovery of the
Comstock Lode and is a major tourist attraction; specifically, this is the location of the largest
historic district within the State of Nevada. Small scale mining has begun in the last 2 years
in this area.

Virginia Highlands: Located 5 miles porth of Virginia City, this is a mountainous residential
subdivision of one-, ten-, and forty-acre parcels, with primarily upscale housing. There is
currently no commercial development in this area.

Mark Twain: Located 6 miles due east of Virginia City, this is a residential subdivision
consisting primarily of mobile homes. The terrain is relatively level.

The River District: This district stretches about 25 miles along the south bank of the
Truckee River and makes up the northern boundary of the County. It has a mixed land use of
residential, agricultural, recreational, industrial, and commercial development and is divided
into 3 areas:

1. MecCarran - Reno-Tahoe-Industrial Park - Industrial Center has a total of 30,000
developable acres slated to accommodate over 300 million SF. Businesses in this
area currently employ approximately 8 to 10 thousand. There are currently two
petroleum plants for refining and cracking or cleaning old product. A jet fuel
producer is currently under construction of their refinery for processing solid waste.
TESLA is under construction with a 5 year plan for a 6 million square feet battery

3.4




SECTIONTHREE Community Descrintion

manufacturing facility which will add six thousand workers. Current predictions are
for 20 thousand workers at TRI by 2020.

2. Lockwood - A primarily a residential community with 1033 residents according to
the 2010 census. There is a hay processing plant located in the area.

3. Painted Rock — A residential community with 20 residential structures on more than
one acre each.

All of the districts are within 1 or 2 miles of the County boundary; none are in the interior. With
few exceptions, all of the population of the County is located in these four districts.

Unlike most of Nevada, where 87 percent is managed by Federal agencies, more than 90 percent
of Storey County is privately owned. Without the active support of a Federal land management
agency or sufficient revenues necessary to develop a County Planning Department, land
management efforts in the interior have been minimal and the resources available are largely
unexplored.

There is a proposed State Route 305 known as USA Parkway, which has not yet been formally
endorsed, that would connect McCarran, where the TRI Development area is located, proceeds
south to the County line with Lyon County in the area of the Ramsey/Weeks cutoff in Silver
Springs. This new road will have multiple benefits—-the most important benefit being direct
access for emergency workers to traverse their response area north/south or to quickly reach
wildfires occurring within the interior of the County. The secondary benefit will eliminate the
current commute route through Reno for many of the workers in the TRI Development making
the development only 15 minutes away from the residential communities along the Highway 50.

Sunset Acres is a proposed development of 300 homes and the Master Plan is currently being
updated to include this development. This development is not within any mapped flood areas.
This is scheduled to be built out over the next 10 years.

3-5




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

This section provides an overview of the planning process; identifies Planning Committee
members, and key stakeholders; documents public outreach efforts; and summarizes the review
and incorporation of existing plans, studies, and reports used in the development of this HMP.
Additional information regarding the Planning Committee and public outreach efforts is
provided in Appendices C and D.

The requirements for the planning process, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below.

4.1 OVERVIEW OF PLANNING PROCESS

The first step in the planning update process was to establish a Planning Committee composed of
existing County agencies. Joe Curtis, Emergency Manager and Cherie Nevin, served as the
primary Points of Contact (POC) for the County and the public. Karen Johnson functioned as
project leader for the update process.

The County assisted by the State of Nevada, Hazard Mitigation Officer updated this HMP. Each
section of the previous HMP plan was reviewed for content and the committee revised every
section of the plan. The plan was re-drafted into a new outline to better assist the State Hazard
Mitigation Officer in the review process. All NV state plans are requested to be in this new
outline.

Durmg the 5 years since the previous plan was adopted plan maintenance performed during the
4™ year during the LEPC meeting. All information on mitigation action accomplishments and

41




SEGCTIONFOUR Planning Process

new public input was derived during the planning process. With this new plan and the plan
maintenance section has been revised to include forms and the SHMO has developed an exercise
for local plan maintenance which will corrected this omission.

The following table provides the new section format and provides details on the update.
Table 4-1. Plan Outline and Update Effort

Jpdate Effor Nha 1ged
Section 1 - Official Minor Revision The process for plan adoption remains the same but the update provides a
Record of Adoption discussion of this process. Section 1 and 2 of the 2008 plan were switched.
Section 2 - Background Minor Revision The plan organization sections were modified to reflect current plan.
Section 3 - Community Minor Revisions This section was updated to include new fand use map and expanded fo
Description include land use and development trends fo address new requirements.
Section 4 — Planning Major Revisions This section details the current plan's planning process. Public and
Process stakeholders outreach efforts
Section 5 - Hazard Maderate Revisions . The individual hazard sections were reformatted to the new outline and
Analysis then provided to the committee member with expertise to update history and

revise as needed. New Hazus information was used for the earthquake
hazard and new FIRM maps were used for flood hazard.

Section 6 - Vulnerability | Moderate Revisions | New analysis of residential, non residential and critical facilities based on

Analysis mapping efforts tied to hazards was included. Identified URMs included.
Future development was included. The team used this section to prioritize
projects.
Section 7 — Capability Minar Revisions A local mitigation capability assessment was included and a section on
Assessment NFIP was included to address requirements.
Section 8 - Mitigation Major Revisions The goals and actions were reviewed and progress was included, actions
Strateqgy deleted, and actions added. The prioritization process was expanded fo
include the STAPLE+E process to better evaluate and prioriize actions.
Section 9 - Plan Minor Revision SHMO maintenance exercise included.
Maintenance
Section 10 - Reference New This section was added for future plan update reference.

Once the Planning Committee was formed, the following five-step planning process took place
during the 12-month period from January 2013 to October 2013.

* Organize resources: The Planning Committee identified resources, including County staff,
agencies, and local community members, which could provide technical expertise and
historical information needed in the development of the HMP.

* Assess risks: The Planning Committee identified the hazards specific to the County, and
developed the risk assessment for the thirteen identified hazards. The Planning Committee
reviewed the risk assessment, including the vulnerability analysis, prior to and during the
development of the mitigation strategy.

* Assess capabilities: The Planning Committee reviewed current administrative and technical,
legal and regulatory, and fiscal capabilities to determine whether existing provisions and
requirements adequately address relevant hazards.

* Develop a mitigation strategy: After reviewing the risks posed by each hazard, the Planning
Committee worked to develop a comprehensive range of potential mitigation goals,

4-2




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

objectives, and actions. Subsequently, the Planning Committee identified and prioritized the
actions to be implemented.

* Monitor progress: The Planning Commiittee developed an implementation process to ensure
the success of an ongoing program to minimize hazard impacts to the County.

42  HAZARD MITIGATION PLANNING COMMITTEE

4.21 Formation of the Planning Committee

As previously noted, the planning process began in January 2013. Cheri Nevin, Emergency
Management for the County, utilized the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC) as the
advisory body, known as the Planning Committee, which included staff from relevant County
agencies and community organizations. The Planning Committee members are listed in Table 4-
2. The Planning Committee meetings are described in section 4.2.2. Meeting minutes are
provided in Appendix C.

Table 4-2. Storey County Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee

ent

Co-Chair of the Committee, chaired meetings, provided
evaluation and information on the following sections,
Chair: Joe Curtis Emergency Management risk assessment, vulnerability analysis, mitigation
strategies, plan mainfenance, provided public outreach

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

4-3




SECTIONFOUR

Planaing Process

Cherie Nevin

Emergency Management

Co-Chair of the Committee, chaired meetings, provided
update, evaluation and information on the following
sections, planning, hazard profiles, vuinerability
analyss, risk assessment, mitigation strategies, plan
maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

(ary Hames

Fire Chief

Provided evaluation and information on the following
sections, wildfire, vulnerability analysis, risk
assessment, mitigation strafegies, plan maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Pat Whitten

County Manager

Provided evaluation and information on the following
sections, flood, vulnerability analysis, risk assessment,
mitigation strategies, plan maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Jenna Damon

NV Division of Water Resources,
Flood Plain Management

Provided evaluation and information on the following
sections, flood, vulnerability analysis, risk assessment,
mifigation sirategies

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Gary Johnson

UNR, NBMG

Provided evaluation and information on the following
sections, earthquake, vulnerability analysis, risk
assessment, mitigation strategies, plan maintenance

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

Karen Johnson

NV Division of Emergency

Provided information on toots, guidance, plan outline,
state hazards, miligation strategies, plan maintenance

M
anagement Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
. ) Provided information on GIS inciuding flood mapping.
h las County GIS
Erie Schridt Dougias County Altended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
Director of Community Provided information on flood & community
Dean Haymore Development/Building/Floodplain | Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
Manager
) - Provided public input
h K Comstock Minin
John Haskins ¢ Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
. Provided public input
I
Rick Vasquez Walmart Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
Joe Fording NDF Provided inforrpation or? fire and mitigation st.rategly
Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
Bil Moline NDF Provided inforr?ation or? fire and mitigation strateg.y
Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input
Provided information on county roads, utilities and
Mike Nevin County Public Works buildings, vulnerability analysis, mitigation strategy

Attended meetings, reviewed drafts and provided input

4.2.2

. January 2013

Planning Committee Meetings & Monthly Progress

During the kick-off meeting, at the Walmart Distribution Center, the Committee discussed the
objectives of the DMA 2000, the hazard mitigation planning process, the public outreach

4.4




 SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

process, and the steps involved in updating the HMP and achieving the County’s goals. The
planning process was discussed including the purpose of the plan and the plan tasks, goals and
actions. The Committee completed the Incorporation of Existing Plans/Study Table to identify
all the plans/studies available (as shown in section 4.4). Members received a copy of the 2008
HMP. A review of the County and State identified hazards was used as a starting point to
complete a hazard identification table. The exercise identified the specific hazards that the
Planning Committee wanted to address in the HMP. The Planning Committee used the hazards
identified and completed a Hazard Profiling Worksheet. The exercise used group averaging to
prioritize the hazards into high, medium and low categories. The Committee reviewed the 2008
HMP’s actions and provided input as to status. See Appendix D for agenda, handouts and
minutes.

. April 2013

The Committee met in Virginia City and discussed the results of the hazard rating exercise and
determined hazard ratings for the plan. Leads for the hazards were determined. The Committee
reviewed the Hazard Mitigation Questionnaire for public input (see Appendix C). See Appendlx
D for agenda, handouts and sign in sheet.

o July 2013

The Committee met in Lockwood and discussed the update to the Earthquake hazard profile
including historical earthquakes and mitigation action status and new actions. See Appendix D
for agenda, handouts and sign in sheet.

. January 2014

The Committee met in Lockwood and discussed the Community section and the Hazardous
Materials & Severe Weather profiles. Critical facilities were discussed. Chris Smallcomb of
NOAA gave a briefing on drought. Mitigation actions for these sections were also discussed.

. April 2014

The Committee met in Virginia City and Jenna Damon gave a presentation on Flood profile and
mitigation actions and Karen Johnson provided the Wildfire profile and mitigation actions.
Maps were provided to committee for review.

o July 2014

Presented the Committee with the initial analysis of the vulnerability assessment, describing
which assets were analyzed and how values were estimated. The Planning Committee reviewed
goals and actions and drafted new actions. Planning Committee used STAPLE+E form to
prioritize actions. See Appendix D for meeting handouts. With the information from the
prioritization process the Planning Committee selected the top actions they felt were feasible and
realistic to be completed during this iteration of the HMP. With this information they completed
the Mitigation Action matrix.

4-5




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

. September 2014

The Committee reviewed the maintenance section. The completed plan was distributed to the
Planning Committee for their review.

. October 2014

The plan was provided to the NV State Hazard Mitigation Officer for review and submission to

423 Plans, Studies, Reports and Technical Information

The Committee felt that the information available was of high quality. The Division of Water
Resources, the Truckee River Flood Project and the NV Division of Forestry provided mapping
of flood and wildfire risk. The URM structures were mapped and included in this update.

4.3 PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

The public was invited to participate in the planning committee meetings and meeting agenda
were posted. Additionally, a questionnaire was sent out to the County residents within a
Hawthorne Utilities Landfill Assessment, a press release and letters to stakeholders for their
participation. From this outreach a large amount of input and review was provided.

Questionnaire

The County distributed the hazard mitigation questionnaires during the National Night Out event
on August 6, 2013, to the public. This provided very few responses and the next update should
review ways to improve public involvement. The questionnaire can be found in Appendix D.

Public Awareness

All committee planning meeting agendas were posted at the County offices and the public was
welcome and invited to attend.

Letters to Stakeholders and Neighboring Communities

The County emailed notification regarding the update of the HMP to the following entities:
e FEMA — Did not attend but will review the plan.

¢ State NDEM, NDOT, NDWR, NDF, UNR NBMG - Participated in the planning effort.
e State Assembly & Senate Representative — Did not participate.

» Counties of Carson City, Churchill, Lyon, Pershing and Washoe- Did not participate but
their HM plans were reviewed for hazard information.

e National Weather Service — Attended, provided input and review.

All but FEMA, State Assembly and Senate Representative, and neighboring counties
participated. FEMA will be sent the plan for review. Mapping was provided by the Douglas
County GIS group through a county agreement for mapping services. The neighboring counties

4-6




SECTIONFOUR Planning Process

were aware of the planning effort and offered to provide answers to specific questions. No
questions were requested of them during the planning effort.

4.4 INCORPORATION OF EXISTING PLANS AND OTHER RELEVANT
INFORMATION

During the planning process, the Planning Committee reviewed and incorporated information
from existing plans, studies, reports, and technical reports into the HMP. A synopsis of the
sources used follows.

* Storey County Master Plan, 1999: The Land-Use Element provides information on existing
land use and future development trends.

o Storey County Zoning Plan 2012: Land-Use Element provides information on future land
use and provides flood plain zoning.

» Storey County Historical Structure Study 2011: This plan provides information on
historically significant structures including the Courthouse.

¢ Storey County Building Code IBC 2003: Storey plans to adopt the 2009 IBC in July of
2013.

s Storey County Comprehensive Flood Control Plan 2011, This plan provides information on
flooding locations and specific mitigation recommendations.

» State of Nevada Hazard Mitigation Plan, October 2010. This plan, prepared by the State of
Nevada, was used to ensure that the County’s LHMP was consistent with the State’s plan.

¢ Flood Insurance Study, Storey County, Nevada, Unincorporated Areas, Revised 2010,
FEMA Community Number — 320033 This study provides historical and detailed
information regarding flood hazards throughout Storey County and was useful when
developing the flood-hazard profile and flood-mitigation strategy.

¢ Nevada Community Wildfire Risk/Hazard Assessment Project, Storey County,
January 2005: This report was prepared specifically for the communities within Storey
County, Nevada, identified in the 2001 Federal Register list of communities that are located
in the vicinity of Federal lands most vulnerable to the threat of wildfire.

¢  Hazardous Materials Emergency Response Plan 2012:
The following FEMA guides were also consulted for general information on the HMP process:

¢ How-To Guide #1: Getting Started: Building Support For Mitigation Planning (FEMA
2002c¢) '

* How-To Guide #2: Understanding Your Risks — Identifying Hazards and Estimating Loss
Potential (FEMA 2001)

» How-To Guide #3: Developing the Mitigation Plan: Identifying Mitigation Actions and
Implementing Strategies (FEMA 2003a)

* How-To Guide #4: Bringing the Plan to Life: Implementing the Hazard Mitigation Plan
(FEMA 2003b)

4-7




SECTIONFOUR Planniny Process

A complete list of the sources consulted is provided in Section 10, Reference

4-8




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

A hazard analysis includes the identification and screening of each hazard and subsequent
profiling of each hazard. Hazard identification is the process of recognizing the natural and
human-caused events that threaten an area. Natural hazards result from unexpected or
uncontrollable natural events of sufficient magnitude. Human-caused hazards result from human
activity and include technological hazards and terrorism. Technological hazards are generally
accidental or result from events with unintended consequences, for example, an accidental
hazardous materials release. Terrorism is defined as the calculated use of violence or thereat of
violence to attain goals that are political, religious, or ideological in nature.

Even though a particular hazard may not have occurred in recent history in the study area, all
hazards that may potentially affect the study area are included in the screening process. The
hazards that are unlikely to occur or for which the risk of damage is accepted as being very low,
are eliminated from consideration.

All identified hazards will be profiled by describing hazards in terms of their nature, history,
magnitude, frequency, location, and probability. Hazards are identified through the collection of
historical and anecdotal information, review of existing plans and studies, and preparation of
hazard maps of the study area. Hazard maps are used to determine the geographic extent of the
hazards and define the approximate boundaries of the areas at risk.

5.1 HAZARD IDENTIFICATION AND SCREENING

The requirements for hazard identification, as stipulated in DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below,

The first step of the hazard analysis is the identification and screening of hazards, as shown in
Table 5-1. During the first HMP meeting, the Planning Committee reviewed the current HMP
and the State’s identified hazards from the State of Nevada Hazard Mitigation Plan and identified
16 possible hazards (14 natural hazards and 2 human-caused hazards).

5-1




SECTIONFIVE

Hazard Analysis

Table 5-1. Identification and Screening of Hazards

Xplanati

No historical record of this hazard in the County

Avalanche Yes No however except on roads.
Statewide drought declarations were issued in
Drought Yes No | 2002 and 2004,
Several active fault zones pass through the
Earthquake Yeos No County.
Enidemic Yes No This hazard was addressed in the State Multi-
P Hazard Mitigation Plan.
Expansive Soils No No historical record of this hazard in the County
Extreme Heat No No historical record of this hazard in the County
Flood (Including Dam/Levee Yes Flash floods and other flood events occur
Failure) regularly during thunderstorms.
The County has an industrial park and Highway
80 that pass through the county however
. Commitiee determined to only profile hazard. No
Hazardous Material Event ves No vulnerability analysis was included. As the
industrial park is located miles from any
residential area.
infestations No No recorded damages
This was previously titled Caving Ground and the
Land Subsidence & Ground Failure Yes No mines under Virginia Cify have a possibility of
collapse.
Storey is susceptible to severe weather. Previous
Severe Weather Ves No events have caused damage to property.
Snow/lce//Windstorm/Hail Windstorm and Hail where included in this section
for this update.
Seiche No No recent historic events have occuired.
Tornado No No historic events have occurred.
No significant historic events have oceurred in the
Volcano No County. The Planning Committee determined not
to include this hazard.
This hazard was included but Committee only
WMD / Terrorism Yes No profiled hazard. No vulnerability analysis was
‘ ‘included.
The ferrain, vegetation, and weather conditions in
Wildland Fire Yes No the region are favorable for the ignition and rapid

spread of wildland fires,

Assigning Vulnerability Ratings

During a Committee meeting the members were tasked to prioritize the hazards by their total
impact in the community. An exercise requiring the committee to complete a form which
tabulated their ratings of each hazard was accomplished. The exercise formula took into account
the historical occurrence of each respective hazard, the potential area of impact when the disaster
does occur, and the magnitude. Please see Table 5-2 below for scoring criteria.




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

It is important to note that hazards of the same magnitude and the same frequency can occur in
similar sized areas; however, the overall impact to the areas would be different because of
population densities and property values in the areas impacted.

Table 5-2. Vulnerability Ratings Rubric

Lowest 1 Insured Loss 1-3 Days Community Community
2 Local 4-7 Days City/Town City / Town
3 State 8-14 Days County County
4. Federal Emergency | 15-20 Days State State
Highest 5 Federal Disasfer | 20 + Days Federal Federal
Lowest 1 10+ years 1-5% damaged Advisory
2 6-9 years 6-10% Considered further Plan
3 1-5 years 11-25% Prompt Action
4 2-12 months 26-35% Immediate Action
Highest 5 0-30 days 36-50% Utmost immediacy

The Committee referenced the NV DEM historical records, RCI plans and HAZUS runs from
Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology (NBMG) for scientific data that was used for magnitude,
economic and frequency scores based on historical frequencies and / or projected probabilities of
the hazards identified.

Upon obtaining total scores for each hazard, the team utilized the scores to analyze and prioritize
the hazards to focus upon during the profiling, vulnerability assessment and mitigation planning,
Table 5-3 is a summary of the hazards scoring results of the members present at the meeting.

Hail & thunderstorm, severe winter storm, and severe windstorm were combined for profiling
purposes.

The Planning Commitiee determined that eleven hazards pose a threat to the County: drought,
earthquakes, epidemic, floods, hazardous materials events, land subsidence, severe weather,
terrorism/WMD, volcano, wildland fires. The Planning Committee decided to include the
frequency and magnitude ranking in the table below in addition to the total score from the
exercise to better demonstrate the hazards impact on the county.

Table 5-3; Hazard Extent Classification

Avalanche Low Low Very Low (11)
Caving (Mine) & ground

failure Moderate Low Moderate (17)
Drought Low Low Low (14)

5-3




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Table 5-3;: Hazard Extent Classification

HazardType . |
Earthquakes Low High Moderate (19)
Epidemic Low Low Low (14)
Flood (Includes dam . . .
failure, canaliditch failure) | 19" High High (26)
Severe Weather Overall - Moderate (20)

Hail & thunderstorm . 12-Low
Winter storm High Low 22— Moderate
Windstorm 21 —Moderate
Wildfire High High High (31)
sed
Hazmat Moderate Low Low (21)
Terrorism Low High Low (22)

Although Hazmat and Terrorism scored a medium overall the Planning Committee determined
through discussion that the magnitude from an incident is historically so low they rated this
hazard as low. The remaining hazards excluded through the screening process were considered
to pose no threat to life and property in the County due to the low likelihood of occurrence or the
low probability that life and property would be significantly affected. Should the risk from these
hazards increase in the future, the HMP can be updated to incorporate a vulnerability analyses
for these hazards.

The Planning Committee determined through discussion that Avalanche, Epidemic, Hazmat,
Mine caving and Terrorism will have a Hazard Profile developed but will not be carried through
to the Risk Assessment or Mitigation Strategy, as currently and historically they occurred in
unpopulated areas or has little to no impact, measureable magnitude, or feasible mitigation
actions. Terrorism would not be carried through to the Risk Assessment or Mitigation Strategy
since there are other planning mechanisms that better deal with planning for Terrorism.

The County’s Hazard Rating results generally correspond with ratings determined in the State of
Nevada Standard Hazard Mitigation Plan.,

5-4




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

_ Table 5-4: Hazard Ranking

~ HighRisk | N :
Mine Caving/
Earthquake _
el c?od Land subsidence Drought Avalanche
e Severe Weather Epidemic
Wildire Terrorism Hazardous - Materials

5.2 HAZARD PROFILE

The requirements for hazard profile, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below.,

The specific hazards selected by the Planning Committee for profiling have been examined in a
methodical manner based on the following factors:

e Nature

e History

* Location of future events

o Extent of future events

e Probability of future events

'The hazards profiled for the County are presented in Section 5.2 hazards in alphabetical order.
The order of presentation does not signify the level of importance or risk. Low hazards were not
profiled.




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

521 Avalanche

5211 Nature

An avalanche is a mass of snow sliding down a mountainside. An avalanche occurs when
gravitational pull exceeds the bonding strength of the snow cover. There are four factors that
contribute to an avalanche; a steep slope, a snow cover, a weak layer in the snow cover, and a
trigger. About 90 percent of all avalanches start on slopes of the 30-45 degrees; about 98 percent
of all avalanches occur on slopes of 25-50 degrees. Avalanches release most often on slopes
above timberline, such as gullies, roads cuts, and small openings in the trees. Avalanches can
also occur on small slopes well below timberline, such as gullies, road cuts, and small openings
in the trees. Very dense trees can anchor the snow to steep slopes and prevent avalanches from
starting; however, avalanches can release and travel through a moderately dense forest.

The vast majority of avalanches occur during and shortly after winter storms, during the winter
and spring months between January and April. The most avalanche-prone months are in order,
February, March, and January. The avalanche danger increases with major snowstorms and
periods of thaw. Duration of avalanche impacts is generally one to three days or less.

5212  History

There are oral accounts of two avalanche events in the Geiger Grade area occurring
approximately 50 to 100 years ago and of one in Virginia City within the past 5 years. The
avalanche in Virginia City was described as moving a multi-thousand gallon water tank about
300 feet vertically down the hill to a nearby residence landing atop a privately owned garage.
There were no injuries or fatalities reported in any of the three events. No additional events could
be found in local or national data bases.

3.21.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

There are several factors that influence avalanche conditions and locations, with the main ones
being slope angle, slope aspect, and terrain. Other factors include slope shape, vegetation cover,
elevation, and path history. Avalanches usuaily occur on slopes 35 to 60 degrees; Virginia City is
located on the eastern slope of Mt. Davidson, where the slope is at approximately 30 to 35
degrees. The sides of the Geiger Grade slope between Reno and Virginia City are approximately
45 or more degrees. An avalanche can occur on slopes of 25 to 35 degrees. At slope angles
above 70 degrees, the snow tends to slough off and does not have the opportunity to accumulate.
Avalanches can occur outside the optimum slope angle range, but are not as common.

Slope aspect, also termed orientation, describes the direction a slope faces with respect to the
wind and sun. Leeward slopes (slopes facing away from wind and snow) loaded by wind-
transported snow are problematic because the wind-deposited snow increases the stress and
enhances slab formation. Intense direct sunlight can weaken and lubricate the bonds between the
snow grains, weakening the snowpack. Shaded slopes are also potentially unstable because the
weak layers may be held for a longer time in an unstable state. Where Virginia City is located on

5-6




SECTIONI-IVE Hazard Analysis

the eastern portion of Mt. Davidson is not considered a leeward slope but faces the east catching
the daily rising sunlight.

The local terrain features determine an avalanche’s path. The path has three parts: the starting
zone, the track, and the run-out zone. The starting zone is where the snow breaks loose and starts
sliding. It is generally near the top of a canyon, bowl, ridge, etc., with steep slopes between 25
and 50 degrees. Snowfall is usually significant in this area.

Most avalanches in a given path are relatively small and frequent, affecting only a small portion
of the potential path area. Occasionally, much larger avalanches release which extend nearly to
the observed limits of the path. These larger events are usually referred to as “10-year” events
but in reality, reflect an order of magnitude return period between 3 years and 30 years. On rare
occasions, exceptionally large avalanches occur that extend well beyond the established
boundaries of the paths. These avalanches often referred to as “100-year” avalanches, are likely
to affect all or most of the potential path area.

Avalanches usually occur on slopes 35 to 60 degrees and can occur on slopes of 25 to 35
degrees. The slope of Virginia City (30 to 35 degrees) indicates it is possible for an avalanche to
occur there. The Geiger Grade slope (approximately 5 degrees) is significantly less likely to
occur with any regularity. A design avalanche is defined as an avalanche occurring within an
order of magnitude range between 30 years and 300 years. Statistically, design avalanches have a
1 percent probability of occurring during any given year, but could occur in consecutive years or
many years apart.

5-7




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

522 Caving Ground {Mine Collapse)

5,221 Nature

The area around abandoned mine openings and open pits can be weak and cave-in without
warning. Cave-ins are obviously dangerous. Areas that are likely to cave-in are often hard to
detect. A minor disturbance, such as vibrations caused by walking or speaking, may cause a
cave-in.

The top of a mine shaft is especially dangerous. The rock at the surface is often decomposed and
timbers may be decayed or missing; therefore walking anywhere near a shaft opening should be
avoided. The whole area is often ready and waiting to slide into the shaft, which can be hundreds
of feet deep.

5.2.2.2  History

Through oral history there is community knowledge of two significant events where mine shafts
that were filled during the 1920s significantly caved leaving large holes in the ground at two
separate school locations the first in 1991 at Gallagher Elementary School and then around 1994-
95 at the Virginia City High School. Two additional caving events occurred along highways
requiring the roads to be closed for several wecks for repairs to be completed. The first occurred
around 2000 and the second in around 2006 along Highway 342 in lower Gold Hill about % mile
north of the county line; both events were as a result of flood waters collapsing previously
covered mine shafts.

The Nevada Division of Minerals advises they manage and collect data regarding abandoned
mine hazards throughout the State. However, due to budgetary restraints their data base is
maintained using an antiquated system and remains in a constant state of flux, They
acknowledge their data base is sorely out-dated and that they have not been able to inventory all
abandoned mine hazards in Storey County partly because they do not have access to events
occutring on private property. Additionally, they do not specifically inventory events regarding
subsidence or collapse of abandoned mine shafts such as the events described above.

5.2.2.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

The Comstock Lode was the largest gold and silver deposit ever discovered in the State of
Nevada and 1s located beneath Virginia City as well as extending below the interior of the
County. By the late 1800s the Comstock Lode had ebbed. Then in the 1920s, with an _
abundance of abandoned mines and cars, it became common practice to fill the shafts of inactive
mines with wrecked vehicles and other large discarded items. Over the last century filled shafts
have settled or support timbers have collapsed causing a multitude of hazards to include sink
holes. 1994 saw another gold boom with Nevada producing approximately 64% of the U.S.
production and 10% of the total world gold production (Nevada Division of Minerals, 1994;
Price and others, 1995). Abandoned mines are located not only throughout the State of Nevada
but there is a high concentration in and surrounding the Virginia City and Gold Hill areas. The
deepest shafts of these mines measure 3,300 feet below the shaft’s collar. The Nevada Division

5-8




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

of Minerals has inventoried 175 abandoned mine hazard locations between 1989 and June 10,
2009 in Storey County. Each of the 175 sites are provided with an individual identification
number and includes the geo-address, rank for each hazard to include degree and type, as well as
providing details of the mine visibility. All sites include a detailed description of the status of
the hazard at the time of the inspection. There are approximately an additional 30 more category
descriptions for each hazard site. Although the data collected on each hazard site is extensive,
the Nevada Division of Minerals states they have only a portion of the estimated sites
inventoried. With the mining history past and present so densely concentrated in the Virginia
City and Gold Hill areas abandoned mines are acknowledged to be a current hazard and one that
will persist well into the future. Without an in-depth study not only in Storey County but
throughout the State of Nevada the extent of the risk to life and property has not yet been fully
defined but can only be speculated upon considering the deepest of the known shafts are
measured at 3,300 feet,

523 Drought

9.23.1 Nature

Drought is a temporary but recurrent feature of climate that occurs virtually everywhere,
including in regions that normally receive little rainfall. Characteristics of drought can vary
significantly from one region to another and, partly due to differences in impact, there are scores
of definitions. Drought is often described simply as a period of deficient precipitation, usually
lasting a season or more, resulting in extensive damage to agricultural crops with consequential
economic losses. Water shortages can result for some activities, groups, or environmental
sectors.

The onset and end of a drought are difficult to determine, and in contrast with quick and intense
natural hazards such as tornadoes, the impact of drought is more of a slower “creeping hazard”
and may be spread over a larger geographic area. The impact of a particular drought depends on
numerous factors including duration, intensity, and geographic extent as well as regional water
supply demands by humans and vegetation.

The negative effects of drought increase with duration. Lower than normal reservoir or river
levels can impact recreational opportunities, fire suppression activities, and animal habitat.
Patterns of human consumption can also be altered. Non-irrigated croplands are most susceptible
to precipitation shortage. Rangeland and irrigated agricultural crops may not respond to moisture
shortage as rapidly, however yield during periods of drought can be substantially lower. During
periods of severe drought, lower moisture in plant and forest fuels create an increased potential
for devastating wildfires. An increase in insect infestation can be a particularly damaging impact
from severe drought conditions.

The U.S. Drought Monitor product utilizes several indices along with data retrieved from various
organizations and personnel directly involved in the field to create a graphical assessment of
drought conditions. The five drought intensities or classifications offered by the authors of this
product are: DO Abnormally Dry, D1 Moderate Drought, D2 Severe Drought, D3 Extreme

5-9




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Drought and D4 Exceptional Drought. The National Weather Service in Reno will issue Drought
Information Statements and brief water resource partners during periods of drought.

3.2.3.2 History

Increased wildfire risk, water shortages and an anomalous insect infestation have all been
attributed to recent droughts. Storey County has experienced 6 drought periods of Drought
Monitor classification D1 or higher since 2000, including the current drought. Maximum
intensity of these droughts ranged from severe (D2) to extreme (D3) and averaged 16 months in
duration. The longest drought in the period of record was from January 2007 to October 2010 —
45 months. The last two droughts have been the longest and most extreme since 2000. There is
no regular pattern to drought occurrences in the county, though there have been long periods
without drought, most notably the wet years of 2005-2006. It should be noted the ongoing
drought starting in 2012 has resulted in a USDA Drought Disaster Area Declaration for much of
Nevada. Storey County is considered a “Contiguous County” in this declaration.

Following is a list of recent drought periods extracted from data supplied by the U.S. Drought
Meonitor.

Table 5-5: Droughts in Nevada

Drought Period Duration of Drought Maximum Intensity
3 April 2001 — 19 Mar 2002 11 months Extreme (D3)
28 May 2002 — 24 Dec 2002 7 months Severe (D2)
11 Feb 2003 — 30 Dec 2003 10 months Severe (D2)
13 Apr 2004 — 18 Jan 2005 9 months Extreme (D3)
23 Jan 2007 — 12 Oct 2010 45 months Extreme (D3)
3 Jan 2012 — ongoing 16 months Extreme (D3)

5.2.3.3 Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

Droughts are a naturally-occurring cyclical part of the climate and Storey County is highly
susceptible to periods of dry conditions and drought. Based on recent cycles, Storey County can
expect highly varying degrees and durations of drought to ocour. The recently released
Southwest Climate Assessment report indicated that drought severity has increased across the
Southwest U.S., including Nevada, and that the trend is likely to continue.

5-10




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Figure 5-1 Nevada Drought Severity

D2 Drought — Severe

March 15, 2011 March 11, 2014

Statistics type: Traditional (D0-D4, D1-D4, etc.) € Categorical (DO, D1, etc.)

3/15/2011 89.83 1017 0 0 0 0

3/11/2014 6 100 99.32 72.95 33.48 5.37

http://droughtmonitor.unl.edu/MapsAndData/W. eeklyComparison.aspx

5-11




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

524 Earthquake

5241 Nature

An earthquake is a sudden motion or trembling caused by a release of strain accumulated within
or along the edge of the earth’s tectonic plates. The effects of an earthquake can be felt far
beyond the site of its occurrence. Earthquakes usually occur without warning and, after just a
few seconds, can cause massive damage and extensive casualties. The most common effect of
earthquakes is ground motion, or the vibration or shaking of the ground during an earthquake.

The severity of ground motion generally increases with the amount of energy released and
decreases with distance from the fault or epicenter of the earthquake. Ground motion causes
waves in the earth’s interior, also known as seismic waves, and along the earth’s surface, known
as surface waves. There are two kinds of seismic waves. P (primary) waves are longitudinal or
compressional waves similar in character to sound waves that cause back-and-forth oscillation

_ along the direction of travel (vertical motion). S (secondary) waves, also known as shear waves,
are slower than P waves and cause structures to vibrate from side to side (horizontal motion).
There are also two kinds of surface waves: Raleigh waves and Love waves. These waves travel
more slowly and typically are significantly less damaging than seismic waves.

In addition to ground motion, several secondary hazards can occur from earthquakes, such as
surface faulting. Surface faulting is the differential movement of two sides of a fault at the
earth’s surface. Displacement along faults, both in terms of length and width, varies but can be
significant (e.g., up to 20 feet), as can the length of the surface rupture (e.g., up to 200 miles).
Surface faulting can cause severe damage to linear structures including raitways, highways,
pipelines, and tunnels.

Earthquake-related ground failure due to liquefaction is another secondary hazard. Liquefaction
occurs when seismic waves pass through saturated granular soil, distorting its granular structure
and causing some of the empty spaces between granules to collapse. Porewater pressure may
also increase sufficiently to cause the soil to behave like a fluid for a brief period and cause
deformations. Liquefaction causes lateral spreads (horizontal movements of commonly 10 to 15
feet, but up to 100 feet), flow failures (massive flows of soil, typically hundreds of feet, but up to
12 miles), and loss of bearing strength (soil deformations causing structures to settle or tip).
Liquefaction can cause severe damage to property.

The effects of earthquake waves at the surface can be measured using the Modified Mercalli
Intensity (MMI) Scale, which consists of arbitrary rankings based on observed effects, or the
Richter Magnitude Scale, a mathematical basis that expresses the effects of an event in
magnitude (M).

5.24.2 History

Nevada is ranked third in the states having the highest number of large earthquakes. The Sierra
Nevada-Great Basin seismic belt includes earthquakes along the eastern side of the Sierra
Nevada and appears to be a northern continuation of the Eastern California seismic belt. The

5-12




SECTIONFTIVE Hazard Analysis

Central Nevada seismic belt, shown on the map below, which trends north-south in the west-
central part of the state, includes the largest historic earthquakes in Nevada in the 20® century.
the County sits within both belts.

The figure below provides the historical earthquakes in the County.

Figure 5-2

Source: NBMG 2010

5.24.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

The location of damage from an earthquake would have the greatest impact in Virginia City with the
highest population density and historical structures many of which are unreinforced masonry. The
figure below provides a map of the major faults n the County. The map in Appendix B, Figure B-6
shows greater detail of the fault lines in the County.

5-13




SECTIONFIVE

Hazard Rnalysis

Figure 5-3: Major Faults Storey County

Ll

{1} Active faults ocour :neariy
everywhere in Nevada,
including Storey County.

Source: NBMG 2010 hiip.//www.nbmg unr.edw/Pubs/m/ml67/m167.pdf
Figure 5-4 Comstock Fault

The Comstock Fault, along which the Comstock Lode formed
14 million years ago, has moved during the last 1.8 million years
and is therefore an earthguake hazard.

—
COMETOOK s

LODE i

‘E; Asidex Con pr

§ Sy Wirgnic CE =
: L Shut.  uens. ——

aiotm y

ol 3

o

5-14




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Rnalysis

The Nevada Earthquake Safety Council, in part through the services of the Nevada Bureau of
Mines and Geology (NGMG) and the Nevada Seismological laboratory, provides assistance of
Earthquake risk assessment and earthquake mitigation activities for the State of Nevada. The
Hazard Mitigation Steering Committee will utilize the Nevada Earthquake Risk Mitigation Plan
(NERMP) for consideration in identifying Storey County Policy and mitigation Strategies.

The Executive Summary of the NERMP states that Nevada is earthquake country, ranking third
in the nation in the number of major earthquakes. Since the 1850s, 62 earthquakes have occurred
in Nevada that have had potentially destructive magnitudes of 5.5 (Richter Scale) or greater.
Nevada is a national leader in population growth, and the risk of harm and loss from earthquakes
increases proportionally with population and development. We can expect earthquakes to
continue to occur in Nevada and some of these will strike our growing urban centers and
communities.

“The occurrence rates of major historical earthquakes in western Nevada produced 1 % to 7

times higher probabilities of having a major earthquake than estimates based on instrumental
seismicity and geological data sets.” NBMG Open-File Report 03-3, Nevada Bureau of Mines
and Geology, 2009. The extent & probability for the entire County is shown in the figure below
was provided by the Nevada Bureau of Mines & Geology and is the probability of earthquakes of
various magnitudes occurring within 50 years within 50 kilometers.

Table 5-6: Earthquake Probabili

. 3rd highest |

Virginia .

City in the state
of NV

Source: Bureau of Mines & Geology, UNR, Estimated Losses from Earthquakes Near NV Communities, 2009

5-15




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

525 Epidemic

5.2.5.1 Nature

A discase is a pathological (unhealthy or ill) condition of a living organism or part of the
organism that is characterized by an identifiable group of symptoms or signs. Disease can affect
any living organism, including people, animals, and plants. Disease can both directly (via
infection) and indirectly (via secondary impacts) harm these living things. Some infections can
cause disease in both people and animals, The major concern here is an epidemic, a disease that
affects an unexpected number of people or sentinel animals at one time. (Note: an epidemic can
result from even one case of illness if that illness is unheard of in the affected population, i.e.,
smallpox)

Of great concern for human health are infectious diseases caused by the entry and growth of
microorganisms in man. Most, but not all, infectious diseases are communicable. They can be
spread by coming into direct contact with someone infected with the disease, someone in a
carrier state who is not sick at the time, or another living organism that carries the pathogen.
Disease-producing organisms can also be spread by indirect contact with something a contagious
person or other carrier has touched and contaminated, like a tissue or doorknob, or another
medium (e.g., water, air, food)..

According to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), during the first half of the
twentieth century, optimism grew as steady progress was made against infectious diseases in
humans via improved water quality and sanitation, antibiotics, and inoculations (October 1998).
The incidences and severity of infectious diseases such as tuberculosis, typhoid fever, smallpox,
polio, whooping cough, and diphtheria were all significantly reduced during this period. This
optimism proved premature, however, for a variety of reasons, including the following:
antibiotics began to lose their effectiveness against infectious disease (e.g., Staphylococcus
aureus); new strains of influenza emerged in China and spread rapidly around the globe; sexually
transmitted diseases resurged; new diseases were identified in the U.S. and elsewhere (e.g.,
Legionnaires’s disease, Lyme disease, toxic shock syndrome, and Ebola hemorrhagic fever);
acquired immunodeficiency syndrome (AIDS) appeared; and tuberculosis (including multidrug-
resistant strains) reemerged (CDC, October 1998).

In a 1992 report titled Emerging Infections: Microbial Threats to Health in the United States, the
Institute of Medicine (IOM) identified the growing links between U.S. and international health,
and concluded that emerging infections are a major and growing threat to U.S. health. An
emerging infectious disease is one that has newly appeared in a population or that has been
known for some time, but is rapidly increasing in incidence or geographical range. Emerging
infectious diseases are a product of modern demographic and environmental conditions, such as
global travel, globalization and centralized processing of the food supply, population growth and
increased urbanization.

In response to the threat of emerging infectious diseases, the CDC launched a national effort to
protect the US public in a plan titled Addressing Emerging Infectious Disease Threats. Based on
the CDC’s plan, major improvements to the US health system have been implemented, including

5-16




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

improvements in surveillance, applied research, public health infrastructure, and prevention of
emerging infectious diseases (CDC, October 1998).

Despite these improvements, infectious diseases are the leading cause of death in humans
worldwide and the third leading cause of death in humans in the U.S. (American Society for
Microbiology, June 21, 1999). A recent follow-up report from the Institute of Medicine, titled
Microbial Threats to Health: Emergence, Detection, and Response, notes that the impact of
infectious diseases on the U.S. has only grown in the last ten years and that public health and
medical communities remain inadequately prepared. Further improvements are necessary to
prevent, detect, and control emerging, as well as resurging, microbial threats to health. The
dangers posed by infectious diseases are compounded by other important trends: the continuing
increase in antimicrobial resistance; the diminished capacity of the U.S. to recognize and respond
to microbial threats; and the intentional use of biological agents to do harm (Institute of
Medicine, 2003).

The CDC has established a national list of over 50 nationally reportable diseases. A reportable
disease is one that, by law, must be reported by health providers to report to federal, state or local
public health officials. Reportable diseases are those of public interest by reason of their
communicability, severity, or frequency. The long list includes such diseases as the following:
AIDS; anthrax; botulism; cholera; diphtheria; encephalitis; gonorrhea; Hantavirus pulmonary
syndrome; hepatitis (A, B, C); HIV (pediatric); Legionellosis; Lyme disease; malaria; measles;
mumps; plague; polio (paralytic); rabies (animal and human); Rocky Mountain spotted fever;
rubella (also congenital); Salmonellosis; SARS; Streptococcal disease (Group A); Streptococcal
toxic-shock syndrome; Streptococcus pneumoniae (drug resistant); syphilis (also congenital);
tetanus; Toxic-shock syndrome; Trichinosis, tuberculosis, Typhoid fever; and Yellow fever
(Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, May 2, 2003).

Many other hazards, such as floods, earthquakes or droughts, may create conditions that
significantly increase the frequency and severity of diseases. These hazards can affect basic
services (e.g., water supply and quality, wastewater disposal, electricity), the availability and
quality of food, and the public and agricultural health system capacities. As a result, concentrated
areas of diseases may result and, if not mitigated right away, increase, potentially leading to large
losses of life and damage to the economic value of the area’s goods and services.

5.25.2 History

The influenza pandemic of 1918 and 1919, known as the Spanish Flu, had the highest mortality
rate in recent history for an infectious disease. More than 20 million persons were killed
worldwide, some 500,000 of which were in the U.S. alone (Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, October 1998). More recent incidences of major infectious diseases affecting people
in the U.S. include the following:

* HINI, an influenza strain that was first recognized in Mexico and entered the US in
Southern California in April 2009. HINI was recognized as a world wide pandemic by
the World Health Organization in May 2009. The CDC graph below illustrates the
number of office visits due to the flu and demonstrates how easily the US medical system
can be overwhelmed by a pandemic.

5-17




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Figure 5-5: Percentage of Visits for Influenza-like Illness (ILI)

% of Visits for L1

404244 46485052 1 3 5 7 4 11131617 192123 BT W3 RIB/BITHR
Week

{ st 200607 —o—2007-08° =mar—72008.09 —0——2009-10 = ~ = National Baseline |

"Thare was ho week 53 during the 2006-07 or 2007.08 influenza seasons, thersfore the week 53 data point for those seasons is an sverage of weeks 52 ang 1.

Source: U.S. Outpatient Influenza-like lliness Surveillance Network (ILINet), National Summary 2008-2009 and
Previous Two Seasons (Posted October 16, 2009, 7:30 PM ET, for Week Ending Qctober 10, 2009)

HINTI varies from other influenzas in that it doesn’t seem to affect populations born after
1950 due to that group’s immunity to a similar strain. The CDC has taken an aggressive
approach to this highly contagious strain and is in the process of inoculating the US
public through vaccinations. Although HINT has a less than 1% mortality rate due to the
high contagion rate this could lead to a significantly higher than normal number of deaths

for the 2009-2010 flu season. (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, October
2009)

*  West Nile Virus (WNYV), a seasonal infection transmitted by mosquitoes, caused an
epidemic which grew from an initial U.S. outbreak of 62 disease cases in 1999 to 4,156
reported cases, including 284 deaths, in 2002. However due to communities® aggressive
approach to mosquito control the number of cases dropped to 1356 with 44 deaths in
2008 (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, October 2009).

= Severe acute respiratory syndrome (SARS), which is estimated to have killed 774 and
infected 8,098 worldwide. In the U.S., there were 175 suspect cases and 8 confirmed
cases all who traveled to other parts of the world, although no reported deaths (Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention, October 2009).

* Norovirus - CDC estimates that 23 million cases of acute gastroenteritis are due to
norovirus infection, and it is now thought that at least 50% of all food borne outbreaks of
gastroenteritis can be attributed to noroviruses (Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, October 2009).

5-18




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

= Escherichia coli (abbreviated as E. coli) are a large and diverse group of bacteria. Although
most strains of E. cofi are harmless, others can make you sick. Some kinds of E. coli can
cause diarrhea, while others cause urinary tract infections, respiratory illness and
pneumonia, and other ilinesses. Experts think that there may be about 70,000 infections
with E. coff O157 each year in the United States. (Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention, October 2009).

Figure 5-6: States Where Persons Infected with the Outbreak Strain of E. coli O157:H7,
Live United States, by State March 1, 2009 to June 22, 2009

Storey
County

\

A\

2] State with 2 1 case

Centers for Disease Control; hitp://www.cdc.goviecoli/

Table 5-7: Historic Occurrences of Epidemics Registered in Nevada

Februa Cholera outbreak confirmed. At least 26 passengers from Aerolineas Argentinas Flight 386 that brought

1992 Y | acholera outbreak to Los Angeles traveled on to Las Vegas, where 10 showed symptoms of the
disease. Cholera or cholera-like symptoms developed in 67 passengers of Flight 386.

Sorin Five cases of the measles confirmed. Outbreak identified and confirmed, Clark County Health District

28009 (CCHD) Office of Epidemiology {OOE) worked with the Immunization Clinic and the media to alert the
community about the prevention of the spread of the disease.

October Noravirus confirmed at a major public accommodation facility on the Strip. Details regarding the spread

2004 of this disease and the exact number affected are still under investigation and pending at time of print of
this plan.

Aoril 2009 H1N1 virus confirmed by the WHO as a worldwide epidemic. The CDC conducted a vaccination

P program fo contain this virus.

5-19




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.25.3  Extent and Probability of Future Events

The probability and magnitude of disease occurrence, particularly an epidemic, is difficult to
evaluate due to the wide variation in disease characteristics, such as rate of spread, morbidity and
mortality, detection and response time, and the availability of vaccines and other forms of
prevention. A review of the historical record (see above) indicates that discase related disasters
do occur in humans with some regularity and varying degrees of severity. There is growing
concern, however, about emerging infectious diseases as well as the possibility of a bioterrorism
attack.

Epidemics constitute a significant risk to the population of Nevada, particularly as it relates to
the frequency in which the Storey County population interacts with visitors to Virginia City and
the proximity of Las Vegas and Reno’s tourist population. Of highest concem is in the Reno
area, in various entertainment venues, and Reno/Tahoe International Airport. The transient
nature of the Washoe County population, coupled with dense population gatherings increase the
potential for an epidemic as well as for its spread into neighboring counties such as Storey.
However the planning committee considers the probability to be low considering the counties
small population and remote location.

5.2. 54  Location

An epidemic in the County would affect a regional response requiring coordination among
Walker River Tribal Health Clinic, Hawthorne Army Depot, neighboring counties, state and
federal agencies. Segments of the population at highest risk for contracting an illness from a
foreign pathogen are the very young, the elderly, or individuals who currently experience
respiratory or immune deficiencies. These segments of the population are present within the
County.

3.25.5 Warning Time

Due to the wide variation in disease characteristics, the warning time for a disease disaster can
vary from no time to months, depending upon the nature of the disease. No warning time may be
available due to an extremely contagious disease with a short incubation period, particularly if
combined with a terrorist attack in a crowded environment. However, there are agencies in place
that have capabilities to prevent, detect, and respond to these types of diseases, such as the
Centers for Disease Control (CDC), and the Nevada State Health Division (NSHD). This
provides a positive, balancing influence to the overall outcome of a disease disaster event.

5-20




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.2.6 Flood

5.2.6.1 Nature

Flooding as defined by the National Flood Insurance Program is “A general and temporary
condition of partial or complete inundation of two or more acres of normally dry land area or of
two or more properties from:

» Overflow of inland or tidal waters;
* Unusual and rapid accumulation or runoff of surface waters from any source;

* Mudflow, (a river of liquid and flowing mud on the surfaces of normally dry land areas,
as when earth is carried by a current of water, or

* Collapse or subsidence of land along the shore of a lake or similar body of water as a
result of erosion or undermining caused by waves or currents of water exceeding
anticipated cyclical levels that result in a flood as defined above.

Floodplains are lowlands adjacent to water bodies that are subject to recurring floods. Floods are
natural events that are considered hazards only when people and property are affected.

Nationwide, floods result in more deaths than any other natural hazard. Physical damage from
floods includes the following:

Inundation of structures, causing water damage to structural elements and contents.

Erosion or scouring of stream banks, roadway embankments, foundations, footings for bridge
piers, and other features.

Impact damage to structures, roads, bridges, culverts, and other features from high-velocity
flow and from debris carried by floodwaters. Such debris may also accumulate on bridge
piers and in culverts, increasing loads on these features or causing overtopping or backwater
effects.

Destruction of crops, erosion of topsoil, and deposition of debris and sediment on croplands.

Release of sewage and hazardous or toxic materials as wastewater treatment plants are
inundated, storage tanks are damaged, and pipelines are severed.

Floods also cause economic losses through closure of businesses and government facilities;
disrupt communications; disrupt the provision of utilities such as water and sewer service; result
in excessive expenditures for emergency response; and generally disrupt the normal function of a
community.

In Storey, flooding is most commonly associated with unusually heavy rainfall in the State of
Nevada and can be influenced by both frontal systems out of the Northem Pacific Ocean and
tropical storms coming from the South. Due to the aridity of the County, the area is dry except
during and shortly after these storms. When a major storm develops, water collects rapidly in a
short period of time. As a consequence, flows are of the flash-flood type. Flash floods are

3-21




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

generally understood to involve a rapid rise in water level, high velocity, and large amounts of
debris, which can lead to significant damage that includes the uprooting of trees, undermining of
buildings and bridges, and scouring of new channels. The intensity of flash flooding is a function
of the intensity and duration of rainfall, steepness of the watershed, stream gradients, watershed
vegetation, natural and artificial flood storage areas, and configuration of the streambed and
floodplain.

In areas where alluvial fans are present, the flow paths of flash floods lack definition. Flow
depths with alluvial fan flooding are generally shallow with damage resulting from inundation,
variable flow paths, locatized scour, and the deposition of debris.

Canal and Dam Failures

Dam or canal failures involve unintended releases or surges of impounded water resuiting in
downstream flooding. The high-velocity, debris-laden wall of water released from dam failures
results in the potential for human casualties, economic loss, lifeline disruption, and
environmental damage. Failures may involve either the total collapse of a dam, or other
hazardous situations such as damaged spillways, overtopping from prolonged rainfall, or
unintended consequences from normal operations. Severe storms with unusually high amounts of
rainfall within a drainage basin, earthquakes, or landslides may cause or increase the severity of
the failure.

Factors causing failure may include natural or human-caused events, or a combination of both.
Darm failures usually occur when the spillway capacity is inadequate and water overtops the dam.
Piping, when internal crosion through the dam foundation occurs, 18 another factor in a dam
failure. Structural deficiencies from poor initial design or construction, lack of maintenance or
repair, or gradual weakening from aging are factors that contribute to this hazard.

5.2.6.2  History

Flooding has occurred from November through March as a result of rain on frozen ground or on
snow. According to the 1993 FEMA Flood Insurance Study, severe flooding along the Truckee
River occurred during the following years: January 1874; January 1875; January 1886; April-
May 1890; February 1904; and February 1963. Most recently, the County received a Presidential
Declaration for severe storms and flooding along the Truckee River for the incident period of
December 31, 2005 to January 4, 2006.

Historical flash flooding are shown below.

3/10/1995 Rainbow Bend A flash flood down Long Valley Creek in Storey County flooded
subdivision and Six the Rainbow Bend subdivision and washed out three bridges over

Mile Canyon the creek. The water main to the subdivision was also washed

out. The subdivision was evacuated. Also, Six Mile Canyon,

between Virginia City and US Highway 50 was closed due to

flash flooding.
2/3/1996 Lockwood area Lockwood in northern Storey County hardest hit; two bridges
were washed out, stranding several people in their homes.
6/29/2000 Geiger Grade Storey County Sheriff reported boulders washed onto Geiger

5-22




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Grade (State Route 341) and lots of hail.

8/2/2002 Virginia City Highlands Heavy downpours caused flash flooding in the Virginia City
Highlands. In 20 minutes, 1.23 inches of rain fell, washing out
roads and delaying the transport of fire equipment,

8/14/2004 Patrick area Heavy rainfall left 6 inches of water covering part of I-80 3 miles
east-northeast of Patrick. The Tracy Clark exit was impassable.
7/19/2006 Between Lockwood Heavy rainfall caused flash flooding along 1-80 between
and Patrick Lockwood and Patrick. Minor mudslides left 4 to 5 inches of

debris on roads in the area.

Dam & Canal Failure

There have been no Federal declarations for Storey County as a result of dam, ditch, or retention
basin failure. However, there have been Federal declarations in adjacent Washoe County due to
flooding events associated with the Truckee River Trrigation Ditch which flows approximately 25
miles through Storey County.

5.2.6.3 Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

Floods are described in terms of their extent (including the horizontal area affected and the
vertical depth of floodwaters) and the related probability of occurrence. Flood studies often use
historical records, such as stream flow gages, to determine the probability of occurrence for
tloods of different magnitudes. The probability of occurrence is expressed as a percentage for the
chance of a flood of a specific extent occurring in any given year.

Factors contributing to the frequency and severity of flooding include the following:
» Rainfall intensity and duration
e Antecedent moisture conditions

e Watershed conditions, including steepness of terrain, soil types, amount and type of
vegetation, and density of development

¢ The existence of attenuating features in the watershed, including natural features such as
swamps and lakes and human-built features such as dams

¢ The existence of flood control features, such as levees and flood control channels
¢ Velocity of flow

» Availability of sediment for transport, and the erodibility of the bed and banks of the
watercourse

These factors are evaluated using (1) a hydrologic analysis to determine the probability that a
discharge of a certain size will occur, and (2) a hydraulic analysis to determine the characteristics
and depth of the flood that results from that discharge.

The magnitude of flood used as the standard for floodplain management in the United States is a
flood having a 1 percent probability of occurrence in any given year. This flood is also known as
the 100-year flood or base flood. The most readily available source of information regarding the
100-year flood is the system of Flood Insurance Rate Maps (FIRMs) prepared by FEMA. These

5-23




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

maps are used to support the National Flood Insurance Program (NFIP). The FIRMs show 100-
year floodplain boundaries for identified flood hazards. These areas are also referred to as
Special Flood Hazard Areas (SFHAs) and are the basis for flood insurance and floodplain
management requirements. The FIRMSs also show floodplain boundaries for the 500-year flood,
which is the flood having a 0.2 percent chance of occurrence in any given year. FEMA has
prepared a FIRM for Storey County, dated 2009. The 100-year floodplain was used the flood
map, see Appendix B and which uses the 100-year flood as a basis and provides the arcas
susceptible to flood.

As shown in Appendix B, the principal source of flooding in Storey County is the Truckee River.
The Truckee River is located along the northern border between Storey and Washoe Counties.
Although the Truckee River generates a damaging flood roughly every ten years, the damage is
usually in Washoe County. However, on those occasions when the damage flows into Storey
County, residential and business structures near Lockwood are affected. The River runs through
Storey County approximately 25 miles. The Largomarasino Canyon Creek is also a source of
flooding during heavy rain fall. The FIS recommends that development in this area should be
regulated. In 1997 and 2005 Storey County has had a Federal declaration for flooding occurring
in this area. In the southern portion of the County flooding is mapped in the Six Mile Canyon
area.

Flash Flood

Flash floods have generally occurred along the Truckee River, affecting the communities of
Lockwood and Patrick, causing minor mudslides and leaving 4 to 5 inches of debris on roads in
the arca as well as washing out several bridges over the years. In the southern portion of the
County, flash floods have occurred down Long Valley Creck affecting the Rainbow Bend
subdivision/Six-Mile Canyon area, washing out bridges and the water main for the subdivision,
which required that the subdivision be evacuated. Flash floods have occurred in the Geiger
Grade (the main road into Virginia City) where boulders were washed onto the road, and in the
Virginia City Highlands area where in 20 minutes, 1.23 inches of rain fell, washing out roads and
delaying the transport of fire equipment. Based on previous occurrences, Storey County can
expect to experience a damaging flash flood every two years.

Dam Failure

The Nevada Division of Water Resources lists 5 dams in Storey County. Of these dams, 1 is
considered “high hazard,” 1 is considered “significant hazard,” and 3 are considered “low
hazard.” A high-hazard designation is assigned to a dam if there is reasonable potential for loss
of life and/or excessive economic loss. A significant designation is given when there is no
reasonable potential for loss of life, but there is potential for appreciable economic loss. Lastly, a
low-hazard designation is assigned when there is no reasonable potential for loss of life and the
economic loss 15 minor. The ratings provided by the Nevada Division of Water Resources do not
reflect the safety or condition of the dam; the ratings are determined at the time the dam design
plans are reviewed. The hazard rating may be altered when downstream conditions change.

The high-hazard dam is privately owned and not considered to pose a significant threat to life or
property and is owned by the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center located approximately 7 miles east of
the Reno-Sparks area on 1-80.

5-24




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.2.7 Hazardous Materials Events

5.2.7.1 Nature

Hazardous materials may include hundreds of substances that pose a significant risk to humans.
These substances may be highly toxic, reactive, corrosive, flammable, radioactive, or infectious.
Hazard materials are regulated by numerous Federal, State, and local agencies including the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA), U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT), National
Fire Protection Association, FEMA, U.S. Army, and International Maritime Organization.

Hazardous material releases may occur from any of the following:

» Fixed site facilities (such as refineries, chemical plants, storage facilities, manufacturing,
warehouses, wastewater treatment plants, swimming pools, dry cleaners, automotive
sales/repair, and gas stations)

e Highway and rail transportation (such as tanker trucks, chemical trucks, and railroad tankers)
e Air transportation (such as cargo packages)
¢ Pipeline transportation (liquid petroleum, natural gas, and other chemicals)

Unless exempted, facilities that use, manufacture, or store hazardous materials in the United
States fall under the regulatory requirements of the Emergency Planning and Community Right
to Know Act (EPCRA) of 1986, enacted as Title III of the Federal Superfund Amendments and
Reauthorization Act (42 USC 11001-11050; 1988). Under EPCRA regulations, hazardous
materials that pose the greatest risk for causing catastrophic emergencies are identified as
Extremely Hazardous Substances (EHSs). These chemicals are identified by the EPA in the Lisz
of Lists - Consolidated List of Chemicals Subject to the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) and Section 112 of the Clean Air Act. Releases of EHSs can occur
during transport to and from fixed site facilities. Transportation-related releases are generally
more troublesome because they may occur anywhere, including close to human populations,
critical facilities, or sensitive environmental areas. Transportation-related EHS releases are also
more difficult to mitigate due to the variability of locations and distance from response
resources.

In addition to accidental human-caused hazardous material events, natural hazards may cause the
release of hazardous materials and complicate response activities. The impact of earthquakes on
fixed facilities may be particularly serious due to the impairment or failure of the physical
integrity of containment facilities. The threat of any hazardous material event may be magnified
due to restricted access, reduced fire suppression and spill containment, and even complete cut-
off of response personnel and equipment. In addition, the risk of tetrorism involving hazardous
materials is considered a major threat due to the location of hazardous material facilities and
transport routes throughout communities and the frequently limited antiterrorism security at
these facilities.

5-25




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Rnalysis

On behalf of several Federal agencies including the EPA and the DOT, the National Response
Center (NRC) serves as the point of contact for reporting oil, chemical, radiological, biolo gical,
and etiological discharges into the environment within the United States.

8.27.2 History

During the past 10 years (July 1999 to July 2009), the following events in Storey County have
been reported to the National Response Center.

¢ Two storage tank spills

e Two fixed facilities

* Two mobile releases

e Two pipeline releases

e Three railroad non-releases

The Nevada Division of Environmental Protection report-shows the following large oil and
chemical spills have occurred within Storey County from July 2009 to December 2013.

Table 5-9: Hazardous Material Release in County

McCarren 6/2212011 Hydrochloric | 100 Gallons from chemical hose with leak.

Acid
McCarren 1232013 Pre- 30,000 galions was released from a building products

Treatment ; manufacturer fo storm drains and soit from break in pipe
Water fitting.

Virginfa City 8/1/2013 Cyanide 29 cubic yards released to soif of combination of ore and
Solution process solution from the heap leach pad due to
oversaiuration. Mining

Virginia city 10/21/2013 Cyanide 8 cubic yards leached into soil from overtopping. Mining
Solufion
TRI 8/31/14 Muriatic Acid | 200 gallon spill at plant.

Source: NV Division of Environmental Protsclion

9.27.3  Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events

In Storey County, a hazardous materials event is most likely to occur along the major
transportation corridors, including State Route 341, the Geiger Grade, 1-80, and railroad tracks.
Trucks and rail cars that use these transportation corridors and railroad tracks commonly carry a
variety of hazardous materials, including gasoline and other petroleum products, along with other
chemicals known to cause human health problems. A growing concern for the possibility of
hazardous material releases is from any number of businesses located at the Tahoe-Reno
Industrial Development (TRI) in McCarran just south of I-80. In the early stages of construction
a fire station was built and is currently operational at the TRI complex. The Virginia City area
has seen a rebirth in mining activity which makes the area at risk to mining hazardous materials
releases.

5-26




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

Comprehensive information on the probability and magnitude of a hazardous material event
along the transportation corridors is not available. Wide variations among the characteristics of
hazardous material sources and among the materials themselves make suich an evaluation
difficult. Only one of the two mobile releases and three railroad releases over the past 10 years
involved a hazardous material. As such, based on previous experience, Storey County is
susceptible to a mobile hazardous material event every 10 years,

5-27




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

528 Severe Weather

5.2.8.1 Nature

While a considerable percentage of days in the region are characterized by tranquil weather — a
number of high-impact severe weather types can occur. Low-frequency weather hazards can be
particularly problematic from a preparedness standpoint due to complacency and people’s lack of
experience with the phenomenon.

The following starts with impacts from summer thunderstorms, transitioning into snow and wind
from winter storms. Storey County faces additional weather hazards (e.g. dust storms, rare weak
tornadoes) but the following are the most prominent with the highest economic and societal tolls.

Thunderstorms - Hail

Nature: Hail forms on condensation nuclei such as dust or ice crystals, when supercooled water
freczes on contact. In clouds containing large numbers of supercooled water droplets, these ice
nuclei grow quickly at the expense of the liquid droplets. The hail grows increasingly larger.
Once a hailstone becomes too heavy to be supported by the storm’s updraft it falls out of the
cloud. Hail is most common in mid-latitudes during spring and early summer where surface
temperatures are warm enough to promote the instability associated with strong thunderstorms,
but the upper atmosphere is still cool enough to support ice. Hailstones are usually from the size
of a pea to the size of a golf ball. The National Weather Service in Reno issues Severe
Thunderstorm Warnings for thunderstorms capable of producing high winds (above 58 mph)
and/or large hail (above 1 inch diameter).

History: Large hail is relatively rare in Nevada. The NOAA National Climatic Data Center
(NCDC) has records of 1 large hail event in Storey County since 2000. This one event recorded
“slushy” hail up to baseball size, 2.75 inch diameter, in June of 2005. There have not been any
deaths or injuries associated with this recorded hail event or any reportable damages. It should be
noted that often thunderstorms are the most common over high terrain and other remote areas of
Nevada - leading to minimal actual reports of severe weather.

Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events: Storey County is susceptible to hail events
although it is infrequent. The single report noted above is an extreme event, and Storey County is
more likely to see hail size on the order of % to 1 inch in diameter which typically results in
minimal damage. Based on previous occurrences in nearby counties, Storey County can expect a
large hail event to occur on the order of every 2 to 4 years.

Thunderstorms - High Winds & Lightning

Nature: Thunderstorms are formed from a combination of moisture, rapidly rising warm air, and
a force capable of lifting air, such as warm and cold fronts or a mountain. Thunderstorms may
occur alone, in clusters, or in lines. As a result, it is possible for several thunderstorms to affect
one location in the course of a few hours. A thunderstorm can produce lightning, thunder, and
torrential rainfall and may also lead to the formation of tornados, hail, downbursts, and

5-28




SECTIONFIVE | Hazard Analysis

microbursts of wind. Focusing on the wind threat from thunderstorms - downbursts are strong,
straight-line winds created by falling rain and sinking rain that may reach speeds of 125 mph.
Microbursts are more concentrated than downbursts, with speeds reaching up to 150 mph. Both
downbursts and microbursts typically last 5 to 7 minutes. The National Weather Service in Reno
issues Severe Thunderstorm Warnings for thunderstorms capable of producing high winds
(above 58 mph) and/or large hail (above 1 inch diameter).

History: Strong winds from thunderstorms are fairly common in Nevada, producing wind gusts
above 40 mph, with gusts above 60 mph possible. With that being said there are no thunderstorm
high wind or lightning damage reports in Storey County since 2000 in the NCDC database.
Lightning is a common factor in new wildfire starts in Nevada, though no specific information is
available for Storey County. As noted before, often thunderstorms are the most common over
high terrain and other remote areas of Nevada - leading to minimal actual reports of severe
weather and lightning.

~ Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events: Thunderstorms in Storey County tend to

favor the high terrain, including the Virginia Range. Thunderstorm activity which would produce
high winds and/or significant lightning generally occurs from June through August. During this
timeframe it is not unusual to experience thunderstorm activity on a daily basis for up to a week
at a time. In an average year 2-4 severe thunderstorm warnings for high winds are issued for
portions of Storey County. Severe thunderstorm warnings are not issued solely for significant
amounts of lightning, though the National Weather Service will issue Red Flag Warnings for fire
partners when widespread dry thunderstorms are expected. A map is attached showing areas of
lightening activity within the County in Appendix B.

Thunderstorms - Flash Floods

Nature; Floods are rare but extremely high impact in the Sierra Nevada and Great Basin regions.
Localized flash floods can occur in the summer, the result of intense thunderstorms producing
copious rainfall in short periods of time. Moisture from the Southwest U.S. Monsoon can
enhance the risk of flash flooding, These floods normally last on the order of an hour or two but
can still result in major impacts and damage. The National Weather Service in Reno issues Flash
Flood Warnings when flash flooding is likely based on radar estimates of rainfall or has been
reported from law enforcement or a spotter.

History: Fortunately flash flooding events in Storey County are rare, but when they do happen
they create a high impact. Since 2000 there have been 5 instances of flash flooding in the
summer. Most have taken place in August. The most recent event occurred in August 2010
where thunderstorms producing heavy rainfall resulted in a mudslide that derailed the V&T train
near Gold Hill,

Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events: Based on past frequencies, flash flooding

from thunderstorms in the summer can occur about every 1-2 years. Narrow canyons and low
lying areas along roads are the most prone to flash flooding. Recently burned areas are especially
prone to flash flooding and debris flows — which can result in significant damage to property.

Winter Storms — Heavy Snow

It is important to note that county-level storm data are not available for this phenomenon,
therefore this analysis uses NWS forecast zone data. Forecast zones are geographic areas of

5-29




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

stmilar weather features NWS groups together to produce forecasts. Storey County is within the
zone that covers the immediate lee of the Sierra or “Sierra Front™. For reference, a map of that
zone 1s provided at the end of the severe weather section.

Nature: Winter snow storms are often large areas of low pressure originating from the Gulf of
Alaska and then moving into the western United States. As the moist air masses push across the
Sierra Nevada and other Great Basin mountains, the air masses cool and the water condenses as
snow. Wind in combination with the snow can cause reduced visibilities and deep snowdrifts. In
addition, heavy snow can cause avalanches in areas along steep terrain. In some instances,
freezing rain occurs, when very cold inland arctic air becomes trapped under warm moist air.
The National Weather Service in Reno issues winter storm watches/warnings/advisories for
heavy snow, and provides briefings to Emergency Managers when winter storms are forecast.

History: Since 2000 there have been 33 days where heavy snow has impacted the Sierra Front
zone, which includes Storey County. On these days, snow amounts of greater than 6-12 inches
occurred, along with other winter storm hazards such as high winds, low visibility, and cold
temperatures. Localized lake effect snows downwind of Pyramid Lake can produce heavy snow
in eastern parts of Storey County including Interstate 80 roughly every 1 to 2 years. FEMA
Federal Disaster Declarations have been issued in the wake of several widespread winter storm
events impacting Storey County, including February 2005 and January 2008.

Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events: It is not uncommon for Storey County to

experience snow with accumulations of 1-3 inches per winter storm, which can cause travel
inconveniences but little in the way of long lasting impacts. Storms like this normally happen 3-6
times each winter season, especially above 6000 feet elevation. Larger storms, producing 6
inches or more, happen on average 2-3 times each winter season above 6000 feet; less frequently
below that elevation. Snowfall of this magnitude can impact critical transportation corridors
including Interstate 80 near the Tahoe-Reno Industrial Park and State Highway 341 leading to
Virginia City. Every few years, particularly strong storms can produce high winds along with
heavy snow creating life threatening blizzard conditions. Virginia City has an elevation of 6,200
feet; Gold Hill has an elevation of 5,843 feet; and Virginia City Highlands has an elevation of
5,990 feet. Probability is 1% per day or 3 days each year.

Winter Storms - High Winds

It is important to note that county-level storm data are not available for this phenomenon,
therefore this analysis uses NWS forecast zone data. Forecast zones are geographic areas of
similar weather features NWS groups together to produce forecasts. Storey County is within the
zone that covers the immediate lee of the Sierra or “Sierra Front”, For reference, a map of that
zone is provided at the end of the severe weather section.

Nature: The same winter storms described previously also produce periods of widespread high
winds in the Sierra Nevada and Great Basin. These winds of 40-60 mph typically precede the
snow portion of a winter storm by a day or so — and are the most common from late fall through
spring. Strong winds are the direct result of large differences in atmospheric pressure from the
storm itself and the surrounding environment. Winds can be further enhanced in localized areas
in the immediate lec of mountain ranges in what is called a downslope wind storm. Virginia City
is located in such a place. Wind gusts in these situations can exceed 80 mph, reaching nearly 100
mph in the most extreme “once-in-a-decade” events. The National Weather Service in Reno

5-30




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

issues high wind watches/warnings/advisories, and provides briefings to Emergency Managers
when high winds threaten.

History: Since 2000 there have been 59 days where high winds have impacted the Sierra Front
zone, which includes Storey County. 15 of these days had winds above 70 mph. These wind
events have been associated with damage to buildings, knocking over trees and power lines, and
overturning large vehicles.

Location, Extent, and Probability of Future Events: High wind events with gusts above 60 mph

are not uncommon in Storey County, especially along ridge tops above 6000 feet and in the
vicinity of Virginia City. In the strongest storms winds are likely to gust above 80 mph, which
can produce wind damage to structures and power infrastructure. Strong winds can also channel
through the Truckee River drainage and impact eastern regions of the county around the Tahoe-
Reno Industrial Park. Probability of a high wind day is 2% per day in each given year or 4 wind
days per year on average.

5-31



SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

529 Terrorism

5.2.9.1 Nature

The Department of Justice (DOJ) Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) defines terrorism as the
unlawful use of force or violence against persons or property to intimidate or coerce a
government and/or the civilian population in furtherance of political or social objectives.
Weapons of Mass Destruction (WMD) associated with terrorism are defined as nuclear,
biological and chemical in origin. Technological terrorism is defined as the intentional
disruption in the nation’s data control systems. Attacks on financial, business, and governmental
computer networks are being considered as technological terrorist-related acts.

The FBI is the primary investigatory agency for domestic terrorism. The Central Intelligence
Agency (CIA) monitors potential security threats from foreign sources. The DOJ through the
FBI will coordinate the domestic preparedness programs and activities of this nation to address
the threat posed by terrorists and the use of weapons of mass destruction.

Acts of terrorism may originate from a single person, special interest groups, or acts sponsored
by a foreign government. Terrorist acts include the use of arson, hostile takeovers, shootings,
biological agents (such as anthrax, plague, botulism and others), chemical agents (such as
hydrogen cyanide, sulfur mustard, sarin and chlorine), and hostage taking. The most popular
method used in recent events in the United States has been terrorism by bombing.

Conventional Explosive Devices

The easiest to obtain and use of all weapons is still a conventional explosive device, or
improvised bomb, which may be used to cause massive local destruction or to disperse chemical,
biological, or radiological agents. The components are readily available, as are detailed
instructions to construct such a device. Improvised explosive devices are categorized as being
explosive or incendiary, employing high or low filler explosive materials to explode and/or cause
fires.

Bombs and firebombs are cheap and easily constructed, involve low technology, and are the
terrorist weapon most likely to be encountered. Large, powerful devices can be outfitted with
timed or remotely triggered detonators and can be designed to be activated by light, pressure,
movement, or radio transmission. The potential exists for single or multiple bombing incidents in
single or multiple municipalities. Historically, less than five percent of actual or attempted
bombings were preceded by a threat. Explosive materials can be employed covertly with little
signature, and are not readily detectable. Secondary devices may be targeted against responders,

Nuclear Weapon/Radiological Agent Use

The difficulty of responding to a nuclear or radiological incident is compounded by the nature of
radiation itself. In an explosion, the fact that radioactive material was involved may or may not be
obvious, depending upon the nature of the explosive device used. Unless confirmed by radiological
detection equipment, the presence of a radiation hazard is difficult to ascertain. Although many
detection devices exist, most are designed to detect specific types and levels of radiation and may not

5-32




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Rnalysis

be appropriate for measuring or ruling out the presence of radiological hazards. The table below lists
some indicators of a radiological release.

General indicators of possible nuclear weapon/radiological agent use are as follows.

The scenarios constituting an intentional nuclear/radiological emergency include the following:

1. Use of an Improvised Nuclear Device (IND) includes any explosive device designed to
cause a nuclear yield. Depending on the type of trigger device used, either uranium or
plutonium isctopes can fuel these devices. While “weapons-grade” material increases the
efficiency of a given device, materials of less than weapons grade can still be used.

2. Use of a Radiological Dispersal Device (RDD) includes any explosive device utilized to
spread radioactive material upon detonation. Any improvised explosive device could be used
by placing it in close proximity to radioactive material.

3. Use of a Simple RDD that spreads radiological material without the use of an explosive. Any
nuclear material (including medical isotopes or waste) can be used in this manner.

Biological Agents

An identified terrorist tactic or weapon is the use of toxic biological agents in an attempt to harm
or intimidate the public. Anthrax, Yersinia pestis, and small pox are examples of this type of
threat. Anthrax is found naturally in the soil in some of the old ranch areas in Nevada. UNR and
the Nevada State Agriculture Labs maintain a vigilant watch of these threats.

According to information from the Nevada State Health Division, most biological agents are
naturally occurring in various parts of the world. They can be weaponized to enhance their
virulence in humans and make them resistant to vaccines and antibiotics. Weaponization of
biological agents usually involves using selective reproduction pressure or recombinant
engineering to mutate or modify the genetic composition of the agent. Terrorist may choose to
use biological weapons to achieve their goals because a very small amount can harm many
people. It is reported that many of these agents would be relatively easy to prepare and easy to
hide. The actual or threatened use of bio-weapons can have tremendous psychological impact on
the population.

5-33




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

The CIA currently lists 15 animal pathogens as having potential Biological Weapons application
that could potentially be used in a terrorist act:

African swine fever
Avian influenza
Bluetongue

Foot and Mouth Disease
Goat Pox

Monkey Pox
Pseudo-rabies

Hog cholera

Lyssa virus

Newcastle disease

Pest des petits

Swine vesicular disease
Rinderpest

Sheep pox

Porcine enteroviral encephalomyelitis
Vesicular stomatitis

Yersinia pestis is used an aerosol attack can cause cases a preumonic form of plague. One to six
days after becoming infected with the bacteria, people would develop pneumonic plague. Once
people have the disease, the bacteria can spread to others who have close contact with them.
Because of the delay between being exposed to the bacteria and becoming sick, people could
travel over a large area before becoming contagious and possibly infecting others. Controlling
the disease would then be more difficult. A biological weapon carrying Y. pestis is possible
because the bacterium occurs in nature and could be isolated and grown in quantity in a
laboratory. Even so, manufacturing an effective weapon using Y. pestis would require advanced
knowledge and technology.

Smallpox is caused by the variola virus that emerged in human populations thousands of years
ago. Except for laboratory stockpiles, the variola virus has been eliminated. However, in the
aftermath of the events of September and October, 2001, there is heightened concern that the
variola virus might be used as an agent of bioterrorism. For this reason, the US government is
taking precautions for dealing with a small pox outbreak.

Unless the agent is disseminated in an airborne or other mass contaminate methodology, the
exposures will be limited in nature. Mass distributed biologic agents could require mass
contamination and isolation. Medical responders and facilities would be stressed. Infrastructure
such as drinking water could be affected. Some critical buildings could be closed and sealed
pending decontamination if possible. Economic losses could be incurred due to lack of tourism
or if major gaming establishments were affected.

According to USDA-ARS Arthropod-Borne Animal Diseases Research Laboratory (ABADRL)
att the present time, the most economically important arthropod-borme disease of US livestock is
Bluetongue Disease (BLU). As articulated in the Journal of American Veterinary Medical
Association article, Biological Terrorism and Veterinary Medicine in the United States,

5-34




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

“Although recent reports have emphasized the need for improving the ability to detect a
biological terrorist attack on human populations, the use of veterinary services in this effort and
the potential for the targeting of livestock (e.g., horses, cattle, sheep, goats, swine, and poultry)
have been addressed only briefly. Improving surveillance for biological terrorist attacks that
target livestock and improving detection and reporting of livestock, pet, and wild animal
morbidity and mortality are important components of preparedness for a covert biological
terrorist attack.”

Chemical Agents

The table below lists those chemical agents that might be used in a terrorist attack and
categorizes them by effect.

Table. 5-10. Hazardous Chemical Agents Potentially Used in Terrorist Act

ood (Blister/Vesicants) Arsine (SA)

Cyanogen Chloride (CK)
Hydrogen Chioride
Hydrogen Cyanide {(AC)

Choking/Lung/Pulmonary Damaging

Chlorine (CL)
Diphosgene (DP})
Cyanide
Nitrogen Oxide (NO}
Perfluroisobutylene (PHIB)
Phosgene (CG)

Red Phosphorous (RP)

Sulfur Trioxide-Chlorosulfonic Acid (FS)
Teflon and Perflurcisobutylene (PHIB)
Titanium Tetrachloride (FM)

Zinc Oxide (HC)

Incapacitating (Nerve, Riot Control/Tear Gas) Bromobenzylcyanide (CA)
Chloroacetophenone (CN)
Chloropicrin (PS)

CNB - (CN in Benzene and Carbon
. Tetrachloride)
CNS — (CN and Chloropicrin in Chloroform)
CR
CS

Vomiting

Adamsite (DM)
Diphenylchloroarsing{DA)
Diphenylcyanoarsine (DC)

The State of Nevada is comprised of diverse populations that include members of nation-wide
militia organizations. The Federal government has continually released terrorism warnings since
1998 that state most communities in the United States are vulnerable to terrorist attack. The
State of Nevada Enhanced Muiti-Hazard Mitigation Plan 2010, currently lists nine domestic
terrorism groups with representatives and offices in Nevada. Those groups are included in this

5-35




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

plan to give local governments information of their existence and their geographical location.
See the table below.

Table 5-11: Identified Hate Groups and Patriot Groups, Nevada

World Church of the Creator Carson City
Hammerskin Nation Las Vegas
Nation of Islam Las Vegas
National Alliance Las Vegas
National Socialist Movement Las Vegas
Aryan Nations/Aryan National Alliance Reno
Naticnal Alliance Reno
Aryan Nations/Aryan National Alliance Wellington
Patriot Groups
l Center for Action Sandy Valley

5.29.2 History

There have been no incidents of terrorism in Storey County. According to the FBI, sporting events,
political conventions, and other special events are attractive targets for domestic and foreign terrorists
because they are highly visible and attract celebrities and political leaders. Other targets of
opportunity for terrorism include large public works facilities, utilities, transportation facilities such as
airports, train stations, subways, bridges and ferries, military bases, schools, medical facilities and
other state and federal facilities. Examples of terrorism include the World Trade Center bombing in
New York City, the Murray Federal Building bombing in Oklahoma City, the Olympic Centennial
Park bombing in Atlanta, and the Pan American Flight bombing over Lockerbie, Scotland.

Acts of terrorism may originate from a single person, special interest groups, or acts sponsored by a
foreign government. The most popular method used in recent events in the United States has been
terrorism by bombing. Terrorist acts include the use of arson, hostile takeovers, shootings, biological
agents (such as anthrax, plague, botulism and others); chemical agents (such as hydrogen cyanide,
sulfur mustard, sarin and chlorine), and hostage taking.

5.29.3 Location, Extent, Probability of Future Events

In determining the risk arcas within a jurisdiction, the vulnerabilities of potential targets should be
identified, and the targets themselves should be prepared to respond to a WMD incident. In-depth
vulnerability assessments are needed for determining a response to such an incident.

Standard models are available for estimating the effects of a nuclear, chemical, or biological release,
including the area affected and consequences to population, resources, and infrastructure. Some of
these models include databases on infrastructure that can be useful in preparing the TIA. A good
source of information on available Federal government models is the Directory of Atmospheric
Transport and Diffision Consequence Assessment Models, published by the Office of the Federal
Coordinator for Meteorology (OFCM).

The overall magnitude, potential severity and frequency of impacts of terrorism and weapons of mass
destruction is considered low in the County. Assessment of probability of future terrorism events in
the County is gauged primarily on speculation, as no terrorism or events involving weapons of mass
destruction have previously occurred in the planning area. The consensus of the Planning Committee

5-36




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

is that probability of future events is low within Storey County. Based on the Homeland Security
Threatened Level System, it is anticipated that terrorism will remain a high threat into the foreseeable
future. Because terrorism events typically are focused on a single high payoff area or facility,
estimated damage is less than one percent damage to facilities in the County.

5-37




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.2.10  Wildland Fire

5.2.10.1 Nature

A wildland fire is a type of fire that spreads through consumption of vegetation. It often begins
unnoticed, spreads quickly, and is usually signaled by dense smoke that may be visible from
miles around. Wildland fires can be caused by human activities (such as arson or campfires) or
by natural events such as lightning. Wildland fires often occur in forests or other areas with
ample vegetation. In addition to wildland fires, wildfires can be classified as urban fires,
interface or intermix fires, and prescribed fires.

The following three factors contribute significantly to wildland fire behavior and can be used to
identify wildland fire hazard areas.

* Topography: As slope increases, the rate of wildland fire spread increases. South-facing
slopes are also subject to more solar radiation, making them drier and thereby
intensifying wildland fire behavior. However, ridge tops can cause fire to spread more
slowly or may even be unable to spread downhill. Narrow canyons, chutes and saddles
can funnel and accelerate winds, causing fire to spread faster.

* Fuel: The type and condition of vegetation plays a significant role in the occurrence and
spread of wildland fires. Certain types of plants are more susceptible to burning or will
burn with greater intensity. Dense or overgrown vegetation increases the amount of
combustible material available to fuel the fire (referred to as the “fizel load™). The ratio of
living to dead plant matter is also important. The risk of fire is increased significantly
during periods of prolonged drought, as the moisture content of both living and dead
plant matter decreases. The fuel’s continuity, both horizontally and vertically, is also an
important factor,

*  Weather: The most variable factor affecting wildland fire behavior is weather.
Temperature, humidity, wind, and lightning can affect chances for ignition and spread of
fire. Extreme weather, such as high temperatures, low humidity and high winds, can lead
to extreme wildland fire activity. By contrast, cooling and higher humidity often si gnals
reduced wildland fire occurrence and easier containment.

The frequency and severity of wildland fires also depends upon other hazards, such as lightning,
drought, and infestations. If not promptly controlled, wildland fires may grow into an emergency
or disaster. Even small fires can threaten lives and resources and destroy improved properties. In
addition to affecting people, wildland fires may severely affect livestock and pets. Such events
may require emergency watering/feeding, evacuation, and shelter.

The indirect effects of wildland fires can be catastrophic. In addition to stripping the land of
vegetation and destroying forest resources, large, intense fires can harm the soil, waterways, and
the land itself. Soil exposed to intense heat may lose its capability to absorb moisture and support
life. Exposed soils erode quickly and enhance siltation of rivers and streams, thereby increasing
flood potential, harming aquatic life, and degrading water quality. Lands stripped of vegetation
are also subject to increased debris flow hazards, as described above.

5-38




SECTIONFIVE Hazard Analysis

5.2.10.2 History

Storey County had 82 wildland fires which burned 8295 acres, of which 38 were less than one
acre, from 2003 to the beginning of 2013 according to NDF. Approximately 95 percent of these
fires were due to lightning, while humans and unknown causes make up the remaining 5 percent
of ignition sources. The figure below, provides a map of the historic fire locations in Storey
County.

Source: NV Division of Forestry

In 2013, Storey County Fire Department became responsible to wildfire response. According to
the Storey County Fire Department (SCFD), SCFD responded to 50 reported wildland fires in
2013 all of which never exceeded an acre in size and most were single tree fires which are
extinguished before they spread or false alarms. While large fires are low frequency, they have
a high potential for impacting natural resources, communities and critical infrastructure,

5.2.10.3 Location, Extent, Probability of Future Events

Communities in Storey County have a varying degree of risk from Wildfire. This risk is varied,
largely due to past fire activity and the type of moisture received during the winter months.
Lengthy rainy seasons tend to increase the production of grasses which can create fast moving
fires in the brush and grass areas of the County. Drought seasons tend to decrease the fuel

5-39




SECTIONFIVE | Hazard Analysis

moisture in the large fuels (trees and large brush) and create high output BTU fires that are
difficult to control and can extend for days.

Depending upon the type and amount of moisture received the risk to a given community in
Storey County can change from season to season. Storey County has developed a Community
Wildfire Protection Plan to help guide the community and its residents on where and how to
focus fuel reduction efforts. The Community Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) generally speaks
to protecting the built environment from the threats of wildland fire. The Virginia Highlands
area has extreme rating due to interface fuel hazard and ignition risk. Appendix B, Figures B-11
through B-16, provide maps of each community and the wildland urban interface (WUTI) area as
provided in the RCI County Wide Assessment. RCI is currently updating the CWPP.

Table 5- 12: Wildfire Assessment Summary by Community

c Rating
Gold Hill High
Lockwood Moderate
Six Mile Moderate
Virginia City High
Virginia Highlands Extreme
Source: RCI County Wide Assessment Resulfs, hfp./fwww roi-nv.com/reporis/storey/section04. himi

Based on historical records, Storey County can anticipate nearly 1.5 wildland fire starts per year,
which will burn more than one acre however a very small percentage of these (less than 1%) will
exceed 100 acres.

5-40




SECTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

A vulnerability analysis predicts the extent of exposure that may result from a hazard event of a
given intensity in a given area. The analysis provides quantitative data that may be used to
identify and prioritize potential mitigation measures by allowing communities to focus attention
on areas with the greatest risk of damage. A vulnerability analysis consists of the following six
steps: assets inventory, methodology, data limitations, exposure analysis, and summary of
impacts. The asset inventory and exposure analysis were updated including Tables 6.1 through
6.5. Land Use and Development Trends is located in Section 3.

6.1 ASSET INVENTORY

Asset inventory is the first step of a vulnerability analysis. Assets within each community that
may be affected by hazard events include population, residential and non residential buildings,
and critical facilities and infrastructure. Assets and insured values throughout the County are
identified and discussed in detail below.

6.1.1 Population and Building Stock

Population data for the County was obtained from the NV State Demographer and verified from
the 2010 U.S. Census and shown in Table 6-1. The Nevada State Demographer’s Office
maintains annual population estimates by county. Estimated numbers and replacement values
for residential and nonresidential buildings, as shown in Table 6-1, were obtained from FEMA
Hazus-MH 2009 run by the Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology and verified by the County
Assessor’s office .

The residential buildings considered in this analysis include single-family dwellings, mobile
homes, multi-family dwellings, temporary lodgings, institutional dormitory facilities, and
nursing homes. Nonresidential buildings were also analyzed including commercial, industriai,
agricultural, government, educational, and religious centers.

The HAZUS-MH 2009 run for earthquake by the Bureau of Mines & Geology, UNR, was
reviewed. The HAZUS-MH software presents a data limitation by which this software identifies
nonresidential buildings by square footage resulting in some nonresidential buildings not being
counted. The building count was verified by parcel data from the Assessor’s Office. The
buildings’ values were calculated by multiplying the number by the US Census median value for
buildings. Un-reinforced masonry (URM) building information was obtained from Wayne
Carlson and Advanced Data Systems, Inc.

Although the building count or value may not be precise, whether residential or nonresidential,
this analysis will meet the intention of DMA 2000 by providing County residents with an
accurate visual representation of their community’s risk by hazard. This data is the most
complete dataset available at the time and will be updated in future version of the HMP.




SECTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment
Table 6-1. Estimated Population and Building Inventory

3,399 $384,150 $24,857
Source: U.S. Census population data, hifp:/quickfacts.census.qoviafd/states/32000.htm! , State of Nevada Demographer, FEMA HAZUS-
MH http:/fwww.nbmg unr.edu/dox/of098/Scenarios/OpenFileReport09-8.pdf, Storey County

6.1.2  Critical Faciiities and Infrastructure

A critical facility is defined as a public or private facility that provides essential products and
services to the general public, such as preserving the quality of life in the County and fulfilling
important public safety, emergency response, and disaster recovery functions. Similar to critical
facilities, critical infrastructure is defined as infrastructure that is essential to preserve the quality
of life and safety in the County.

The County’s critical facilities are listed in Table 6-2 and shown and were not shown in map
form for security.

Table 6-2. Critical Facilities and Infrastructure

Sheriff Stations, Public Safety, & Juvenile Detention 3 35
Center
Fire Stations 5 9
EOC 1 5
Public Primary and Secondary Schools 4 28
Crifical Facitiies Shelters - Senior Centers 2 15
Hospital w/Emergency Roem (in Washoe) 1 11.2
Urgent Care Facilities (in Washoe) 2 1
Ambulance Facilities 1 Included in Fire Station
Communication Faclities 1 5
State and Federal Highways (miles) 396 km 1,730.7
Critical Airport Facilities (Washoe) 1 79.6
Infrastructure Bridges (County only) 6 Included in Highway
Utilities (Water, Waste Water, Gas, Electrical) n/a 245.8

Source: FEMA HAZUS-MH http.//www.nbme.unr.edu/dox/of098/Scenarios/OpenF: iIeReportOQ-S;pdf Storey County Emergency

Management, NV Division of Emergency Management, NV Dept. of Transportation

The Sheriff station includes the Lockwood sub- station. The Shelters include the Senior Center
in Virginia City and Lockwood,

In addition, the hospital, urgent care facilities and airport in Washoe County, since Storey
County relies on these facilities are listed above but not included in the exposure analysis.

6-2




SECTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment
6.2 METHODOLOGY

A conservative exposure-level analysis was conducted to assess the risks of the identified
hazards. Hazard arcas were determined using information provided by the U.S. Seasonal
Drought Monitor, EPA, HAZUS, Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology, and NWS. This
analysis is a simplified assessment of the potential effects of the hazard on values at risk without
consideration of probability or level of damage.

Using GIS, the building footprints of critical facilities were compared to locations where hazards
are likely to occur. If any portion of the critical facility fell within a hazard area, it was counted
as impacted. Using census block level information, a spatial proportion was used to determine
the percentage of the population and residential and nonresidential structures located where
hazards are likely to occur. Census blocks that are completely within the boundary of the hazard
area were determined to be vulnerable and were totaled by count. A spatial proportion was also
used to determine the amount of linear assets, such as highways and pipelines, within a hazard
area. The exposure analysis for linear assets was measured in miles. For drought, population was
the only asset analyzed, as drought mainly affects people and agricultural lands (which were not
considered in this version of the HMP),

Replacement values or insurance coverage were developed for physical assets. These values
were obtained from the County’s Assessor’s Office, Building Department, Nevada Department
of Transportation and HAZUS-MH 2009 run. For facilities that did not have specific values per
building in a multi-building scenario (e.g., schools), the buildings were grouped to gether and
assigned one value. For each physical asset located within a hazard area, exposure was calculated
by assuming the worst-case scenario (that is, the asset would be completely destroyed and would
have to be replaced). Finally, the aggregate exposure, in terms of replacement value or insurance
coverage, for each category of structure or facility was calculated. A similar analysis was used to
evaluate the proportion of the population at risk. However, the analysis simply represents the
number of people at risk; no estimate of the number of potential injuries or deaths was prepared.

6.3 DATA LIMITATIONS & FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The vulnerability estimates provided herein use the best data currently available, and the
methodologies applied result in an approximation of risk. These estimates may be used to
understand relative risk from hazards and potential losses. However, uncertainties are inherent in
any loss estimation methodology, arising in part from incomplete scientific knowledge
concerning hazards and their effects on the built environment, as well as approximations and
simplifications that are necessary for a comprehensive analysis.

The resulting analysis was complied to the highest degree possible with the hardware, software
and data availability limitations discovered during plan preparation. HAZUS was able to
determine the population and critical facilities within a given hazard area and from there a
limited assessment was derived. In the situation of Drought & Epidemic, where structures would
not usually be affected the term N/A (not applicable) is used.

It is also important to note that the quantitative vulnerability assessment results are limited to the
exposure of people, buildings, and critical facilities and infrastructure to a hazard. It was beyond
the scope of this HMP to develop a more detailed or comprehensive assessment of rigk
(including annualized losses, people injured or killed, shelter requirements, loss of
facility/system function, and economic losses) except for earthquake hazard (HAZUS-MH).
Such impacts may be addressed with future updates of the HMP.

6-3




SECTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment
6.3.1 Future Development

Storey County has historically low growth with an average of less than 1% per year for
population. During 2012-2017 the State Demographer estimated an increase in population
growth of 15% from 4,103 in 2012 to 4,772 in 2017. As discussed at the end of Section 3 -
Community Description there is additional land slated for 320 homes for residential use in the
proposed Sunset Acres near the Highlands area (south east of Reno). The County is working on
an update to the County Master Plan to include these homes. This area is at risk to wildland fire.

Additionally, the Reno-Tahoe Industrial park continues to grow which may have significant
daily commuters to Storey County from Reno and Fernley. SR 305 from Hi ghway 80 to
Highway 50 at Silver Springs is slated for completion in the next 5 years. Any additional
building growth will incorporate the 2006 International Building Code which was adopted in
2010 and is not seen to pose additional risk.

For the purposes of this plan moderate growth over the next five years is expected, growth from
2016 to 2030 is expected at less than 45%. The numbers and values of the Figures in the Table
6-3 and 6-4 below are viewed as accurate. During the plan maintenance activities this should be
reviewed and during the next plan update process growth can be revisited with the revised
Master Plan detailing where the growth will occur.

http://nvdemography.org/wp-content/uploads/2012/10/2012-Oct-1 -Population-Projections.pdf

6.4 EXPOSURE ANALYSIS

The requirements for a risk assessment, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below.




SECTIONSIX Vuinerability Assessment

The resuits of the exposure analysis are summarized in Tables 6-3 and 6-4 and in the discussion
below. The results in this exposure analysis were greatly affected by the hardware, software and
data availability limitations described above, The significant hazards designated as high are
included in the exposure analysis below.




Jawabeueyy Aousbiawiz Ajunoy Asiols uua.w-motoammm_._mcmao_..wo_._m:mow_.wmeo\xou\:uw.E:.cEnc.?.sEﬁoz: HWN-SNZVYH YN ‘82inos
000X = , BNjep

6% 0 G9% j< Z swa.x3

796% b< G.8'93% 6 952 YbIH

L12'8% 4 684'606% 6g. A 9leIopo

vSE'9L$ l 18EvES €48 o AlR Mo SUUPHM
0 0 00S$ L Ll 199} 000/ < (Mous) wiolg
zzs'ves oL ¥0£'95% 08 €161 1894 000 03 000G | JOIUIM SIoASS
0 0 0 0 0 Jesh-00g

000°2$ G 6LZ'V1S Lz 8vs leak-poL POO| BULBARY
085'0Z$ 8 ¥8F'26% A7 108l SIEIE

0.%'G$ Z 0ve'6eS 89 86G°L Buong Asep aenbypes

e

iy

Fig] Bl
ASHY 3¢ AroywaAuy Surpping pue uonemdod pajewnsy AJuno)) A3.101S :¢-9 Qe

JUIWISSASSY ANIeIaung XISNOILI3S




i

ik

SR SV SARIIL] [E271A) payeuys

Ajuno)H

s

L € 2 14 ooy
008$ 12 “3pIg 0§
0053 doyg soueuaturely OF
005°1$ sumuo)) % ['ef 0§
005°L$ (M weg DS
000's$ INOYHNOY DS
00eZs 000°L$ 998°L% # PAEA JUUUIIAOD)
L ¢ 9 #—)UAIIIA0E)
008% 00s% 005% MT qng gri=yg
005°L$ uoneI§ JJHAYS
000'c$ G L UOMeIS AIL ]
005°L$ 00S'L$ pL# uones a1,
005% £L# vonEls o111
000°1$ TL# Honws aNlg
000°2$ [L# uopels ang
005% 00s$ o0H
+ ON[EA
000°v$ 000'2$ 00S'v$ 588°Z$ BIRYS/DOT AN
Z < 14 42 HFHURUS/D0A A

U3UISSAsSy Aupqesaunp

XISNOIL3IS




JuswrsBeuepy Aouabiowg Aunog Aaiojs TP g GHICIE PoTIAUS)/SOTUa5g, 7RGOF0/XOP/Aps JUn SWqU MATTOI L-SIZVH VNG [83nos

000°kX = , anjep

¥ INBA
000°L$ 000'L$ 19)127) Aypunwiao)
' L # 1jua) AJunmuwio))
00S'L$ 00.L% 00S5°L$ 00L% » AN[BA I9]E3)) 101UIE
z i 4 I HIDIU)) TOTUDS
000'+$ 000°F$ 000'¥$ MT Areyusws]g
000'9% 000°'9% A Amuoury
000'8% 000'8$ [0OYoS 3[PPIA
0o0°0L% 000°'0L$ [00yog5 ySry
000°0L$ 000'8L$ 000'v$ 6v8°9Z% 286'L$ * ON[ZA [00YPS

WIBWISSAsSY Alngelaunp

XTSNOILIIS




lustwabeuepy Aausbiaws Aunoy) faro)g Jpd-E-goHOTSRoT I

/2607 <0p/Npa Ten SHIqU A A

U HIN-SNZYH Y3 ‘eainog
000'IX = , angep

oF

oy

14

# ONBA S[[OM

HSIPM

000'e$

000°61L$

00G'z$

G2e'zs

00s°cs

anfeA ANj1oe,] JUSWIESL]
I3TR M, DISEAA /Y8 M

Z

S

H—ANTIOR, ] JUSUIEDI],
ISTEA DISE A /IDVE AL

000°6%

G/6°LS

0ce'L$

8yL'LLS

*9N[BA 08RI0)g jEM

g

4

9

#—o3e101g 191E M

000'gL$

000'6$

000'8L$

= SN[ SUOTRISANG
uonels FUNBRULD Pmog

Z

H-SUONRISONG/SUOHMIS
Sunenusn pmod

3¢

9z$

LS$

8z$

8.%

* 9N[E A 95RI01S WINSJONA]

#-o8e10)S WNS[oNa g

6L$

6L$

615

* ON[B A UOTEDIUNWIIO

#-UONESIINUIWO))

¥61°63

009'c$

* S0[BA
Suissor) peoy jeye8pug

€

#—-3UISS0I))
peoy TIeY/e9pug

damanyseyuy Apano)) £310)§ :6-9 3[GL ],

MI3WISSAsSY Aunqessunp

XISNOLL)IS




SECTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

6.4.1 Earthquake

Displayed within the Appendices on Figure C-3 Earthquake Hazard Area, there are two
identified hazard areas, they are: severe shaking and very strong shaking. Within the perceived
severe shaking area the population at risk is 1,801 people with 747 residential buildings valued at
$52.5 million; and 8 nonresidential buildings valued at $20.6 million. Numerous critical facilities
arc at risk to perceived severe shaking; they include: 12 first-responder buildings
(Fire/BEOC/Sheriff) valued at $2.8 million; 4 gas storage structures valued at $51,000; 9
government buildings valued at $7.8 million; 4 critical facilities within historic district buildings
valued at $700,000; 4 schools valued at $27 million; 2 special-population buildings valued at
$4.1 million; and 1 transportation structure valued at $602,000. Additionally, there are multiple
County infrastructure components located within the perceived severe shaking area; they
include: 1 communication structure valued at $19,000; 4 water storage sites valued at $1.3
million; 2 water/waste water treatment facilities valued at $2.3 million: and 1 County-owned
wells valued at $46,000.

More than one-quarter of the County is located within the perceived very strong shaking area.
These regions are distant from known, active faults and will experience lower levels of shaking
less frequently. In most earthquakes, only weaker masonry buildings would be damaged.
However, very infrequent earthquakes could still cause strong shaking here. This area is
populated along the north and south County boundaries and is moving towards the interior which
is not developed. Within this perceived very strong shaking area, the population at risk is 1,598
people with 684 residential buildings valued at $40 million and 2 non-residential buildings
valued at $5.5 million. Numerous critical facilities are at risk to perceived severe shaking; they
include: 5 first-responder buildings (Fire/EOC/Sheriff) valued at $2.8 million: 1 school valued at
$2 million; and 1 Senior Center building valued at $700,000. Additionally, there are multiple
County infrastructure components located within the perceived very strong shaking area; they
include: 6 bridge/rail road crossings valued at $5.7 million; 1 communication structure valued at
$19,000; 2 power generating stations/substations valued at $18 million; 6 water storage sites
valued at $11.1 million; 5 water/waste water treatment facilities valued at $3.5 million; and 1
County-owned wells valued at $46,000.

Storey County has 310 unreinforced masonry buildings. Many of these are of an historic nature
and make up the bulk of the tourist business district. The VC fire station and courthouse are
critical facilities and are URM.

6.4.2 Flash Flood

As the flash-flood hazard does not occur within an identified floodplain, there currently is no
way to map this hazard to determine the population and buildings at risk. Therefore, mitigation
projects rely upon historical occurrences to determine the appropriate location for mitigation
actions,

6-10




SEGCTIONSTX Vulnerability Assessment

6.4.3 Riverine Flood

Displayed within the Appendices on Figure C-4 FEMA Special Flood Hazard Areas, there are
two identified hazard areas, they are: the 100-year floodplain and the 500-year flood plain.
Within the 100-year floodplain area, the population at risk is 549 people, with 271 residential
buildings valued at $14.2 million. There are numerous critical facilities at risk within the 100-
year floodplain; they include: 1 Lockwood Elementary school valued at $4 million; 1 Sherriff
Sub-station valued at $500 thousand; 1 Lockwood Senior Center valued at $700 thousand and 1
Fire Station #74 valued at $1.5 million. Additionally, there are multiple County infrastructure
components located within the 100-year floodplain; they include: 6 bridge/rail road crossings
valued at $2.6 million; 2 Gas Storage tanks valued at $26 thousand; and 1 power station valued
at $9 million. There are no repetitive loss properties within the 100-year floodplain.

Within the 500-year floodplain there are no residential structures. There are no critical facilities
or infrastructure components located within the 500-year floodplain. There are no repetitive loss
properties within the 500-year floodplain.

6.4.4 Severe Winter Storm

As described in the hazard profile in Section 5.2.12 Severe Winter Storm, there are two
identified elevation ranges of concern, they are: elevations between 5,000-7,000 feet and those
elevations greater than 7,000 feet. Within the 5,000—7,000-foot-elevation area, the population at
risk is 1,973 people, of which 1,771 people reside within the historic district, with 804 residential
buildings valued at $56.3 million, and 10 nonresidential buildings valued at $24.5 million. There
are numerous critical facilities at risk within the 5,000-7,000-foot-elevation range; they include:
12 first-responder buildings (Fire/EOQC/Sheriff) valued at $2.8 million; 4 gas storage structures
valued at $51,000; 9 government buildings valued at $7.8 million; 4 additional critical facilities
within historic district buildings valued at $700,000; 4 schools valued at $27 million; 2 special-
population buildings valued at $4.1 million; and 1 transportation structure valued at $602,000.
Additionally, there are two County infrastructure components located within the 5,000-7,000-
foot-elevation area; they include: 4 water storage sites valued at $1.3 million and 2 water/waste
water treatment facilities valued at $2.3 million. Although these facilities may be affected by a
severc storm only the Sheriff's Sub-station in Lockwood valued at $500 thousand is at risk to
building collapse.

There are significantly fewer people living and working in elevations greater than 7,000 feet.
Within elevations greater than 7,000 feet, the population at risk is 17 people with 7 residential
buildings valued at $500,000 with an additional 12 people residing within the historic district.
The critical facilities at risk are the Storey County Courthouse valued at $5 miliion; and the
Emergency Operation Center valued at $500 thousand due to the age and construction of the
buildings.

6.4.5 Wildfire

Displayed within the Appendices on Figure C-5 Wildfire Hazard Area, there are four identified
hazard areas, they are: low, moderate, high, and severe. The population at risk to the wildfire
hazard in the low category is approximately 36 percent of the population or 1,233 people with
573 residential buildings valued at $34.4 million, 7 nonresidential buildings valued at $16.4

6-11




SEGTIONSIX Vuinerability Assessment

million, and 375 people residing within the historic district. There are numerous critical facilities
at risk within the low wildfire category; they include: 4 first-responder buildings
(Fire/EOC/Sheriff) valued at $4.5 million; 3 government buildings valued at $7 million; 3
schools valued at $18 million; 2 Senior Centers valued at $1.5 million. Additionally, there are
multiple County infrastructure components located within the low wildfire category; they
include: 3 bridge/rail road crossings valued at $455,000; 1 communication tower valued af $19
thousand; 2 water/waste water treatment facilities valued at $15 million; and 1 County-owned
well valued at $46,000.

More than 55 percent of the County is located within the moderate-risk category of the wildfire
hazard, which is 1,882 people with 739 residential buildings valued at $510 million, 2
nonresidential buildings valued at $8.7 million, and 1,248 people residing within the historic
district. There are numerous critical facilities within the moderate wildfire risk area; they

include: 2 first-responder buildings (Fire/EQC/Sheriff) valued at $2 million; 1 jail &
communication facility valued at $1.5 million; 1 schools valued at $10 million. Additionally,
there are multiple County infrastructure components located within the moderate-risk cate gory of
the wildfire hazard; they include: 3 bridge/rail road crossings valued at $5.2 million; 1
communication structures valued at $19,000; 2 gas storage tanks valued at $26,000; 2 power
stations valued at $18 million; 1 water storage sites valued at $2 million.

There are 256 people, or 7.5 percent of the County population, who are located within the
high-risk category for wildfire hazard; this area includes 94 residential buildings valued at $6.9
million, 1 nonresidential building valued at $964,000 and 153 people residing within the historic
district. There are no critical facilities or infastructure located in the high-risk category.

The severe-risk category contains a distinct data limitation wherein the GIS model created does
not correspond to the 2005 Nevada Community Wildfire Risk/Hazard Assessment Project study.
This study identifies the community of Virginia City Highlands as at an extreme risk which the
Storey County Fire Department and the Nevada Division of Forestry concur. The population of
this community is approximately 1,500 however the GIS model states the County population
located within the extreme-risk category of the wildfire hazard is .06 percent or 2 people with 1
residential building valued at $65,000 with a minimal amount of nonresidential property
containing no buildings valued at $9,000 and 1 person residing in the historic district. The
critical facilities located in the severe wildfire risk area are 2 first responder facilities valued at
$4 million. County infrastructure includes 4 gas storage tanks valued at $51,000; 5 water storage
tanks valued at $9 million; and 1 water/waste water treatment facility valued at $2 million. The
mitigation goal and actions developed for this hazard reflect the known wildfire extreme-risk
ranking and include mitigation actions to reduce the risk to all residential structures.

6.5 REPETITIVE LOSS PROPERTIES

The requirements for a risk assessment, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its implementing
regulations, are described below.

6-12




SEGTIONSIX Vulnerability Assessment

Storey County has no repetitive loss properties. The current status of repetitive loss properties
should be discussed during the annual review of this plan with the County’s Flood Plain
Manager.

Repetitive Loss & Severe Repetitive Loss

The state is working with a variety of stakeholders to reduce the number of properties considered
to be repetitive loss properties and to prevent severe repetitive loss properties from developing.

FEMA’s Severe Repetitive Loss (SRL) Program was designed in 2004 to provide funding to
reduce or eliminate the long-term risk of flood damage to SRL structures insured under the
National Flood insurance Program (NFIP).

An SRL property is defined as a residential property that is covered under an NFIP flood
insurance policy and:

(a) That has at least four NFIP claim payments (including building and contents) over
$5,000 each, and the cumulative amount of such claims payments exceeds $20,000; or

(b) For which at least two separate claims payments (building payments only) have been
made with the cumulative amount of the building portion of such claims exceeding the
market value of the building.

For both (a) and (b) above, at least two of the referenced claims must have occurred within any
ten-year period, and must be greater than 10 days apart. FEMA’s Repetitive Flood Claims
(RFC) grant program was authorized to assist States and communities in reducing flood damages
to insured properties that have had one or more claims to the National Flood Tnsurance Pro gram
(NFIP). Nevada has no severe repetitive loss properties and Storey County has no repetitive loss
properties.

6-13




SECTIONSEVEN Capahility Assessment

While not required by the DMA 2000, an important component of a hazard mitigation plan is a
review of the County’s resources to identify, evaluate, and enhance the capacity of those
resources to mitigate the effects of hazards. This section evaluates the County’s resources in
three areas—Ilegal and regulatory, administrative and technical, and financial—and assesses
capabilities to implement current and future hazard mitigation actions.

7.1 LEGAL AND REGULATORY CAPABILITIES

Legal and regulatory capabilities, as shown in Table 7-1, include applicable Building Codes,
Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations, Capital Improvement Plan, and other regulatory
development guides that provide specified support to hazard miti gation activities. Other less
prescriptive documents describe the County’s hazard mitigation capabilities to include various
Master Plan clements, an Economic Development Strategy, an Emergency Response Plan, and
Post-Disaster Recovery Plans, among others. This section lists these various tools, recognizes the
local authority of the specific activity, and identifies the interaction of the specific tools with
State and higher level authorities.

In addition to policies and regulations, the County participates in several hazard mitigation
programs including the NFIP and Fire Safe and Living With Fire pro grams.

Table 7-1: Storey County Legal and Regulatory Capability

et

A. Building code Y N Y Building &
Planning Dept., (2)
State Fire Marshal

for Schools.

B. Zoning ordinance Y N N Building &

Planning Dept .

C. Subdivision ordinance or Y N N Building &
regulations Planning Dept.

D. Special purpose ordinances Y N Y Building &
{floodptain management, Planning Dept.
storm-water management,
hillside or steep slope
ordinances, wildfire
ordinances, hazard setback
requirements)

E. Growth management Y N N Building &
ordinances (also called Planning Dept.
“smart growth” or anti-
spraw| programs)

F. Site plan review Y N N Building &
requirements Ptanning Dept.,

7-1




SEGTIOHSEVEN Capability Assessment

Table 7-1: Storey County Legal and Regulatory Capability

Fire Dept.
(3. General or comprehensive Y N N Master Plan
plan adopted April 21,
1994
H. A capital improvements plan Y N N None
I An economic development Y N N Under
plan development
J.  Anemergency response Y N N Yes, updated
plan annually in
January
K. A post-disaster recovery Y N N Under
plan development
L. A post-disaster recovery Y N N None currently
ordinance
M. Real estate disclosure : Y N N Under
requirerments development by
County Assessor

7.2 ADMINISTRATIVE AND TECHNICAL CAPABILITIES

The administrative and technical capability, as shown in Table 7-2, of the County provides an
identification of the staff, personnel, and department resources available to expedite the actions
identified in the Mitigation Strategy. Specific resources reviewed include those involving
technical personnel that can apply GIS and other services needed to facilitate hazard mitigation
actions throughout Storey County.




SECTIONSEVEN

Capability Assessment

7.3

. Planner(s) or engineer(s)
with knowledge of land

Table

development and land
management practices

Building & Planning Dept., 1 posi

-2: Storey County Administrative and Technical Capacity

tion,

Engineer(s) or
professional(s) trained in
construction practices related
to buildings and/or
infrastructure

Building & Planning Dept.; contract engineer
as needed. No full time employee.

Planners or Engineer(s) with
an understanding of natural
and/or human-caused
hazards

Building & Planning Dept. 1 position, Director

Floodplain manager

Building and Planning Department1 position,

Surveyors

Contract as needed, no full time position

Staff with education or
expertise to assess the
community’s vulnerability to
hazards

Building & Planning Dept., 1 position,

. Personnel skilled in GIS

and/or HAZUS

Building & Planning Dept., GIS Specialist,
one position

. Scientists familiar with the

hazards of the community

Contract as needed, no full time employee

Emergency manager

Emergency Management Department: 2 x

Grant writers

Varied department locations, Fire Dept,,
Emergency Mgmt, Building & Planning Dept.

GIS = Geographic Information System
HAZUS = Hazards U.S.

FINANCIAL CAPABILITIES

Specific financial and budgetary tools, as shown in Table 7-3, available to the County for hazard
mitigation include Federal entitlements, general fund monies, secondary sales and property taxes,

user fees for infrastructure, impact fees applied to new develo
service techniques including bonding indebtedness.

pment, and various unique debt




SECTIONSEVEN Capahility Assessment

Table 7-3: Storey County Fiscal Capability

TEoTh i

A, ommunity Development Block Grants Yes
(COBG)

B. Capital improvements project funding Yes

C. Authority to levy taxes for specific purposes Only by vote of public

D. Fees for water, sewer, gas, or electric service Yes

E. Impact fees for homebuyers or developers for No. Could be established by Commissioners
new developments/homes

F. Incur debt through general obligation bonds Yes. Established by Commissioners

G. Incur debt through special tax and revenue Yes. Established by Commissioners
bonds

H. Incur debt through private activity bonds Yes, Established by Commissioners

I Withhold spending in hazard-prone areas Yes. Established by Commissioners

J. Other: Fire Department, Plan Review fees Yes

K. Other: Ambulance fees Yes

L. Other: Business license and events fees Yes

7.4 CURRENT MITIGATION CAPABILITIES

Storey County’s current mitigation programs, projects, and plans, as shown in Table 7-4, are
listed as follows.

Building & Flood plain Dean Haymore v v Engineering
Planning Dept. | mgmt, economic | 775-847-0966 and planning
development, support
code
enforcement,
public health
nurse
Public Works | Roads, water, Mike Nevin v v Detailed
: sewer, capital 775-847-0958 knowledge of
projects, building infrastructure
maintenance, - source for
County shop skilled

7-4




SECTIONSEVEN Capability Assessment

Table 7-4: Storey County Local Mitigation Capability Assessment

= e B s T

{vehicle repairs), manpower
parks, pools
Fire Public education, | Gary Hames Coordinates
Department plan review, code | 775-847-0954 regularly with
enforcement other fire
agencies;
familiar with
grants
Nevada Fuels mitigation, | Mike Kiug Familiar with
Division of public education | 775-849-2500 Federal
Forestry grants; works
well with
area fire
agencies
Emergency Mitigation grants, | Joe Curtis Works well
Management develop and 775-847-0986 with all area
maintain agencies;
mitigation plan conduit to
local and
Federal
grants
School District | Identify and Rob Slaby Intricately
implement 775-847-0983 familiar with
mitigation actions school
for school district
property infrastructure
and hazard
risks

Storey County is a close-knit community where many of those responsible for managing the
various departments have multi-generational ties to the community or are long-time residents.
This mutual bond creates a cohesiveness that is visualized on Table 7-4. Each agency’s mission,
mitigation programs, plans, policies, funding, and practices complement one another while
working together to develop and effectively protect Storey County residents, visitors, and

property.




SECTIONSEVEN - Capability Assessment

The programs, plan, policics and regulations listed above provide a basic framework for
mitigation projects. These programs cover the County’s infrastructure and program needs and
are effective. However, the funding for mitigation projects may not always be available,

The County being small in population has individuals wearing multiple hats and therefore
doesn’t have strong legal, administrative and financial capabilities in relation to larger counties
within Nevada. However, the County is able to enforce the International Building Code &
International Fire Code, Building Code Title 12.09 and 15.05 which restrict building within a
floodway, and is a member of the NFIP, in addition to programs for public safety, health and
human services, public works and the school district. These programs are run by trained County
staff, who are provided the resources to implement and promote the programs. Future
implementation may be constrained by budget reduction in the next few years due to the
recession.

7.4.1 National Flood Insurance Program

The County has identified special flood-hazard areas. They entered the NFIP in 1994. The
County participates in the Community Rating System (CRS) and is currently rated as an 8. The
CRS is a voluntary program for the NFIP-participating communities. The goals of the CRS are
to reduce flood losses, to facilitate accurate insurance rating, and to promote the awareness of
flood insurance. The County outlined mitigation actions listed under goals 5 and 6 detailed
below in Table 8-2, Mitigation Goals and Potential Actions. There are no repetitive loss or
severe repetitive loss properties (as defined by the NFIP) within the County. County Building
Code restricts future building within a floodway.

7-6




SEGTIONEIGHT Mitigation Strategy

The following provides an overview of the four-step process for preparing a mitigation strategy:
developing mitigation goals and objectives, identifying and analyzing potential actions,
prioritizing mitigation actions, and implementing an action plan.

8.1 MITIGATION GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

The requirements for the local hazard mitigation goals, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its
implementing regulations, are described below.

The Planning Committee reviewed the hazard profiles in Section 5 as a basis for developing
mitigation goals. Mitigation goals are defined as general guidelines that explain what a
community wants to achieve in terms of hazard and loss prevention. Goal statements are
typically long-range, policy-oriented statements representing community-wide visions. The
Planning Team developed 7 goals to reduce or avoid long-term vulnerabilities to the identified
hazards (Table 8-1). Avalanche, Drought, Epidemic, Mine Caving, and Terrorism hazards all
rated as low or moderate hazards are addressed in Goals One and Two.

Table 8-1: Mitigation Goals

Promote increased and ongoing County involvement in hazard-mitigation planning and
L projects.

Build and support local capacity to enable the public to prepare for, respond to, and recover
from disasters

%]

Reduce the possibility of damage and losses due to earthquakes
Reduce the possibility of damage and losses due to floods

Reduce the possibility of damage and losses due to severe weather
Reduce the possibility of damage and losses due to wildland fires
Reduce the possibility of damage and iosses due to hazardous material releases

~ D ]

8-1




SECTIONEIGHT Mitigation Strategy

8.2 IDENTIFYING MITIGATION ACTIONS

The requirements for the identification and analysis of mitigation actions, as stipulated in the
DMA 2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.

Mitigation actions are usually grouped into six broad categories: prevention, property protection,
public education and awareness, natural resource protection, emergency services, and structural
projects. As such, Table 8-3 lists the goals and potential actions selected for this HMP by the
Planning Committee. The Planning Committee determined that Actions listed under Goals One
and Two address the low rated Avalanche, Infestation, Landslide and Volcano hazards,




SECTIONEIGHT

Mitigation Strategy

~ Goals. . | Action

Goal 1:

Promote increased
and ongoing
involvement in
hazard-mitigation
| planning and projects

1A

Update the Master Plan to be consistent with the hazard area maps
and implementation strategies developed in the HMP every 10 years.
Review & update ordinances & code every 3 years.

i.B

N/E

Continue GIS data sharing agreements with Douglas County.

Goal 2:

Build and support
local capacity to
enable the public to
prepare for, respond
to, and recover from
disasters

A

N/E

Continue and expand Risk Watch outreach program that coordinates
with the school district to teach children about the hazards in their
community and what they can do to mitigate, prevent, and prepare for
these hazard events. Additionally, the safety tips will be posted on the
County Web site.

2B

Develop and sustain a public outreach programs that encourages
consistent hazard mitigation content including all hazards addressed in
this mitigation plan.

2C

N/E

Develop outreach program that will teach adults how to anchor
parapets, signs, giass, machinery, shelving, fixtures, and other
nonstructural elements or architectural detailing that might cause injury
if items were fo fall or break during an earthquake.

2D

NE

Use seasonal firefighters to conduct an outreach program to inform
homeowners about the threat of wildfires; to explain how homeowners
can reduce the wildfire hazards around their homes; to encourage
homeowners to take the necessary action to improve the chance of
their home surviving a wildfire; encourage homeowners to become
involved with the Living With Fire program; and encourage attendance
of existing Fire Safe Chapter members to the annual Wildfire Urban
Interface Fire Summit.

2E

N/E

Expand Highlands Fire Safe Council to include additional communities
to inform Fire Safe councils, homeowner associations, and property
owners about best management praciices for Pifion-Juniper
woodlands.

2F

N/E

Initiate an outreach program to inform and instruct building contractors,
County and State road maintenance agencies, and Storey County
schools in best management practices for vegetation management in
developments, around existing and new construction, and along road
right-of-ways.

26

N/E

Within and immediately surrounding the area of the Virginia Highfands,
the local chapter of the Nevada Fire Safe Council continue outreach
efforts to emphasize the importance of internal fuel breaks to property
owners in the community as a necessary prerequisite to enhancing fire
protection.

Goal 3:

3A

Develop a voluntary building inspection program in which
homes, businesses, schools, and critical facilities and
infrastructure are inspected by a building official for




SECTIONEIGHT

Mitigation Strategy

Table 8-2 — Mitigation Goals and Actions

honstructural elements tha rhight break du‘ﬁ'ng an

Reduce the earthquake. In conjunction with this action, develop a
possibility of damage nonstructural retrofitting program to correct identified
and losses due fo problems.
earthquakes Recommend refrofit for private business, homes, and government,
B E with higher priority to critical facifities, infrastructure, and government
agencies located within identified historical buildings.
Initiate program to provide funding for structural engineers to inspect
3.C E County-owned critical facilities and infrasiructure within identified high-
shaking areas and historical buildings.
Retrofit all critical assets within strong shaking areas that do not meet
3D E the most current IBC requirements for safety; with higher priority given
' to critical faciities, infrastructure, and government agencies located
within identified historical buildings.
Work with ufility companies to evaluate the seismic risk to their
3.E N/E transmission pipelines and implement mitigation measures, such as
automatic shut-off valves.
3F N/E Install on all private and public buildings propane earthquake
' disconnect values.
3G E Continue seismic retrofit on facades on B & C Streets.
Review and update flood plans that would include coordination with
Goal 4: 4A N/E adjacent counties, cities, and special districts supporting a regional
approach to fiood contral
Reduce the Install new flood facilities including upgrade of the existing storm drain
iy 4B E system to current standards including culverts and channel
ossibility of damage
P and Josses due tog improvements throughout Storey Co.
Protect and enhance existing water conveyance structures, storage
flash il g wale i ictures, storage,
flood and ood 4C E and freatment facilities to reduce impact from flood {i.e. Lockwood, VC)
Goal 5:
Reduce the In areas at risk to severe weather, retrofit public buildings to withstand
possibility of damage 5.A E snow loads and sever winds to prevent roof collapse/damage (Sheriff
and Josses due fo Sub-station, EOC, Courthouse)
Severe Weather
Goal 6;
Develop partnerships for a community based vegetation management
possi;?i(tt‘z? cl:'g?nage 6A E program including chipping programs
and losses due to
wildland fires

8-4




SECTIONEIGHT Mitigation Strategy

6B E

subdivision including VC Highlands and Highland Ranches

Continue program using seasenal firefighters and community service
6.C N/E groups to provide veg. mgmt. services to elderly, disable, or low-
income persons to remove flammable veg. around homes

Create a veg. mgmt. program to replace cheat grass wiperennial

6D NIE grasses around communities to slow wildfire spread

Perform study to determine appropriate method to refrofit buildings
6.E E located VC urban fire hazard zone. (i.e. crifical facilifies, commercial
business district, historic district and infrastructure)

implement fuels-reduction treatment along all boundaries of Six Mile

6F N/E Canyon to protect residences and community infastructure
Goal 7:
Reduce the possibifity 7 A N/E Enforce zoning ordinances to reduce public health risks from
of damage and losses ) hazardous materials releases
due to hazardous
materials release

8-5




SECTIONEIGHT

Mitigation Strategy

8.3 EVALUATING AND PRIORITIZING MITIGATION ACTION

The requirements for the evaluation and implementation of mitigation actions, as stipulated in
DMA 2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.

The mitigation actions were finalized during the Planning Committee meeting on October 13,
2011. At this time the Planning Committee evaluated and prioritized each of the actions. To
complete this task, the Planning Committee completed the STAPLE+E evaluation criteria using
rankings of one for lowest and three for highest priority, acceptance, feasibility etc. The
rankings for each action were totaled and the actions with the highest number of points were
cvaluated by the committee. See Table 8-4 for the evaluation criteria.

Table 8-3: STAPLE+E Evaluation Criteria for Mitigation Actions

mportant side nside -

Social The public Support for the overall mitigation | Community acceptance; adversely
strategy and specific mitigation actions affects population

Technical If the mitigation action is technically feasible | Technical feasibility; Long-term solutions;
and if it is the whole or partial solution Secondary impacts

Administrative If the community has the personnel and Staffing: Funding allocation;
administrative capabilities necessary to Maintenance/operations
implement the action or whether outside
help will be necessary

Palitical What the community and its members feel Political support; Local champion; Public
about issues related fo the environment, support
economic development, safety, and
emergency management

Legal Whether the community has the legal Local, State, and Federal authority;
authority to implement the action, or whether | Potential legal challenge
the community must pass new regulations




SECTIONEIGHT

Mitigation Strategy

Economic

If the action can be funded with current or
future internal and external sources, if the
costs seem reasonable for the size of the
project, and if enough information is
available to complete a FEMA Benefit Cost
Analysis

Benefit/cost of action; Contributes to
other economic goals; Outside funding
required; FEMA Benefit Cost Analysis

Environmental

The impact on the environment because of
public desire for a sustainable and
environmentally healthy community

Effect on local fiora and fauna;
Consistent with community
environmental goals; Consistent with
local, State and Federal laws

Upon review by the Planning Committee, mitigation actions were selected for the County that
best fulfill the goals of the HMP and were appropriate and feasible to implement during the 5-
year lifespan of this version of the HMP. In reviewing the actions the Planning Committee

considered the following:

* Actions that strengthen, elevate, relocate, or otherwise improve buildings, infrastructure,
or other facilities to enhance their ability to withstand the damaging impacts of future

disasters

* Actions in which the benefits (which are the reduction in expected future damages and
losses) are greater than the costs considered as necessary to implement the specific action

* Actions that either address multi-hazard scenarios or address a hazard that present the
greatest risk to the jurisdiction

The high priority actions are shown in Table 8-5.

8.4 IMPLEMENTING A MITIGATION ACTION PLAN

A Mitigation Action Plan Matrix was prepared for the County detailing the miti gation actions
and their priority level, how the overall benefit-cost were taken into consideration, and how each
mitigation action will be implemented and administered. This matrix is Table 8-4.




ybiy

"SORf[I0B} [BONLD PUB ‘BINjONLSEul
'$95SaUISNG ‘SaLOY JO LUOROBj0I

Bujobup

pun4 uag
fe00] “}daq 8114 *4aN
‘OIS ‘Wad 'dOWH

daq aiid

“Jjy Aouablalug

10 123Jt) 5L INOGE SISUMTBLIOY
unoju o) wesfoud yoeasno e
Jonpuoa o sisjyByaly [euosess asn

ac

MO

‘Buluueyd-sid o} snp sa) jo uonasioig

Syjuol ¥z-8)

abeyn sopeg
Amnn UNOAN
‘dIAN Y43sn
‘043S "OdiNg

1da( auy

"B ueld pooly
— SHIOM 2liand

‘syenbypes Ue Bulnp yeaiq o fjg} o]
9lam swiay 4 Anful asnes Jybiw jey)
Buieyep (eimoshiyole 1o sjuswsB
[RINIDNISUOU JBUJO pUe ‘s8Nl
‘Buinisys ‘Kiauyorw ‘sse)b ‘subis
‘siadeied Joyoue o) Moy synpe yoes)
i Jeuy weabosd yoeanno dojgasg

Mo

‘Bujuueid-aud
0} enp Apadoud pue saal| Jo Uogoajaly

Buiofup

pun4

usg (8907 "HNOAN
'd3AN VdISN
‘0438 9dW3

1daq aid

16y AousBisuig

'ue|d uopeBgiw sig

U1 passalppe splezey jle Bupniou
1usiuoo uonebiw prezey Jusisisucs
sbemnosus yoiym sweibod
yxeanno ognd uelsns pue dojaaag

ge

ybiy

"SaNio8} [e9fLI9 pUB ‘SIniannseul
'$9559UISN] ‘SSLUOY JO UONISI0I4

BuicBup

pun4 usg) [eao]

1daq UiesH
Pusiqa jooyog

‘Husyg “ydeq a4
“)ubpy AousBiawg

‘a)Is gap, Ajunon

ay} uo pajsod aq (I1m sdi Aiajes ay
‘Alleucnippy "sjusas plezey osay)
10} auedaud pue uansid ‘ajebnw
0] op Ued A3y} Jeym pue AUNWLWOD
Iy} un spaezey syl inoge uaipiiyd
UOES) O} JOLISIP [O0UIS B UM
ssleulplood yey welboud yoralno
LOIBAA YSiY puedxa pue shuRuo:)

winipayy

Bujuueid-eud
0} anp Apadord pue saal| Jo Uopoajolyg

Buobug

pun4 ‘usg) (8507

Buueld Aunon

)
seibnoq /m syuswaa.be Buueys ejep
SI9 Aunog au ul SYSI BU) $$985€ 0)
Angedes Buddew pue g|5 anunuon

gl

MO

syjuow ge-7g

anH
‘pun4 "uag) |eoo

fuluuerg funcn

"sieak

¢ Ai9na saoueuipIn ajepdn “slesh
01 Kiens JINH o Ul padojanap
selfajens uopeusweydiul pug

sdew eale pJezey sy YiIm JUS)SISUCD
8 0] Ueld Jsisely eyl sjepdn

vl

j2A

XLJEIA UR|J UOBOY :p-§ J[qEL

Wiy uons

RG3aens uonesiniy

LHDIHNOLLIIS



"S8ll|108) |BOL0 PUB ‘SINIONNSBHLI
ybiy '$9553UISNq ‘SaLOY |0 HONa]0l4 Buiobup pun4 "ugg) |20 ‘40N

Wswabeuepy
Kouabiawg

“idaq a4

B S ANUNWLLIOD 2} U) SIaUMO
Auadoud o) syeaiq [an] [eLsul Jo
souepodw] sy sziseydwa 0} spoye
UoBa4no snujuos |Ipuncy ajes
Qi1 epeasp ayj jo Jeydeyo 2oo] sy
‘spuefybiH eiuibaa 23 Jo eale B
Butpunonns AjsieipaLuw) pue WYy

¢

"SSIYIOB) [EONLO PUE ‘SinjonAselul anH ‘vYwad
MO ‘59559UISNq ‘SALIOY JO UOKIS)0iY Buiobup ‘pun4 uas) (2907

Waq Bpig
“pub AouaBiswug

“shem-jo-ybu

pec. Buare pug ‘uonoaniIsuca Mau
pue Bugsixe punose ‘sjusiudogsaap ul
Jawabeusw uogejaban Joj seonsesd
JuswisBeuew jsaq uf sj00y2s Aunod
fs1015 pue ‘saiousbe sougus)uELY
peos ajg1g pue Aunos ‘sIciBRUCD
Buiping Jonagsul pue WIcju

0} welBoid ysessno ue ayelu|

d¢

"SAN[108] [BANUO pUe ‘SINjonseifUl
Mo ‘89SSBLISNY ‘SAUI0Y 4O UONDA)0LY Buobup pun4 ‘uss 8207 ‘4EN

1dag sai4
“Jwbyy Aouablews

"spug|poom Jadunp

-Uould 104 saonorid Jusiabeuew
1884 Jnoge siaumo Asdoid

PUE ‘SUOHEIIOSSE JaUMOALLOY
‘S[IoUN02 2Jeg 14 Lo

0} SS{IUNLILIOCD [UOIIpPE SphiaL o)
|punog ajes a4 spuelybi- puedxg

Huwing a4

acelall| UBgIN SAIPIAL [BNULE 3L} 0]
sisqusw Jaideyy sjes alld Bupsixe
10 eouepusye abeinosua pue
‘wiesBoid and ypiay Buiaig aup yum
PBAJOALI BLUOISY O] SIUMOBLIOY
abenooua ‘aup(im e BUIAANS suioy
J15Y) Jo aoueyg e sacidu 0) uojoe
fiessa0au sy axe) 0] SISUMOBLLOY
abeinoous 0y 'sawioy Jisy) punose
SpIEZBY Q4IpjiM 8L} S0NpPa) ueD
SI3UMOSWIOY MOY UlE|dxa O) ‘SaypiMm

XLQRI\ UB[ UOHIV -8 I[qEL

AG3ajens vone6niw

LHOIINOLLIIS




01-8

JuawsBeuepy
'sall[10B) (B340 pUE ‘SIMonNSELU Nad ‘d9NH YIN3S Rouablaws
‘59855 U[SNQ 'SBWIOY JO LOHI0IY Bulobug ‘pund "uac) |eoc “1daq Bpig

'SWiajqosd payiuspl 10800

0} weJbord Bupjyonas [pIMONRISLOY B
dojanap ‘uolio SIy) yim uonouniuos
u] ‘ayenbules e Buunp yesiq

UBIL JeI SUaWS|S [eImanSUoU

Joj |eoiyo Buipping & £q pajoadsul
ale aunjaniselUr pue sai|ioe)
[EONLD PUEB 'SIOBUDS 'SOSSaUISN
‘satuoy yomym Ul ueibold uonosdsuy
Buip|ing Alejunjoa & dojsaag

Ve

‘uonoeyold oy
Buisueyus oy sysinbaesd Alessanau

XLOEIA URld UOIOY ip-§ Iqe],

AG3jens uoneaiiw

LHDIHNOLLIIS




11-8

S91J|10€} (eSO pUB “BINJONI)SEYU) 'd30N 'Yasn 4y Ljin LIOREUIPIOOD SPNIaUl PINOM
WNIpsly | ‘s98$8UISNg ‘SAOY ‘SBAI JO UOIj0S]0id SLJuoW 82 "YINd ' dOWH ‘Wad S}IOM JNqnd 124 sue|d pooy sjepdn pue Mooy L
pung SHIOM
SO} [BORLD PUE ‘SINongseyul Ues) [2207 ‘ANH | 2lland g Buiuuelg Sjgols 9 g g uo
4Bt | ‘sesseuisnq ‘sauoy 'say Jo UORRlOLd | SUIOW 8T SN'WQd ‘dOWH | ‘Buipyng Aunog |  SSPEORLOMORRIOMIES anURUOD o'
pun4 JuswsBeueyy "$51N[BA 195LUU0DSIP
SON|108) {230 PUB ‘BIMONASELUI U9 (8967 ‘UNH Aouahisw3 aenblyues suedoud sBuipiing
WRIPBA | “sassauisng ‘sawioy ‘sani| Jo U0josjold S{juow gF-vg SN ‘Wad 'dOWH “1deq ‘Bpig olignd pue ajeaud He uo sy I
"SOAEA JO-INUS ONELIOTE SB
yons ‘sainseaw uoneBniw JusudLl
pung Juswiabeuey pue saujjadid uoissisue)y
SSNI0E 12INLO PUE “SINIONASEL uag o0 'anH | AousBisug ‘syiom 118y} 0} si1 o|LUSISS By} Bjeniens
WNIPSIN | ‘sassauisng ‘sawioy ‘sanl| jo uonosjord | SWUOW 87 SN ‘Wad ‘d9WH | dland "1deq Bpig 0) safuediio AJ|IN ujm 3opm g
"sBuipjing [esuojsiy
paUnUSp! uUEM pajeoo] selousbe
Juswiuienob pue ‘aimonsselul
‘safy|ioe} [eafi o} uanB Auold
Jaybiy upm ‘Ayapes Jo) sjusLuannbal
pund Jusuwsbeueyy O] JUBLIND JSOW B} JsaW
SOIIoR) (221110 PUE *SINjoNYSEU| U9 18007 ‘ANH | Aousbialg ‘syiom Jou op jey) sease Bupreys Buoss
UOIH | ‘sassauisng ‘sewoy ‘sany jo uoposioly | SHIUOW 87 SN ‘Wad 'dOWH | oHdnd “1daq “Bpig UILYIM S)9SSE {EONLID |[B 14018 ae
sbutpiing
[e2LIO}SIY pue sesie Buiyeys
-6ty PSYRUSP! UILRIM SINONLISELU|
pung Juswsbelep | pue seyiioe} (238U POUMO-AIUNOY
SONIoE) {2011 pue ‘aInonsselUl ‘Usg) [e90 'anH | Aouebiaw3 ‘syiom Joadsut 0} s19auiBus [2Imonys Joj
WP | “sassauisng ‘sauwioy ‘sany o UonI8}0ld SLjuow g7 SN ‘Wad ‘dOWH | oliand “1deg “Bpig Buipuny spmoid o) weiboud eyeniu g
"sBuip|ing jeaiolsiy peynuap!
UjUpM paleso] saruabe Justuuianoh
PUB ‘SIMOnASesU ‘SaIIoe) [EINID
pung JuswisBeuepy o} Aioud Jaubiy yyum Jusiuiaach
$811[108} |29 PUE 'SINONLSEUI “Us9 (@207 'aNH Aouablow3 PUe ‘S3WoY ‘sseuisng sjeald
MOT | 'sassauisng ‘sswioy 'sany jo uogosjolg | SUUOW B2 SN ‘Wad ‘dOwH “jdaq ‘Bpig 104 JjO2}21 PUBLUIODA) § UDBSAND ae
no o

XLYEIA] Ut]d WOTOY -8 I[QE

AG31eNS HonehNIN LHOTHNOILIIS




c1-8

SSIII0.} [BOIUO PUB "3INjonaselul

Md ‘2007
‘SOMAN 'Yd3sn
‘d3AN Yasn 04y

{esnoyunoy

003 ‘uoejs-gng Jusys)
abeLuep/esdejoo jool Jusasid

0} SpUIM JOASS pUE SPEO| MOUS
puejsym o} sBuip|ing aljqnd Jyo.es

UblH | ‘sessauisng ‘seluoy ‘SaAl| Jo uofoslold Syjuow 8-z “YIAd ‘dONH ‘Wad SHIOM 21IdNd ‘JalJeam 2JaAas 0} ysl Je seale Ul ve
Md '[B207 {OA "POCMYD0T "&'f) PO} a0
‘SOUAN ‘Yd3sn Joedwi sanpai o} safoe) Juswess
SaNiog) 2RO PUB ‘SINjonSeLul 'd3AN 'Yasn ‘o4 pue ‘obelojs 'saumons asueAsauoD
wnipaly | 'Sesseuisng ‘SalLoY ‘SaA| JO LO[08]0.d SYUoW gy-+z VN ‘dOWH ‘WNad SHIOM, 211qnd 1ayem Bupgsixe soueyus pue 1981014 o)
‘09 A210)S 1noyBnosy)
Md ‘007 SHuswWaAoIdus) [SUUBYD pUe SIAIND
‘SOYAN 'Yd3IsSn Bupnioul spiepue]s JUsiIng o} WejsAs
S3lll|108) [EOHLD PUB ‘aIMoniselul ‘d3aN Yasn '3y ulp wiols Bunsixe aup jo spesbdn
Wnipapy | 's8sssuISNg ‘SaLoY ‘'SaAll JO U010 syjuowl gy-vg ‘YW ‘dONH 'Wad SHIOM 211and Buipnjoul segi|0B} POOY MBU [fEISU| v

Md ‘1e207

J011U0O POOY 0} Uoeoudde
jeuorias e Bupoddns sjomsip

‘SOYAN Yd3sn
21N05

XLYEA] UR[J UODIY :p-§ d[qe],

[elaads pue ‘ssnk ‘salunod Jusselpe
LT i i

AGajens uonesnim

LHOIINOILIIS



t1-8

Joo1uanaid seses|sl Siusjew

‘sassalIsng

"sanoey pun "usg Snoplezey woy sysu yieay aygnd
MOT | {EO)LIO PUB ‘SINONISEIUL JO LORIS01 SUIUOW ¥-74 [£907 ‘dOWH ‘Wad ideq Suiping | sonpatr o} seaueulpIo Buoz soioug v/
Md ‘Te20
‘(oy Jsjep ues|D)
sjuesb (y)sLe ‘w34 QUNNSEHUL AIUNLILLOD
‘SOUN Yd3asn pue sasuspisal 10sj04d 0] uoAuen
NI[19B} [2OBLID PUE ‘SIMDNISEIIU ‘dIaN ‘vasn 8|l XIS Jo sauepunoq | Buoje
ubiH '$9859UISNq ‘SSUIOY JO LUOKOB}0I sUjuow ge-g ‘044 "dOWH Wad 1dag aid | juswyesy uononpai-seny juswe|dul 49
{eumonyseyu) pue oLsip
OLIOJSHY JOLISIP $SBUISNG [RI2/BWWOD
Md g0 10g) [eaflo 9’} -auoz piezey
'SOHAN 'vd3sn 3.l UBGUN HA paleoo] sbulpping
'S@HI9€] [eNLD PUE ‘BINjongselul ‘d3aN ‘vasn 1401191 0) poyjatt ajeLdoidde
wnipajy '$9550UISNG "SAWIOY JO UOFOB)0I SUIIOW 9E-t7 ‘34 ‘dOWH ‘Wad 1de( ail4 auILLsap 0} Apnis wious 9
‘uofeupIons Md ‘18207 ‘W1g peaids aJypim
[euciBal BuuagBuags ajium 'SOMAN V35N MO|S 0] SBIUNLLLLIOD punote sassell
$olll|ioBy [2ORLT pue ‘aimanJselul ‘d3AN ‘vasn [euuasadim sseifi Jealo soedal
Mo ‘$98S8UISNY 'SALOY JO UOROB)0Id SUluowW 9¢-4z ‘044 'dONH Wad ‘deq aul4 o} welboid Jwbuw Ban e spesin ag
soLioy punole “Ban s|qeue)
aAoWal o) suostad swoou
Md '(ea07 ‘W1g -M0O] 10 ‘a|gesIp ‘Alap|e 0} S80S
‘SOYON Yd3asn wibui Bon spinosd o) sdnoib
Sap|lio.y (2140 pue 'SinjonRsEU) ‘d3AN Yasn 80195 ANUNLWWOD pug sislyBya
ybiH '$9553UISNq ‘SAUIOY JO UOIBI0I SYIUOW 9E-¥Z 04y ‘d9WH ‘Wad Jdeq au4 leuosess Buisn wesboid snupuoy g
Md ‘o0 ‘Wd seyauey puejybiy pue
‘SOHAN Yd3Isn spueybiH oA Butpniau uoisinpgns
SSI}[1o8) feOnlLd pue ‘snjonselu 'd3AaN ‘Yasn BHJUS MY} SYealq [on; popeus
ubiH '58558UISNY ‘SaLLOY JO UORIF0IY SUIUoW 9e-p7 ‘04 ‘d9OWH '‘Wad Jdag 8414 ‘a|qesbeue 812810 HA BU) UM a9
Md 18901 ‘Wi sweJbouid Buiddiyo
‘SOHAN 'Yd3sn Buipniou weibosd Juawabeusw
S3)I||19.} [BON1IO pUE ‘SIMannSELUI ‘d3aN ‘yasn uoiejsfion paseq AYuUnwWLod
SUuoW 9e-i7

'S8LUoY JO UoHIR]0ld
NEAIUOU0D

044 ‘dOWH ‘Wad

XUIBJ UE[J UODDY :p-§ I[qE,

Jdeq ail4

e Jo sdiysiauped dojarsg
waluonay.

AG631ens uonehniw

LHOIHNOILIIS



AaaIng [eordofoen §11 = $OSN

90TAJeR Al S = S4SN

A5uaBY uoNv9]01g [BIUSWUONALY 'S (] = VTSN
IOy Jo jusunredsa(] "§'N = YASN
uorssIunuo)y asuodssy Asusdrowry ;e = IS
uojerodio]y aoueul] sanossy =1}

uonEIHIN 191sesIg-21d = AAd

$20IAT2G

UOHBAJOSEOL) 90IN0SaY 1da(] BPRAON=SIUAN
Ansa1o, Jo juswpreda(] BpeASN = J(IN
UOI910E]

[BIUSTULIOAL JO UOISIAL( BPRASN = JHON
juswdofaas(g ueqin) % SUSNO=(NH
WeIZ0LJ WUBID UoneSy prezey] = JONH

SOURISISSY JUSTUSZLUR ] POO[I=VIALL

JueID

20URLIIOLIR JUSWRSBuURy AoueFIowry = OJNH
Almoag pueewoH Jo 1deq =SHA

SHOM SN = Md

WOUIRERUBIA PURT JO neaing =T

abewep/asde|jos

XU UELJ UOIDY :p-§ o[qe],

AGatens uonehw

LHDIHNOILDIS




SECTIONNINE Plan Maintenance

This section describes a formal plan maintenance process to ensure that the HMP remains an
active and applicable document. It includes an explanation of how the County and the Planning
Committee intend to organize its efforts to ensure that improvements and revisions to the HMP
occur in a well-managed, efficient, and coordinated manner.

The following three process steps are addressed in detail below:
* Monitoring, evaluating, and updating the HMP
¢ Implementation through existing planning mechanisms

¢ Continued public involvement

9.1 MONITORING, EVALUATING, AND UPDATING THE HMP

The requirements for monitoring, evaluating, and updating the HMP, as stipulated in the DMA
2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.

The County Emergency Manager recognizes the need for plan maintenance and wanted to
include tools into the plan for maintenance. The HMP was prepared as a collaborative effort
between the County Emergency Management, and the Local Emergency Management
Committee (LEPC) and the Nevada Division of Emergency Management. To maintain
momentum and build upon this hazard mitigation planning effort, the LEPC will monitor,
evaluate, and update the HMP. The LEPC will be responsible for implementing the Mitigation
Action Plan. The County Emergency Manager will serve as the primary points of contact and
will coordinate all local efforts to monitor, evaluate, and revise the HMP.

The LEPC will conduct an annual review of the progress in implementing the HMP, particularly
the Mitigation Action Plan. As shown in Appendix E, the Annual Review Questionnaire and
Mitigation Action Progress Report will provide the basis for possible changes in the overall
Mitigation Action Plan by refocusing on new or more threatening hazards, adjusting to changes
to or increases in resource allocations, and engaging additional support for the HMP
implementation. The County Emergency Manager will initiate the annual review one month
prior to the date of adoption. The findings from this review will be presented annually to the
County Manager. The review will include an evaluation of the following;

9-1




SECTIONNINE Plan Maintenance

¢ Participation of County agencies and others in the HMP implementation.
» Notable changes in the County’s risk of natural or human-caused hazards.
¢ Impacts of land development activities and related programs on hazard mitigation.

* Progress made implementing the Mitigation Action Plan (identify problems and suggest
improvements as necessary).

* The adequacy of resources for implementation of the HMP,

The process of reviewing the progress on achieving the mitigation goals and implementing the
Mitigation Action Plan activities and projects will also be accomplished during the annual
review process. During each annual review, a Mitigation Action Progress Report will be
submitted to the Planning Committee and provide a brief overview of mitigation projects
completed or in progress since the last review. As shown in Appendix E, the report will include
the current status of the mitigation project, including any changes made to the project, the
identification of implementation problems and appropriate strategies to overcome them, and
whether or not the project has helped achieve the appropriate goals identified in the plan.

In addition to the annual review, the LEPC will update the HMP every five years. To ensure that
this occurs, in the third year following adoption of the HMP, the LEPC will undertake the
following activities:

» Thoroughly analyze and update the County’s risk of natural and man-made hazards.

* Provide a new annual review (as noted above), plus a review of the three previous annual
reports.

* Provide a detailed review and revision of the mitigation strategy.
*» Prepare a new action plan with prioritized actions, responsible parties, and resources.
® Prepare a new draft HMP and submit it to the County for adoption.

* Submit an updated HMP to the Nevada State Hazard Mitigation Officer and FEMA for
approval.

9.2 IMPLEMENTATION THROUGH EXISTING PLANNING MECHANISMS

The requirements for implementation through existing planning mechanisms, as stipulated in the
DMA 2000 and its implementing regulations, are described below.




SECTIONNINE Plan Maintenance

After the adoption of the HMP, the LEPC will continue to ensure that the HMP, in particular the
Mitigation Action Plan, is incorporated into existing planning mechanisms. Each member of the
LEPC will achieve this incorporation by undertaking the following activities.

e Conduct a review of the community-specific regulatory tools to assess the integration of the
mitigation strategy. These regulatory tools are identified in Table 7-1.

e Work with pertinent divisions and departments to increase awareness of the HMP and
provide assistance in integrating the mitigation strategy (including the action plan) into
relevant planning mechanisms. Implementation of these requirements may require updating
or amending specific planning mechanisms.

Since the first Storey County HMP 2010 was adopted Storey County has developed a Storey

County Comprehensive Flood Control Plan 2011 which includes mitigation actions to reduce
flood and Storey County Flood Zone Plan 2012 which provides restricted building in mapped
flood zones.

9.3 CONTINUED PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT

The requirements for continued public involvement, as stipulated in the DMA 2000 and its
implementing regulations, are described below.

The County is dedicated to involving the public directly in the continual reshaping and updating
of the HMP. Hard copies of the HMP will be provided to each department. In addition, a
downloadable copy of the plan and any proposed changes will be posted on the County’s Web
site. This site will also contain an e-mail address and phone number to which interested parties
may direct their comments or concems.

The LEPC will also identify opportunities to raise community awareness about the HMP and the
County’s hazards. This could include attendance and provision of materials at sponsored events.
Any public comments received regarding the HMP will be collected by the County Emergency
Manager, included in the annual report to the County Manager, and considered during future
HMP updates. A press release and public notice by the County will be issued each year before
the annual maintenance meeting inviting the public to participate.

9-3




SEGTIONTEN References

The following websites or documents were accessed between October 2010 and March 2011.

dePolo, C., G. Johnson, J. Price and J Mauldin 2009. Quatenary Faults in Nevada.
hitp:/fwww.nbmg. unr.edu/dox/of099.pdf .

Hess R. and C. dePolo 2006. Loss-Esimtation Modeling of Earthquake Scenarios for Each Co. in
Nevada Using HAZUS-MH. http.//www.nbmg unr.edu/dox/of061/0f061.pdf .

Price J, G. Johnson, C. Ballard, H. Armeno, I. Seeley, L. Goar, C. dePolo, J. Hastings. Estimated
Losses from Earthquakes near Nevada Communities.
http://'www nbme.unr.edu/dox/0f098/Scenarios/OpenFileReport09-8.pdf .

FEMA. 2009. Flood Insurance Study: Storey County, Nevada.

FEMA. 2008. How-To Guide: To Mitigate Potential Terrorist Attacks Against Buildings. U.S.
Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency. FEMA
452. http://www.fema.gov/library/viewRecord.do?id=1938 .

FEMA. 2002a. 44 CFR Parts 201 and 206, RIN 3067-AD22, Hazard Mitigation Planning and
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, Interim Final Rule. In Federal Register 67, No. 38.
U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency.
http://www.fema.gov/pdf/fima/fr02_4321.pdf.

FEMA. 2002b. State and Local Plan Interim Criteria Under the Disaster Mitigation Act of
2000 — Final Drafi. U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency

Management Agency. http://www.fema.gov/fima/planning toc4.shtm .
FEMA. 2002¢c. How-To Guide #1: Getting Started: Building Support For Mitigation Planning.

U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency.
FEMA 386-1. http://www.fema.gov/fima/planning_toc3.shtm . September.

FEMA. 2002d. How-To Guide #7: Integrating Human-Caused Hazards Into Mitigation
Planning. U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management
Agency. FEMA 386-7.

FEMA. 2002e. 44 CFR Parts 201 and 206, RIN 3067-AD22, Hazard Mitigation Planning and
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, Interim Final Rule. In Federal Register 67, no. 190,
U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency.
http://'www.fema. gov/pdf/fima/fi02 24998.pdf .

FEMA. 2003a. How-To Guide #3: Developing The Mitigation Plan; Identifying Mitigation
Actions And Implementing Strategies. U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal
Emergency Management Agency. FEMA 386-3.

FEMA. 2003b. How-To Guide #4: Bringing the Plan to Life: Implementing the Hazard
Mitigation Plan. U.S. Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency
Management Agency. FEMA 386-4.

Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology. 2000, Living With Earthquakes: A Nevadan’s Guide to
Preparing for, Surviving, and Recovering from an Earthquake. Special Publication.

Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology. 2009. Estimated Losses from Earthquakes near Nevada
Communities. http://www.nbmg.unr.edu/dox/of098/Scenarios/County _Scenarios/

10-1




SEGTIONTEN References

Nevada Bureau of Mines and Geology. Map. Earthquakes in Nevada 1852-2008
www.nbmg.unr.edu/dox/m119.pdf

Nevada Division of Emergency Management. State of Nevada Enhanced Multi-Hazard
Mitigation Plan 2013,

Nevada State Demographer. 2012. Population Projections for Nevada Counties.
http:/nvdemography.or -content/uploads/2012/10/2012-Oct-1-Population-
Projections.pdf

Resource Concepts, Inc. 2005. Nevada Community Wildfire Risk/Hazard Assessment Project:
Storey County. http://www.rci-nv.com/reports/storey

United States Census Bureau. 2010. American Fact Finder Fact Sheet.
http://factfinder.census.gov , hitp:/quickfacts.census.gov/qfd/states/32/32021 .html.

United States Drought Monitor. 2014, http://www.drought.unl.edu/dm/monitor.html

Western Regional Climate Center. 2005. Historical Climate Information.
hitp://'www.wree.dri.edu/CLIMATEDATA htmi .

10-2




Appendix A
Adoption Resolution




Appendix A
Adoption Resolution

Sample

Appendix B
Adoption Resolution
Resolution #09-294

WHEREAS Storey County has historically experienced severe damage from natural and human-
caused hazards such as flooding, wildfire, drought, thunderstorms/high winds, and hazardous

-materials incidents on many occasions.in the-past century, resulting inloss of property.and life,. .. ...
economic hardship, and threats to public health and safety;

WHEREAS the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan (the Plan) has been developed after more
than one year of research and work by the County 's Office of Emergency Management in
association and cooperation with the County Planning Team for the reduction of hazard risk to

the community;

WHEREAS the Plan specifically addresses hazard mitigation strategies and plan maintenance
procedures for Storey County,

WHEREAS the Plan recommends several hazard mitigation actions/projects that will provide
mitigation for specific natural and human caused hazards that impact Storey County with the
etfect of protecting people and property from loss associated with those hazards;

WHEREAS a public notice was posted for the Plan for comment and review as required by law;

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED
by the County Commission, that;

1. The Plan is hereby Adepted as an official plan of Storey County

2. The respective officials identified in the mitigation strategy of the Plan are hereby directed to
pursue implementation of the recommended actions assigned to them.

3. Future revisions and Plan maintenance required by the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 and
FEMA, are hereby adopted as a part of this resolution for a period of five (5) years from the
date of this resolution.

4. An annual report on the progress of the implementation elements of the Plan shall be
presented to the, County Commission by October 31 of each calendar year.




Appendix A
Adontion Resolution

™

Proposed on the 15* day of December, 2009 by the Storey County Commission.

Passed on the 15" day of December, 2009,

AY@S: KW ' jf'jwﬂ%

Nays: neni_
Absent: n' DO~

This ordinance shail be in full force and effect from and after the 15% day of December 2009.

—bsenT—

Greg Hess, Chairman
Storey County Commission

ST:
ﬁ:n 03] odU\Wm

Vanessa Dixon -
Storey Coynty Clerk

- Qb&e,_n‘rw

Commission Chair, Greg Hess

Comumissioner, Bob Kershaw

Commissioner, Iohn F ianagan

V215-09
Date
R AT G
Date

} 2 — #s"’-.-{';\
Date




Appendix B
Figures




Ropendix B
Figures

SEFR O LEANES iy
WASHOE 20

R+

R
S Ged

Storey County, NV

- Populated Areas - :

Tha dwa coninad Facein has beet acues andier sermpkas inoa
FHEQIRR it systan 13153 by Dowgian Sounty kot the Um
0 175 35 7 Miles S Siaery Gasmg, Tow daks Govs S, MRS ey Seirgaien
- - and E1EF et be eodatred ax g el for ik rhoave
ssoze, plat maz, dveds, oAl 4

A 2 Fanlly b asiimas By
Lt 1 ] 1 I ] ] | oty g e ey 315 yorariuscy

Map Elements

'opidated Areas

T

swsir | peal Roads

: Counly Boundary

B-1




SRR

FABAaTES T

it

=

-
=

et

¥

23

i

Zoning

e tor Twsin Setales {1, a5 & 1oAcH

ERTE 1 Ar Estates, VG Bighlands 355 Hobile Home Park

HHE 10 Ac states, VT Highiands 32 Mutipta Reslaensal

HHE 20 Ac Estatas, VG Hightands 355 Nalors: Resnurces

B Agniculture FETEFannact Yot Develapmeant
55 Commezcin¥Reskientsal R Pubie

1 Forestry iz Residentiol

i Heawy industrial H szesal ndusteial

HE Light Incusirial g Spasial Flannind Revisw

Storey County,

- Zoning/Land Use -

Tie deta aontaned beceby has batn Souwz anzor compfed i 2

: geegrphiz irlpmaion 1yren (5] by Tovjlis Soung B the use

6 M; f Storey Coummy. The 003 dedt not aresent totney celimaaton
el vhoyts ag b cominied 21 3 piacemant ki T autharEalvr

1 1 L 1 1 1 I 1 ] BCICR, DHAE AT, M, Ty, 030, N5 1kt IF magmed By

Y 1.5 3

Szmy

Canety orBgias Covoty eras e SUlemmiy cr Jemrasy
SR A, .

L i sk

B-2




Appendix B
Figures

é?
Hap Elements
Flood Hazards ~ — Hydralagy Features
. AZane e Loyeal Roade
Fareniblil.
AE Zone I County Baundary
AL Fioodway Zpae Worid Shaded Refief
TN AD Zone

XZora Shaded
a]

Storey County, NV

- FEMA Flood Zones -

3 & 12 Miles
J

Tha dia conlained Barain Pas bees houped onsior emabeT it A
Qeogphi 3o Kyfier 1015] by Dovslis Tany K T ore
o Sty Coimy TR Gl 0648 L RERAISL 40rAY G radien
ond shouts 2t e constiued 25 3 apfazemes K the sutiodatin
decioe, it pard. el msvnays. et Ke bikiy b ashiad iy
Sitrey Loy o Dtgit Curly 4 952 Ba 3ukmancy o astardzy
ottha cata. !

B-3




Appendix B
Figures

Storey County, NV

- Dry Lightning/Wildland Fire Risk -

Map Elements

Lighting Risk
H;

Lower Risk

- Locat Roads

Tea deu contacsd broein fas bas boawd e compEed in 3

. geegrphic whiamasen sysiem (5:8) by Devglis County tor e Wite

0 15 3 6 Miles <f Stovey Gounty. S84 da doss ol epresest sarvey seiickaion
3 G

I 1 1 1 I | L t I wpzie, st s, TESIEYE #2. LSy B s By
Sy Cosery b Bonglan oty o184 e sfESRY O MUY
. .

ity Boundary

£

B-4




Appendix B
Figures

b
5

.
e
it

iyt

£

£

B-5

for tr uta
ST AT Ak

v

e tenpiadin 2

3 3
ressod

Paseea for the whodiive

71, 4%, lid STy B askamd by
033 T foa VDA o A2ucady

emad as am

. F¥mats. Cesds rercme;
Cauriy o1 B

oAk,

5 Tow Eha 6058 mot
oz Doy

Trt dria 2o ad Bacei e bass b

ey

6 Mites

1.5

1
K%
il
oo
kS

e
-
=

£

K

Lz
'

>
=
-y
-
o
-
O
&
=
o
QO
e
75

Eounty Boundlary

Local Roads

:

i Foderale

Map Elements

Fuet Threat

5
.
0

P




THESA B S o
WASHOE ©O P U
AW g b, s b g’“ﬂ L
| T, "’“W«Eg’w a
H ' 4

e
j}
i

g,

“4‘?.‘
or s - ™
e '?1.% &

’E‘f“"%m”

i

¥

T
s 2,
St

ks

b

4
S,

g"h"-‘ o,

i
¢
3

:

e

v,

g
%

”"Gaaw,y{:‘f o

WTON GO

1\»:’ Bt

&

P
fM &; ﬁi,n;ﬁwi o f
P E

i
¢

Storey County, NV

- Wildland Flre History -

Map Elements
gwg Histeric Fire Scars
s

T dota conizingd Fcwin Tas s boand ander cenpies

0 15 3 & Mi PECPTIRNE PO Fyviem (£257 by Sy e e ust
R 1 2 Sy oty Toe e coas ns FEAMT Surey Seaatia

et o Se conateund 4 2 REITENET: X D JunaRIEv

'l 1 1 1 | 1 1 1 | wids. ceruo e e Ha KoKy b astomes by
;wm c:,w‘; el Coriy o b5 1 nay o atzary

e Lol Roads
County Boundary







Appendix C
Public Information




Appendix G
Public Information

Press Release

STOREY COUNTY
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PRESS RELEASE

January 2013

In recent years nature has been restless in Nevada; there has been a swarm of earthquakes
rattling the western portion of the State immediately adjacent to Storey County as well as the
levee breech in Fernley not to mention the ravishing wildland fires surrounding the Reno area
as well as throughout the State. All of these emergency events have demonstrated to us all
that Storey County can be vulnerable to disasters, including earthquakes, floods, and wildland
fires. The risks posed by these hazards will continue to increase as the County’s population
continues to grow.

Storey County and Nevada have launched a planning effort, known as the Hazard Mitigation
Plan, to assess risks posed by natural disasters and identify ways to reduce those risks. This plan
is required under the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 as a pre-requisite for receiving
certain forms of Federal disaster assistance.

Storey County began this planning process in January 2013 and is making a questionnaire
available for public input. The County anticipates submittal of the draft plan to the Board of
County Commissioners for adoption during 2015.

Public comments and participation is welcomed. For additional information, request to
participate, or to submit comments, please contact Cheri Nevin, Storey County at (775) 847-
0986, cnevin@storeycounty.org.




Anpendix C
Public Information

Questionnaire

This questionnaire is designed to help the County Hazard Mitigation Planning Committee identify the
community’s concerns about natural and human-caused hazards. The questionnaire should be completed
by an adult, preferably the homeowner or the head of the household and returned to the address at the
bottom of the page. All individual responses are strictly confidential and for research purposes only.

Questions call (775)847-0986.

1. RESIDENT (Y/N)? # YEARS IN County? 0-1 2-5 £6-10 11 or more

2. Have you experienced any of the natural hazards listed helow?

Floods Avalanche Hazardous Mate.r:i
Wild Fire Health Alert/Mass Disease
Earthquake Severe Windstorm
Severe Weather Expansive Soils
Drought Landsubsidence/Ground
Failure

3. What is the most effective way for you to receive information about how to make your home safer
from natural disasters? (Check all that apply)

o Newspaper o Internet o Radio o Public Meetings

o Television o Utility Bill o Mail o Billboard

4. In the following list, please check those activities that apply.

Attended meetings or received written information on natural disasters or
emergency preparedness?

Talked with family members about what to do in case of a disaster or emergency?

Developed a “Household/Family Emergency Plan” in order to decide what everyone
would do in the event of a disaster?

Prepared a “Disaster Supply Kit” {extra food, water, medications, batteries, first aid
items and other emergency supplies)?

in the last year, has anyone in your household been trained in First Aid or Cardio-




Appendix 6
Public Information

Pulmonary Resuscitation (CPR)?

5. Is your property located in or near a FEMA designated floodplain? Do you carry flood
insurance?

apply)

6. What modifications for earthquakes and/or floods have you made to your home? (Check all that

Anchor bookcases, cabinets to wall

Secure home to foundation

Secure water heater to wall

Brace inside of cripple wall
with sheathing

install latches on drawers/cabinets

Brace unreinforced chimney

Fit gas appliances with flexible connections

Brace unreinforced masonry & concrete
walls and foundations

Flood proof

Elevate home

Other

7. Do you support policies to restrict or prohibit development in designated hazard zones?

Development should be prohibited in these zones

Development should be restricted in these zones.

Development should be restricted only where “severe risk” exists

Development should NOT be restricted in hazard zones

I don’t know.

8. Please rank how prepared you feel you and your household are for the probable impacts of natural
hazard events. Rank on a scale of 1 to 5 with 5 being the most prepared.

9. Other Comments:

C-3




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas & Handouts




Appendix D
Meeting Agenidas & Handouts

Meeting 1 Agenda

AGENDA
Storey County Mitigation Planning Subcommittee
Wednesday, January 9, 2013- 1:00 p.m.
‘Wal-Mart Distribution Center #7048
2155 USA Pkwy
McCarran, Nevada 89434

1. PUBLIC COMMENT (NO ACTION) No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item on the
agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will
be taken. Time limits on Public Comment will be at the direction of the Chairman of the Committee.

2. DISCUSSION (NO ACTION): WELCOME & INTRODUCTIONS
Karen Johnson & Elizabeth Ashby, Division of Emergency Managemtent

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: PLANNING PROCESS OVERVIEW
Karen Johnson

a. General Information — Purpose of the plan
b. Storey Co. Planning/LEPC’s Role
c. Douglas County GIS Group Role — Erik Schmidt, Douglas County
d. My Plan- Gary Johnson, UNR
e. State Floodplain Management — Luke Opperman, Division of Water Rescurces’
f. Public Participation
g. Contact by email and phone
4, DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: INCORPORATION OF EXISTING PLANS
Karen Johnson

5. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTYON: TABLE 8-2 & 8-3 MITIGATION GOALS AND
ACTIONS REVIEW — Karen Johnson

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: HAZARD IDENTIFICATION TABLE & HAZARD
RANKING —Karen Johnson

7. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: ANNOUNCEMENT OF FUTURE MEETINGS

8. ADJOURNMENT

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Tuesday of the week preceding the regular
meeting. For information call (775) 847-0986.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the beginning of each meeting (this comment should be limited to
matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed after each item on the agenda (this
comment should be limited to the item on the agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the
discretion of the Chairman. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color, religion, gender,
disability, family status, or nation origin.




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas & Handouts

Meeting No. 1 - Sign In Sheet

Storey County Fazard Mitipafion Plannin_g Commifies

Agengy

ey Inptt ‘Phone

o vnEid

Lo, Feanl, e

3‘%!-«55 € e T g

s 2 B s, S b

H f

Lty andin s £ Sndon e

Starey County Hazard Mitlgm]r.“ﬁ Maﬁﬂin-g Commitag

Agrney

- KR lnpt . Phune

il

P
R A TR g e R S
a &

D-3




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas & Handouts

Meeting # 1 - Handouts

T 5"F'i:ﬁdings-}ifiiﬁco'fpbrat'ioh

Storey County Master Plan
20 )

Building Code

IBC

FEMA Flood Insurance Study,

This study addresses all flood plain issues

Storey Co. Nevada (FEMA
20 ):
. The state MHMP is updated every three years by the
ﬁ';;t.e ofNe;f;da Muldi-Hazard SHMO and includes all hazards to be addressed in
itigation Plan this HIMP.
Regional To develop strategies for floodplain management that

Floodplain Management Plan

can be applied regionally as well as locally.

Hazardous Materials
Emergency Response Plan
20

Community Wildfire Protection
Plan, RCI (January 2005)

This document includes findings and recommendations for
mitigating the threat to property from wildland fires.

Emergency Operations Plan (

)

This document is the main reference source for managing
disasters and large scale emergencies in Storey County.

Storey County Fire Code ?777?

D-4




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas & Handouts

*;.:' ’;'?.}\{e'rjy i g h RISk @

State

- Risk -

- Very Low Risk |

Earthquake

Flood

Epidemic

Drought .

Avalanche

Terrorism/MWMD

Wildfire

Severe winter
storm

Hazardous

materials event P

Expansive soils

Severe

windstorm .

Extreme heat

Tsunami/seiche

Land
subsidence and
ground failure

Hail and
thunderstorm

Infestation

Tornado

Volcano

D-5




Qi pywsHoa]
yeluzey

P
OUED[OA

SUOI@S/IUBUNS |

opeLio]

ULICISPUIN 319A5G
ULIO)S J2JUIAR 219A0G
2|8} punolb  s0UapsIaNs pue]

suoheIsaj|
wgls1apuntj} ¢ |1eH

{sapijspnu
pue sayaipjjeues ‘pooy ysey
‘athjie) wep sapnjouj) poo

163l slalxS

s|10§ aAIsSuRdxg

lwapiday

sayenbypey
yfinoig

asde|jon
ydeys aury) punols Buire)

UIUB[EAY

: anbal: S o

: awmm Ll ﬁywmmt «%mwimu
e B it B
wwmw.%mmmww i i e e e B

159UPIE = § 1S8R0 = | puBbaT
Jeaysiop Buyyoid prezey

Sinopuel 8 sepuahy Hunaap
a Xipuaddy




AppendixD
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

These criteria will be used to categorize the identified hazards into high, medium and low risk hazards.

Criterion One: Magnitude

Magnitude refers to the physical and economic impact of the event. Magnitude factors are represented
by:

1. Size of event
2. Life threatening nature of the event
3. Economic impact of the event
4. Threat to property
a. Public Sector
b. Private Sector
¢. Business and Manufacturing
d. Tourism
e. Agriculture
Value:
1. Verylow Handled by community
2. low Handled at city/town level
3. Medium Handled at county level
4. High State must be involved
5. VeryHigh Federal declaration needed

Criterion Two: Duration

Duration refers to the length of time the disaster affects the State and its citizens. Some disaster incidents
have far-reaching impact beyond the actual event occurrence such as the September 11, 2001 event.
Duration factors include the following:

1. Length of physical duration during emergency phase

2. Length of threat to life and property

3. Length of physical duration during recovery phase

4. Length of time affecting individual citizens and community recovery

5. Length of time affecting economic recovery, tax base, business and manufacturing recovery, tourism,
threat to tax base and threat to employment

Value
1 Verylow Critical facilities and/or services lost for 1 to 3 days
2 Low Critical facilities and/or services lost for 4 to 7 days
3  Medium Critical facilities and/or services lost for 8 to 14 days
4 High Critical facilities and/or services lost for 15 to 20 days
5  VeryHigh Critical facilities and/or services lost for more than 20 days

Criterion Three: Economic Impact

Distribution of the event refers to the depth of the effects among all sectors of the community and State,
including both the geographic area affected as well as distribution of damage and recovery of the economy,
health and welfare, and the State/community infrastructure. Distribution factors include the following:

1. How widespread across the state are the effects of the disaster?

D-20




~ Anpendixd
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

2. Are all sectors of the community affected equally or disproportionately?
How will the distribution of the effects prolong recovery from the disaster event?

Value
1 Verylow Community —Only the immediate community or part of a town/city is affected
2 Low City/Town —entire town/city is affected
3 Medium County — effects are felt at the county level
4 High State — the entire state will be affected by the event
5 VeryHigh Federal effects are felt nationwide (e.g. Hurricane Katrina-sized)

Criterion Four: Area Affected

Area affected refers to how much area is physically threatened and potentially impaired by a disaster risk.
Area affected factors include of the following:

1. Geographic area affected by primary event
2. Geographic, physical, and economic areas affected by primary risk and potential secondary effects.

Value:
1 Verylow Community
2 Llow City/Town
3 Medium County
4 High State
5 VeryHigh Federal

Criterion Five: Frequency

The frequency of the risk refers to the historic and predicted rate of recurrence of a hazardous event
(generally expressed in years, such as the 100 year flood).

Value:
1 Verylow Occurs less than once in 1,000 years
2 low Occurs less than once in 100 to once in 1,000 years
3 Medium Occurs less than once in 10 to once in 100 years
4 High Occurs less than once in 5 to once in 10 years
5  VeryHigh Occurs more frequently than once in 5 years

Critetion Six: Degree of Vulnerability

The degree of vulnerability refers to how susceptible the population, community infrastructure and state
resources are to the effects of the risk. Vulnerability factors include the following:

1. History of the impact of similar events
2. Mitigation steps taken to lessen impact
3. Community and State preparedness to respond to and recover from the event

Value:
1 Verylow 110 5% of property in affected area severely damaged
2 low 6 to 10% of property in affected area severely damaged
3 Medium 11 to 25% of property in affected area severely damaged
4  High 26 to 35% of property in affected area severely damaged

D-21




Anpendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

5

Very High 36 o 50% of property in affected area severely damaged

Criterion Seven: State and Community Priorities

State and community priorities refer to the importance placed on a particular risk by the citizens and their
elected officials. Priorities factors consist of the following:

Long term economic impact on portions of the State or community

Willingness of the State or community to prepare for and respond to a particular risk
More widespread concerns over one particular risk than other risks

Cultural significance of the threat associated with a risk.

Potential for long term community or cultural disruption presented by the hazard
Matrix Prioritization of Hazards Resuits

Very Low Advisory

Low Considered for further planning in the future
Medium Prompt action necessary

High Immediate action necessary

Very High Utmost immediacy

Vulnerability Ratings

L4

High Risk Hazard: Event has most likely occurred in the past and/or is likely to occur in the future. Of
substantial magnitude, with loss and financial impact to the State considered beyond the State’s
available resources and ability to respond.

Moderate Risk Hazard: Event has most likely occurred in the past and/or is likely to occur in the
future. Of moderate magnitude, may be considered beyond the State’s available resources and ability
1o respond.

Low Risk Hazard: Event has a very low occurrence rating and not likely to cause major damage to
property or loss of lives in the future. Not likely to exceed the State’s available resources or ability to
respond.

No Substantial Risk Category: Event would be considered a State/local emergency incident within
the jurisdiction’s response capability and needing no additional resources to respond.

Special Risk Category: A hazard with an identified mitigation plan or lead agency that provides the
expertise to provide mitigation strategies.

D-22




Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Stoter Contoets

HINIGE & DAL

Elizabeth Achby
(776 687.0314

eaubibviG: stat

EAMA, RFC, & FRE.
Bhn Grosnewold
{TTE) 984-2884
Ersenaxdimvater. mv. et

Deadiinss

:

Neice of Dutarest dite o
Divizicn of Emergency
IdmagemenyDivision of
TWatny Ranources

Tme 34,

Aunmist 12, 2008 Lrope oFf Work dus to
Diivicion of Emerpency
Iz zemantDivasion of
TWarer Ravources

3. Toa SR 05 cogients
]amhiﬁbm tha il SEed oo
he affaceirs Flood kmr‘am zm 54«:.:- Frmals. _

toniad Y
I Te Setrl b deitias of

oo vk
“Histegic Somohus” e 94 CFRG 15 L.
“Oetizal Saaiitias ety

Hazard Mitigation
Assistance (HMA)

HRA under FEMA s Mitigation
Dhrectorate unifies the pre-disaster
grant prograns to bebter support the
oversll gonl of redueing the loss of life
amd property dus to natural hezards.

The TIVEA pegrams: Pre-Diisaster Mitzation (PLA,
Flend Mitigation Assistaors (FMA), Repeiftive Blood
gtz {FFT). o2 Sevese Repetitve Logs (3FL) procide
mitEItion Sant: entEnily o & sltacation aml
topnpetitive Lasis to Stane, Territory, SEbatk, avd local
eptitias. The rew umifisd process nchisves scopemies of
ccalz md pardelio mwsagmmant for Fedesad, Stata, 2nd
lozal officiaZs by alizeing prograss requizanientsiza
iwifled HMLA suidaece docigvent. Theiatent of fAls
sligrment it o enbancs the sumbity acd alficlency of
Fanawards.

ZEAT Pregra may alte be conifered for enother
oritigasion gons oo sh

Ease 205, 2005 MNEARC s Quartecty

hfeetimy

Octcter 7, 2009 Beaaliz ose Acankysis and.

TRcEw docamaentarion dus
¢ Dsdiston of Emergency
SlanagenvenrDivizion of
Wamr Baspimoes

Oceober 21, 2008 Full Application Packaze
e 1o Divizion of
Emecpancy
NimsxgenseenTHYINeD of
Water Raymuces

MNowvemmntier 405, T80
HERDMIEC Privritiestion meetfitay
T Boother i Nevads 8 Neortless &m\:&da}

Post-Drisaster Hazard Mitigation
Grant Program HMGP)

TheHazzrd ’»!Zm:.mm Groee Program ((IMIZP)
providas greals o States and locel FOVESHANE 13
amnlemant foag-rem kaznd netigndon nensures afer a
safior dizzatar declarodion. uthorized imder Szction
#04 o the Fanfford Aee sud admimisterad by TEMA,
MR vras cremed to reduce the Joss of 12 and
property dus o satural disserars, The progom 2nables
itiznfion BeNATes w0 bePuplemerted diving the
famiadiate Tecovery frouy & Siasber,

Emrrorar, Semn. S0 Bovet v wrans Bmapy

Pre-Disaster Mitization (PDM}
Pregramn

The 2DM progrvn provides fonds o Ststas, Tentomiss,
Fedierally recogrizedd Tedisn Tribol govermmants, aud
conzarties for kazard mitizzior plansing sud the
innslementation of nitgation posierts poine 1o 2 fsaster
wvzi, The ol of tha PO Promase i to reducs
overall tsks to- e populadiap and st while dleo
reducing ralinse oo faing from actunt disagter
declaratinss,

DT A, 0T TR TR A pdm i slin

Flood Mitigation Assistance
{FHIA)Y Program
The F3LA zous progen: provides fmding o Swmms,
federally recoznized Tndiav Teibed zovemuens, 2nd
conzrimitias st it cost-effactive massures cam b
tolkian 1o Tadice oo ebimbnate sie long-term Tisk of Soad
dlarnzs to Duildings, memwfheed homes, asd uthar
sErCAREs insuwred s e Mattons} Food Insimaece
Tromrar PR The long-rerm zoad of BMIA fx 1o
res.‘m::eu: eliminate clvims nedar tha NFIF lzough
rblgation ardvitias.

Repetinve Flood Clasms (BFD
Progeam

_&ER?L T POTEL WAt <raamd with s goal of
sedncing Saod daum vidhual promertias for
gl oz or mora <hitn pavinenrs By esses bave besn
o vndar Sood ivnmigs cevernge nod that vl

t g.s;:mm
Floog Iasuranre Fued) i the shemas panod of twe.

Tha BEC program iz ml»je:r [ me ma_mbzm‘ &E

apmepml:ﬁa Tusling. R
mationa] Basts it radn
400128, or cihar fannuia-dazed aliecarions a:»f fmc;
The fupding source for e RPC manyprosrands the
NEIE.

e Jema Tov sovemanearrantfe ndes st

Severe Repetitive Loss (SEL)

Program
Tha SR..pm-—am DSV Heding 12 reduzs or
slimgnae telogz-term Eak of Bood damage w sevens

instred wnder dhe NETR,
loss as: 2apiied to this

repetitive rexldanral ymen
The defimition of sevets pepes

FroEan 53 revidenrial proporny ar i covered noder
253D oed mstoanca poliey, wmd
{5 Thathae ot laost fowe NFIPclaim pasanents

fmrh:&zxs ‘*r...lc*.l.= ozt conzants) ovar $5000 ancly,
aud e comula i I

ewreEds s’ﬁ RItEN
At Jesst S0 SepNTEE CINRIE DaYIenIS
Frulding paymeenis ouly) have baay mnds with the
Cummedtive ams: of the buiiding poriot

claims exraeding she mazket valne of the bug

For oth {2 and {o) abave, ot Janst two of the reforenced
<laims onest lave sconmed wilhin sz 1venr pesod,
anft must be Ereater thiz 1% days n}:m Thy ong ol
g of T 5L 3

cloess under s igh p.,a;é—;: activitias that
with remdt iz the greomst sevings o e WFIF sz the
shortest period of dxe,

D-23




AppendixD
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

the
hazard
mitigation
planning
process

Hazard mifigation planning is the

rrocess of determining how fo re-

duce or eiminate the loss of ife and
praperty gamsage resuiting from
naturaiand human-causad hazards.
Fourhasic phases are described for
he hazard miEigation planning pro-
cess as shown in His dizgram.

For ifustration purposes, this dia-
gram porirays & process that ap-
pearsto procesd sequentially How-
ever, the mitigafion planning process
is rarely a linear process. It is oot
unesial iat Kleas deveiopad while
assessing risks should need rovi-
sion and addional nErmation whils
developing the mitigation plan, or
that implamenting the plan may re-
sult it new goals or additional fsk
assessment.

foa

i

D-24




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting No. 2 - Agenda

AGENDA
Storey County Local Emergency Planning Committese (LEPC)

Wednesday, Apnt 10, 2013- 10:80 am.
Storey County Emergency Operations Center
141 Morth C Street
Yirginia City, Nevada 89440

All fems inciude discussior and possibla acfion fo approve, modify, deny, or continue unfess markad offerwisa.
1. CALL TOORDER

2, PUBLIC COMMENT (MO ACTION) No action may be foken on o metter reised under this fems on e
agenda undl the matter ksell ias been specifically incduded on an agends as an fem upon which aclion will
betaken. Time fimits ont Public Commant will be &t the dirsction of $he Chairman of the Commilies.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Slinutes from Jamaary 9, 2613
4, DISCUSSION/POSSIELE ACTION: Approval of Minutes from: March 7, 2043

5. DISCUSSION/POSSICGLE ACTION: Approval of Fiscal Year 2014 Siate of Mevada Emergency
Response Commission {SERC) United We Stond Grant Application for submittal to the State of
Hevada Emergency Response Commission
This fhem will seek appeoval of the Storgy County LEPC FY2014 United We Stand Gramt,

{Gharie Nevin, Grante & Emergeroy Management Coondinador)

6. DISCUSSION (MO ACTHION): Review of Grants Received by Storsy County Local Emergency Planning
Commmiites
This iteny wilt provide an overdew of open grants received by the Storey Coundy LEPT.
{Cheriz:Faviry, Grants & Bmergency Mansgement Coordinafark

7. DISCUSSION (NG ACTION): Emergency Managemert Directors Report
This entis & general discussion of achities relaled do the Storey County Office of Emergency Management
refated to emergency preparedness, planning and response.
{doe Cunlie- Dirszdor af Emergoncy Managemeni)

8. DIBCUSSEON S0 ACTION): Coopsrating Local Emergency Planning Committes Members Report on
Activities This ftem iz general discussion of activilies of our private industry and county LEPC Members.

8. DISCUSSION (MO ACTION): Review any Hazardous Materals Incidents that have sceurred shce the
Last Meeling of this Commitiee- This e e @ review of any Hazmat related incidents that have oceurred
since our fast LEPC Meeling in Janusery 2013, (oo Curis- Dirsofor of Emargensy Marmsgemant)

18, ADJOURNMENT

ROTICE,
= Anyone irderested may request pereonal notines of the mestings.
+  Agenda ftems must be reesived in wiiing by 12:08 noon o dhs Tuestay of the weak preceding the emilar mesting. For
informustion oo (775 BE7-0535.
*  iems may oot necessarly be heard: in the order that Shey appear.
+  PubficComment wil be alicwved 3t the beghning of sach mesding (this comment should Te Bmited to mathers m on fhe agenda)l
Pubis Corement will slso be Almved ser each tem on the ﬁ nca {ihis comment shoukt be fmited fo the dem on e agenda).
Tam= fmits on Publie Comment will be o the discration of the Chdlrman, Please fimit your oenmenis he three minutes,
»  Blorey Courfy recognizes the peeds and oyl rights of all persoos ragardless of race, ocolor, Teligion, gender, disabsiy, fasdly
status, or naticn origin.
Hotice to persons with disabilifies: Members of the public who are Sisshiet and requine speols! assistance or acoommodations af fis
meeiing ans requested o nolifythe Slorey-Courty Offies of Emergency fanagement in weiing 2t PG Box 7, Virginia City, Nevads BR44D.
i anrordance with Federdal faw and 113, Department of sgicalture policy, this nstilution is. prohibied from diserdminating on the basis of
rage, eofer, nafionst ofigis, sex, religion, age, disabify ot af probibied bases spply to.ali programe} To fle 3 complaint of discrimination:

t

D.25




Appendix D
Meeting Rgendas and Handouts

Meeting No. 2 - Sign In Sheet

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

APRIL 10, 2013 10:00 AM.
Storey County Emergency Operations Center
141 North C Strest- Virginia Gity, Nevada

oy PEE o £ 8 i
B E

H (# o
e Bl e

T A e T e T e
= P

) 5 F s
Rl Jez:;ﬂ"w& s :zf"“‘

WAE vl

SRaruSned SRR on i

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

APRIL 10, 2013 10:00 A.M.
Storey County Emsrgency Operations Contor
141 Morth € Street- Virginia City, Nevads

K e e 5 §epnx ¥ s
DA L e d T one 3TIE v Fes

i

D-26




Meeting Agentas and Handouts

Meeting # 2 - Handouts

Results Storey County

Hazard Profiling Worksheet

Wildfire 247 31
Flood (Includes dam
failure, canal failure, and
mudslides) 179 26
Severe Winter Storm 133 22
Severe Windstorm 123 21
Earthquakes 97 19
Land subisdence & ground
failure 69 17
Drought 83 14
Epidemic 81 14
Hail & thunderstorm 70 12
Avalanche 66 11
0
Hazmat 83 21
TerrorismAVMD 89 22

D-27




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting #3 - Agenda

: - AGENDA S
Storey County Local Emergency Planning Committes (LEPC)

Wednesday, July 10, 2013~ 10:00 a.m.
Faod Dank of Notthermn Nevada
&50 jtaly Drive
MoCarran, Nevada 89434

Al fremns fnclude discussion amd possible action o approve, mooify, deny, or confioue wmess marked othervies,
1. CALL TO ORDER '

2. PUBLIC COMMENT (NG ACTION} Mo ocfior: may be taken on a matier miséd under this item ¢ the
agenda uniil the matter itself has been specifically indiuded on an agenda as an fiem upon which aciion wilf
be takpty, Time Fmils on Public Comment will be at the dirsclion of thi Chairman of the Cormmittes,

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Appraval of Kinutes from April 10, 2013

; tory Couinty Hazand Mitigation Flan

{Kargn Julmses, Nevads Livision of Emigrgency Management) '

8. CHSCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION Approval of Fiseal Year 2093 State of Nevada Emergency
Response Comniasion Hazardous Materials Emargency Planning Grant Application for submitial to
the State of Nevada Emargency Ragzpense Commigsinn
This fem wil seek approval of the Storey Coanly LEPC FY2043 HMEP Grant for FireShows Remo

attendance. _ :
(Charie Mevin, Grants Goordiator

DIECUSSIONPOSSIBLE ACTION Approval of Fiscal Year 2014 Stafe of Nevads Efmergoncy
Responga Commisslon Hazerdous Materials Emergency Planming Grant Appleation for sibsmifial o
e State of Nevada Emergency Response Commission .

Fhis item will seck spprovat of the Storey County LEPG Y2074 HIEP Grant.
{Citerie: Navin, Geants Coordinstor)

8. DISCUSSION (NO ACTION): Roview of Grants Roceived By Storey County Local Emergency Planning
Commitiss
This tem will provide sn overview of open grants recetved by the Storey County LEPG.
{Ciarie Novin, Assisiant Dirastor of Emergency Managament)

9. DISCUSSIONIPOSIIBLE ACTION: Ther I information Requests
THs term will seck the LEPC's posiilon and input regarding whether or oot Tiar I facility reports sheuld be
confidential under Navada homeland seourily laws,
o Cowtin Direetor of Emprganay Managoesri

10. DISTUSSION (NO ACTION): Emargancy Managament Dirsctars Report
This.ilem is @ general discussion of activities related fo the Storey County Office of Emergency Management
relatesd by emesgency preparedness, planring and response,
{foe Qurtis- Direator of Emargency Maragemusd]

o

1% GISCUSSION (NO ACTION}: Cooparating Locat Emergancy Planning Committes Members Report on
Activitias
This item is general discussion of actiities of aur private indusiry and county LEPC Members,

D-28




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting # 3 - Sign In Sheet -

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
SPECIAL MEETING
- JULY 10, 2013 10:00 AM.

Food Bank of Northorn Nevads
550 italy Drive- McCarran, Nevada

IS o N I RSl e T AT N AR D

b St {\,,5 s d ok

)
£ F i . . S o .
AP AL L N e L

g G 2

L A vy Ganas bt Wil et e

& . i e vy -
I e L sy wafene ey Tl

e W Ao -
3’4‘11;,-",3:&{5’1{2, Bl R CERG ) i

R

,.‘& o am«mgw-”"“ '(':—s’?:\ i ooy & i ¥
P o ) - Ry B y
A b [ o b
F o b R . s ™ ; ‘.
e s dE T B bad f 44 T ¢ e B30 A iad Lon
R - : % 5 " e
S N i idu s g )
LB TR R LT b 3% 3 gy LA 2ok o SR ER paf g
. i - et
= ; % N e e
“::.'.’r “é:i‘\”‘ g (.;3: et “‘::._;z-" e P‘;,;.@-w«f” J———
! : T
T E e
7

Meeting # 3 - Handouts
Hazard Profiles and Earthquake

D-29




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting #4 — Agenda

AGENDA
Storey County Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC)

Wednesday, April 8, 2014- 10:00 a.m.
Comstock History Center
20 North E Sireet
Virginia City, Nevada 89440

Afl items include discussion and possibie action fo approve, modify, deny, or continte unless marked otherwise.

1.
2.

10.

i1

12

CALL TO ORDER

FUBLIC COMMENT (NO ACTION) No action may be taken on & matter raised under this jtem on the
agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will
be taken. Time limits on Public Comment will be at the direction of the Chairman of the Committes.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes from January 8, 2014
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes from March 4, 2014

DISCUSSION (NQ ACTICN): Hazard Mitigaticn Plan Update
This itern will provide an overview of the updates to the Storey County Hazard Mitigation Plan.
(Karen Johnson)

DISCUSSION {NO ACTION): Future of Interoperabie Communications in the State of Nevada
This item will provide an overview of the future of interoperable communications in the state of Nevada and
will be presented by the Statewids Interoperability Coordinator George Molnar.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBELE ACTION: Fiscal Year 2015 State of Nevada Emergency Response
Commission United We Stand Grant Requests from LEPC Members

This itets will provide a time for LEPC Members to provide input on items that they would (ke to see
submitted under the FY2015 SERC UWS Grant

DISCUSSION {NO ACTION]: Review of Grants Received by Storey County Local Emergency Planning
Committee

This item will provide an overview of open grants received by the Storey County LEPC.

(Cherie Nevin}

DISCUSSION (NO ACTION): Emergency Management Directors Report

This item is a general discussion of activities refated to the Storey County Office of Emergency Management
related to emergency preparedness, planning and response,

{doe Curtis- Direclor of Emergency Managernent)

DISCUSSION {NO ACTION): Cooperating Local Emergency Planning Committee Members Report on
Activities
This item is general discussion of activitiss of our private industry and county LEPC Members.

DiSCUSSBION (NO ACTION): Review any Hazardous Materials Incidents that have Qccurrad Since the
Last Meeting of this Cominittee- This item is 2 review of any Hazmat related incidents that have oceusted
since our last LEPC Meeting in January 2014. (Joe Curtis- Director of Emergency Management)

ADJOURNMENT

D-30




Appendix b
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting #4 — Sign In Sheet

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
REGULAR MEETING

APRIL 9, 2014 10:00 A.M.
Comstock History Center
20 North E Strest Virginia City, Nevada

Creni'e _previn [ Stovednumi ‘Cﬂeum@&i@ggagmgﬁg,ww‘ M YVAA

— W
BN Sevavae FotenCo Dnpugemathmpds b
v ! @) o iy
{/):*m;u ol /V[-H{c/ﬁ/ D EA ?ﬂ,f{f(/@ﬁéj,{#ﬁf{ﬁm S ‘//4\7.&

Dl

ooyt e’-((}\.*i.,ﬁ':- shi odigids &7 2 AL L’LEH‘)& wd

e R T Hopae A AR et omal e B g, ! 3 7
? | s [t P NS
p aftiel 775 an Aretican fold Crors Vubiisl macan@ pedsross f% T

£ R &
ﬁic W Lf:&g’ﬂ;ﬁ'z sl et (3 wé"é:%’gli_:ﬂw«rnf fﬁa/@&i«zﬁ ”
Lesefe fops Lt ey Eeore . Lobes Quulmarbigpon | L o
x{;‘«.ﬁ e, j‘;{) e bgeis lv ot Aoty Longsbsads @ bt ,_g%w»";.mmwmm..,,
i@ Mt ”'i@; oK ﬁé{!aﬁs% Lodetiittmnsi & fhat fon p{b.%_ ;}Emw P

Eee ¢ e et DmsemsC) als eac.L....-Jtl@ ca.cC?L,-mu, 5 b/f:‘;::f%i&// / ]

Meeting # 4 — Handouts
Wildland Fire profile and Fire History map, Flood profile

Meeting #5 — Agenda

D-31




Appendix D
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

Meeting #5 — Sign In Sheet

STOREY COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE
REGUIAR MEETING

JULY 9, 2014 10:00 A.M.
Northern Nevada Food Bank
550 Italy Drive McCarran, Nevada

W?’—?ef..mﬁ/[:?—

5 iz
lenroa®uet-maxy

ni

P

Fe 3’:";"\’

{ ,f,u: }4‘

’%Q

i
I/j

-
i \f

B A EAG

AN L 11T

P‘f‘\e/rd r\&mw\

Meeting #5 - Handouts

All maps, Staple E and Mitigation Actions List

Meeting #6 — Sign In Sheet

Meeting #6 — Handouts

D-32




AppendixD
Meeting Agendas and Handouts

D-33




Appendix E
Plan Maintenance Documents




Anpendix
Plan Maintenance

Sample Press Release for
Annual Maintenance Meeting

Storey County, Nevada is meeting to review and maintain its Hazard Mitigation Plan to
assess risks posed by natural and manmade disasters and identify ways to reduce
those risks. This plan is required under the Federal Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000 as a
prerequisite for receiving certain forms of Federal disaster assistance. The plan can be
found on the County’s website at www.storeycounty.org .

Public comments and participation are welcomed. For additional information or to
request to participate, or to submit comments, please contact Joe Curtis, Storey County
Emergency Management, at (775) 691-5333 or jcurtis@storeycounty.org .

E-1




Appendix E
Plan Maintenance

Annual Review Questionnaire




Appendix £

Plan Maintenance
Mitigation Action Progress Report
Page 1of 3
Progress Report Period; o
(date) {date)
Project Title: Project ID#
Responsible Agency:
Address;
City:
Contact Person:
Phone # (s} email address:
List Supporting Agencies and Contacts:
Total Project Cost:
Anticipated Cost Qverrun/Underrun;
Date of Project Approval: Start date of the project:

Anticipated completion date:

Description of the Project {include a description of each phase, if applicable, and the time frame for
completing each phasel:




Appendix E
Plan Maintenance

Page 2 of 3
Plan Goal(s) Address
Goal:

Indicator of Success:

Project Status Project Cost Status
O Project on schedule [} Costunchanged
[ Project comaleted O Cost overrun®
O Project delayed® *explain

Texplain

1 Cost underrun®

] Project Cancelied “explain

Summary of progress on project for this report:

A. what was accomplished during this reporting period?

B. What obstacles, prablems, or delays did you encounier, i any?

C. How was sach problem resolved?




Anpendix E
Plan Maintenance

Page 30of 3

Next Steps: What are the next step(s) to be accomplished over the next reporting period?

Other Comments:

E-5




aduepusile abeinooua pue weibosd ali4 UyAL BUIA 8Uj Ul PajoAll aliooaq O} SiaUmMoaUoy aBeinoous
‘2.4pim & Buinnins sioy Jiay) Jo 83Uy 8Y) ar0IdE 0] UOOR A1BSSE08Y BU) SXE] O) SIBUMOSWOY

(a4 yim Buny¥NN afeincous o} 'saWioy Jisy} pUNoIe SPIEZEY SIYPHIM BU} BNPAS LD SISUMCALIOY MOY Ligidxs 0] 'SBUIP|IM 4¢
pue 4gN yum pdeq aul4 Buicbug jojesily au noge sieumoswoy uuojul o weibosd yoesnno ue Jonpuod o} sieajyBlal [euosess as
"suogipuoo Bulusiesiy)-ay Arenusiod sziusuiw o} sysie Jayleem .
g2 Uim pauguuco BuioBug | ssjum Buiinp ae) uea Aay) saINSEL INOGE SIOYISIA pUE Sjuapisal areonps 0} weiboid Alunwwod ysIqeIsg 3¢
"SULIO}S (MOUS PUB “Japuny) |y ‘pum) ) sIsysesip
a°Z yum pauguies ‘Buebug BI8AS WO saWoY Jal) Josjoud o) moy uo aygnd sy suiojul jeyy ubiedwes yoeasno signd e dojansg az i0)@ tedad
‘algnd ‘syenbypes ue Buunp yesiq o gy pue sjefiiu
0} 8|ge|leA. SPBLI LORRULIOJUY 0} asam swa)! 41 Anfui asneo Jybiu jeus Buiielep [eInjoa}iyoIe 10 SUBLUSIE [RINISMASUOU JBLJO pue ‘s3I I 03 dgnd
a4 i Buiary ‘BuioBug | *Buiajeys “Aisuiyoew 'sself ‘subis ‘sjadeled Joyoue o) moy s)npe yoes) (i ey welboid yoeano dojsrsq m:wm_nm%
0} Aoedes
"@'Z uonay ajepdn Joj pauiquios ) . eoo} Yoddns
) . usyuod uonebniw piezey Jus)sisuod sebeinoous ey welboid yoesnno anand weisns pue doieas. (B0
329 47" gz Buobuo jug) fecniu plezey jusys| ey 1d yJesno Jlignd uejsns p [@AaQ g7 BUE ping
YoBRINQ SSaUalemy ‘T 1209
SUYLIM PUB HNN 4O UORBUIRi00D
Uiim senupuoo Jdep aii4
wesboud yajem pooylogyBieu pue .
$58UISNG & S80p S9IYQ S UUaYS ve
"a)is gap Ajunog ay) uo paysod aq {im sdiy fiajes sy} ‘Afeuonippy sjLsag plEZeY ssay)
UOIEM St $80( 10LASIQ 100408 Joj aJedaid pue uenaid ‘sjeBiiw o} op ued Aay) jeym pue Aunwiod Jiayy Ut spuezey ay) ynoge Uaipiyo
Bucbug pue paeidwon Y3E3] O} JOLISID [00YIS By} Yim sejeulpio0D jey) weibod Yyoeaano yoyep ysiy puedxa pue anujuon
{A1abeuy spoafoud
‘dnosb ‘sdew “&'1) uonisinboe ejep pue ‘uojeanps ‘Buitiel ‘SIemYos ‘slempley 8jqeoldde apnjoul o} uoe LUl . pue Buluueyd
SI9 & Joj U0k B uosie) ‘sejbnog 19588 pue piezey g9 mau pue Bupsixa jo Buizinn/Buireys sy o} mofle jey) seipusbe sjeaLd pue I uogefiw
HUM passuped “pajaduion fejusuIUIsnob euoibayalels pue ssiouste sjeyg sjeudoidde yim sjuswoalbe Buueys-elep g9 dopneg prezey
— Ul JUSWBA[CAL
siepdn ul psprioul ‘(sanunog essu pue ‘Buiysiad ‘ryoInyy ‘soysep ok ‘sejbnog . Aunoy
fou anben uanay “ueid pool4 'AD uosie)) suonotpsunl | uoiBay HyIN ple [ern ajels ypm jyBinos sq gim sjosfoud uonebipu feuoibay gl Burobuo
Janly 89xoniL ypum pajeidwon ' e ’ ‘ ) ' ' T ’ pue pasealou
V| uonoe "paysydwioose aq o) suonoe Ajuoud Buiysigelss-al yim BUole JiHT U} JO MOEAS! BULE Ue . djouloid
ajepdn “Jeaf g UD pauLopad | 8)9|dwios pue JoNpUCD | PUE BANJE UIBLUBI [ji sy Bunssig ueld uopelnw prezey Aunog Aslolg vi 1} leon
uoay Jo shiels uondiasaq | uonoy

dJAH 8007 U103y SUCHIV [E1Ud)04 pUE S[EoD) UONESINA :2-8 AqB ]

SUOIIIY SMOIN3I{4 ) 0 SNICIS




'sBuipiing eocisiy paiuapl

Baie Uem | ylel peje|duon

‘S|iounoo ajeg ai14 WLIoJUI 0} $3HUNLULLD jeuodippe apnjoul 0 0Uno?) efes a4 spuejybiy puedx3

JWWING 8114 S0BpSIU| LRGN SAIPJIA jenUUE ay) o) siaquiall Jsjdeyd ajes all4 Bulsixs jo

upim pajeooy selousbe juawuwieaoh pue ‘simonaselul ‘sepioe [eanuo o) usaib Auonud Jsybiy Uim Ajoses ae
"ajepdn ul papnjou| | 1o} sjuslualinbal HE| JUBLINO ISOW By} 133U Jou 0p ey sease Bupieys Buons Ulym sjasse [BO1UD jje Hoaay
‘pajoadsul denbues
3SNOH JNOT “(}0Z Ul PaLLIOL g sBulp|ing [eaucysiy pue sease Bui¥eys-ybiy payiusp! UM anoniseul e oy enp
: pue saj)i|ioe} [eanlio paumo-AJunog Joedsul o} siseuibus [einjonns Joy Bupuny apinoid oy wesboid S| aunjaniseyu
Moday Alsjes -pajsidwon
pue sBuip(ing
"SIS00/M Bunsixa pue
sisisse Qjunon aanjonis umop al ‘sBurpjing MaU UO S35S0|
10 SUGEPUNO} OPaJ O} SjuapIsal/m | [ealiolsly paynuapl Ulm pajeoo) saruafe JusLUUIenod pue ‘ainjonnseiul ‘saiioe} [eanua o) Auowd raybiy gc | pueabeuep
sylom daq Buiping “pajaidwon L ‘SeIMjINUS Jyonal o} Juawwuianof pue ‘sellioy ‘ssauisng ejeaud o} $8oinos Buipuny uigjqo pue Ayuspy 0 Apaqissod
Apnig ainjonig aloisIH Aalolg ay} aonpay
‘sjepdn ‘swajqold RA L
ul papnjou] -Buobug yainyn paluspt Joa.1100 0y weiboid Bupiyona) lpamanisuou & dojaAsp ‘UORIE SILY ULM LonouRiuco uj “sxenbiyes .
4oyl 94} Pue S|0oYoS SIPPIA ue Bupinp yea.q b Jey) sjuswsia [eanjonasuou Joj eiowo Buipiing e Ag paioadsul aie anjngseyul pue Ve
pue Jewiselsy uo pajaiduion SSIHIOR) [2INLD pUE ‘$|00YDS ‘S3SSALISNG ‘sawoy yoiym W weaBord uogoedsui Buipling Agjunjon e dojaaag
SI9)SESIp
Jo) asedaud
‘Butuien 903 panuiuod pue 'ssyjus pue a3espiw
ajealid pue alignd Jsyio yym sjuawealbe ojut Buysjus ‘suejd Alerodas-pue-asuodsal Jo soueUSYUIRW pue e 0} 91gnd
“uoleBiul JoN Juswdojaasp apnjoul o) spioys ssaupsiedaid jeuoiBes snujuoD [m saiusbe asuodsal Kouabiaws Aunon ay} s|qeus
"glepdn uj papnjoul joN “Aserooay 03 Ayaedes
pue asuodsay - Buicbup [e20] ro&:m
“ajepdn i papngpuy ‘uoljoajosd i Buioueyua o} ayisinbelald Atessanau B se AJUNWLLOD auy Ul SISUMO pue pjing
10} paiipoly “subreduies efpaw | Auadoid o) syeaiq jony jeuss)ul o sourHodw sy} sziseydwua o) SpOYS YoERINO SNUIUOT JSNW [JOUN0Y) Sjeg [ :("p.juoa)
senujjuoo all4 L Buar BuioBug | and epeasy sy jo ssjdeyd [230] auy ‘spueiybiy BiLBIA BU) JO B DY) Bupunons Ajgieipawul pue UM Z |eon
"shem-jo-JyBi peos Buofe pue ‘uogonsjsuos meu pue Bunsixe punole ‘sjustdoleasp
ut juswaBeuew uonelsbon oy seonoeid JuswsBeuew saq Ut $1004ds AJuno?) As10)g pue ‘salousbe T
‘alepdn uj papnjoul ‘BujpBug | soueusiuiew peol ajels pue Alunod 'siojorNuea Bupling Jonysu pue uLojul ot welbosd yoeanno ue ajBIu
‘Buobuo spalod "SPUBIBOOM
SUGHONPaI S[oNy pue papnjow sadiunp-uolld 10§ $80e.d JuswuaBeuew 1saq Jnoge siaumo Apadoud pue 'suoleoosse Jaumoalloy 97

dIATH 800T W01y suoydy [eud)ed pue s[eed) uonesnipu :g-§ 2qe],

SU0NVY Snoinaid 1 0 smeis




auedoid enunuo syue|d Jamod
3 sied [eHsnpu Ul payaidwon

Juawsjdwi pue ssuledid uoissiuSUE.) Jiaul O] ¥Sl ILSISS SU) Slen[eas of seluedwod A UM YoM

{mous}
SULIO)S 3JuIMm
819A9S 0} anp
aamponAseyuUl
. pue sBuipjing
JUsLWSSasse ai0W Joy sued oN h _ PulM pue Speoy yg | Bunsixe pue
MOUS pue 83| puejsiim o} sabieleS pue ‘spodiea ‘sjoos Aoe}-2o12 Jo AIIGRIS [2IMoNLS SUF SUIMLSA] Mall UO S3SSO0]
pue sfewep
"ZL0T Ul asnoynoy jo Aiqissod
uo jjaial pue Juswdinbe 34} 2anpay
[BAOLUB. MOUS IO} PAUS MOUS MBN G |eog
'0L0Z SoUBUIPIO "SBOJE 90IN0S8 [2MJEU PUB ‘UO[RSI08) JOCPING .
Buruoz mau ypm pajsidiuoy ‘ainynouBe ‘o) payiu Jou 1ng Buipnioul ‘Buipooy [BLOISEI0 (0 JUBIS|O} 350U} C) sAEMpooy Ul sasn W a¥ | pooy ysey pue
pooj 0}
"gepdn . .. 1 anpsaxnose.l
UJoN “Uonoe oyads e oy susied abemoy [eJmeu jo uogdnisip sy nayoud pue sem abeuielp eimeu JO 8sh Winwixew sy} annbey o', ep———
anjanselpu
('spueid Juswiean Jejemalsem Bulisius WOy SISJBM JJO-UNI LLIOJS pue sBUIp(INg
pue pooly ueard pue 'saull Jstem paLuelos) pue Jomas siqelauna josjoud ‘seanoeid Juswabeusw 1seq m::m_xm. u.:m
SZIIAN PUe ‘|0AUO LOISOIS 'SBNJINLS UOISIBAIP-MO]} ‘SPOYSIOJEM [[EUS Ul SUISEq UORLS}el JSJEM WI0)S/POO)) 87 | mau o.g 53550
1o sugep Buesio ‘sabpuq pue spanno Bugsixs Buneldal ‘syueq weaxns Buziigels “B-a} Bujpooy pue obewep
‘atepdn | pspnjouy| sey o} anp abewep sonpas pinom Jeyl—eso) pue jeuciba) yjog—sjosiosd uswabeuew-pooy ansing 10 upigissod
"gale pajordw) Yoes Joj SUOREPUSWILIODS! 843 aonpay
1so9pLeS AQ uoneBijiw apnjoul |im siskleuy “Aunog As.0lg 1NoyBNOIY) SLIGSP PUE JSIEM JO JUSLISACU SSEU pue vy ¥ |eog
Apnis pool4 "0L0Z U1 pare|dion Buipooy ysey o} suosd Jsow seale AJjuap! o) ‘Juswssasse ¥su jIn) & apnjou] o) ‘siskjeue ABojoupAy sjeny|
‘eate A1 euibaip .
0107 pajardwion | au) ur sbuipom suus punosBiapun aig uo syenbiyues aianas e 10 Jordun Auspl 0y Apnis eoiboost jonpuon ot
"gjepdn w ‘uonaaup Buuued-fousbiows .
papnjoulloN Aunas W sjiom oN BUILLISIOP 0} sLalsAs [[am Sy Lo sxenbupes BJaAes B Jo Yoedwi Aluspt o) Apnys [ea1fojoaboiphy jonpuos 3¢
spepdn uj papnjoy| siooY0s
Jo} paupon “welboud yoesnno 'SOAJEA JI0-INYS DIJEWIOINE SE YINS ‘Sanseal uoneBijw Ie

dJAH 8007 Wo1j SU0IY [eud)od pue s[eod) UoNesnI :7-8 Qe

SUONJYY SNOIAJId | 0 Shjels

4 Kipuaddy




pedwos soue)sissy Juswabeuey| Aouablews epeasN = JYININ
ueld uonebiIN piezeH (207 = dJWH

apag Buipiing [euonewaiu| = Og|

wi2sAS uoneuloyy oydesbossy = g9

"PaNUILOS

"2INONASEYUI AUUNWWOS pue

[01}L02 posm snoixoN ‘slajduien)

ainjonuysesul AUnWwWoed pue $eouspIsal 199104d 0} BaJR [IIH PIOS SUY} Ul JUBLERSL UOKONDaI-sjen) Juataydu|

WS$U paonpsl uoisuedxs Japnoys i : g
PEOI pUE JUSUISIEQE paam SNOIXDN $30UpIsal 193101d 0} BAJE UOAURD SIIA-XIS BU} JO SBlIEPUNOY [je BUOJE Jusuneal) uoloNpal-s(eh) Justusiduw
“ANIBN Js1eA Uolieq pue ‘Joisiq s Aunog uokT [enua) Youmsiq aild Aunon Asioig ‘AS3i04 O UOISIAIC]
BpeASN ‘Alunog uokT jm uojeuIp.ooo [euaiBal spnjaul [I1M YoIYM 'SBLEPLNO ||e Buoje ainjoniseu| 19
“panuuog - fuebup Alunwwiod pue ssouapisal joej0id 0) BSIE UJBM | YIej SU) Ul JUSWIeal} UORORPa-sjan) Juswaiduwy
oLIsIp duojsIy payRuspl 8L} ujim sBuipiing Amuso-yg), UM
Ppajeso aimoniselul pue ‘aLsip ssaulsnq [BIOISWILI0D ‘SaIoe) B0 84 [[IM SO0} (BRI 'BUOZ pJezey Hg
‘panujuag "ejqe|eA. spunj o | auy uedin AD ewibiia e uiim pajesol sBulpiing youe! o) poyew ajeudoidde aulLslep o} Apmys wWiopiad
"Ajunog £a.0}g Jo esLe [liH PoSyAID BILIBIA
elepdn | auy w uojessust 1eay Jojpue semod 1oy weiBoid uonezign ssewolq 30| e aproud Jim 1ey) siueb Buiglqo 99
uljoN pesp josfoid yueid sseworg jo Ayliqeaisep ay) pue sdiyoyysejs/poom Jo Aljige|ieae ejgepuadap suy) UIBLISISE 0} SAOAINS 1onpuon
"SIN}ONYS s8UoBsL )l 310jaq 2PHM B MOIS 0] djay pinom JBL) Y29l {8} 81310 0] SSNILNLIL0D .
"PANUIUO "B|CE|IBAE SpUN) ON punose sasself [eluuased yim sseb 1eayo soeidal o} weibord juswebeusw uonejaban e ajesin 49
"$3UIOY JI3Y) punose uoneisbon sjqewe)
80 OF $30IN0SRI BY) HOB| OUM SUDSIad BWOooUI-MO| O ‘pajgesIp ‘Ajiapie 0] S8IAISS JusLebeuBW 39
panuuoy ‘ssasbord u uopejafien spinoid o} ‘sdnosb eojalas Aunwiwon pue sielyBus.y [euosess Suisn ‘weiosd e slealn
"sayouey puejybiy pue spueiybiy Auo eibup _
‘panupuog) ssalbosd | apnjout 0} uoisIAIpgNS eujua YBnoiy) syealq janj papeys 's|qesbeuew sjesid spuejybiH EIIBIA BY) UILIM as
"SaliepuUNoq yinos pue ypou sy Bunlids Aq sesle ajqesBeuew sjean o} sslepuUnog 1988 )
urejuiedr o) pasN “pajaidwiog | pue jsem ay) Buoje Jueunesi) (eaowas uoyelaBen ay) Buipusixa Aq yealq [en) sjeald eaie A ewabaip sy | 99
BuioBuoy g uonoy ayepdn u) *Alepunog diysumoy usisam sy Buoje Juswujeas; Lonanpal-sjany Juslugidwl ase A elbap auy 99
‘0102 ut uojanpal-sisny .
PRIONDUOS YIG "1 L0Z Ut pajaIduico Atepunoq diysumoy Wweisem su Buoje Vo

salpIm
slydosiseles 0y
anp ssalnosal
[e4njBU pue
‘ainjonssesjuy
pue Auadoad
Bupsixe
pue mau
‘a1] 0} Jeauy}
ays sonpsy

9 [e0D

dWH 8007 Wolj suondy [E)ud)0 pue s[gos) UoNeSHIA :7-§ d[qeL

SUoNay sSnoirald j o snjels




€-d

SUoiIy snoinaid j o sSmeis
4 Xipuadady




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date; January 20, 2015 Estimate of time required: 0 min

Agenda: Consent [] Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: For possible action approval of Payroll
Checks date 01/02/2015 for $427,484.18. Accounts payable checks date 01/09/2015
for $315,685.05 and $6,637.62.

2. Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775 847-1006

4. Staff summary: Please find attached the claims
5. Supporting materials: Attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: NA Fund: NA __NA__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
_NA_ District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Comptroller

@m Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

i
e bl

Agenda Ttem No. |{5




HIENSTHEEL

VITTICULIWOD

UANOISSTWWOD

UINOISSIHHOD

NYWIIYHD

vI/82/21

AUYNIWITIEA

)

obieg

PEAJUOTSSTWWOD JO pIecg Ajunol Asxoas syl Aq psaoaddy

8T ¥BYLEZY tpegangsTg
TL L9G'TIE 1I070Upasd ¢ JIajsues] Issn
05'25L°S ta1Td dag atg 1o pa9IX Spa3d saAorduyg
6V ETTI'TET yrandsg 30satg salforduy
ZV'CTO0'T rexoayp sslfoTdug
Z0 ZBT'LOT tEXOOYD Joasupag
YO LY0 'GP 184549 Ie3 IAsFSUBRIL I9S)

Junouy safed # pag
/4 dug

8 L % € % £ 2 1 :sdnoan TroxdAed

ieleg pua-potiad ST/Z0/T0 :23ed Yooud aernbay :adAy Troxded

x93sthay yoayp
KWHLSAS TIOEAYd AINNOD XHYOIS

Te30L

re3oL
TeI0L
TRI0L
Te30L
130

12308

#t aa
/APsud

€EIPEF VT PT/0E/2T  runy
¥0Ts0ud :3dey



1

00 SEG'T

20" 90¥%

LB 9ET'2

0’01

T0°8S€E

s 9F
ST LT
00°'0L2

207 68Y

00°08¢

00°005"'%
00°05L°¢
B 0D6E' 0%
6L 68
0o eT®

T¥# 28T

00'0%G €T

05" 8%

TELOL

ADEHD

abed

ST 2E¥
00 4€6°'%Y
867582
<0 08
i0°0%

BEZLED'T
BS 660°T
08°0T

BE LT

&V ET
69°'%
28'%
BE'ETT
6% 8
08'0€ET
99 €W

05 9%

ST LT
00°0LZ

98°00¢
971785

00" 3¢ct
00" %%

00°00S'Y
00'05L°E
8% 06E'0F
&6L'68

00 ET¥
i1
6L°0S

69 5%

ZS 0T
LL'g

¥8 €T

00°0%S'T
00" 000’21

0S728%

LNLIORY

EZ9TL
£P9TL
T3STL
¥e9TL
£S97TL

095TL
09STL

&55TL
ge51L
BYSTL
8S5TL
BOETL
BSETL
BSSTL
8SETL
BESTL
TI9TL
665TL
STOTL

SZ9TL
0E9TL

0ESTL
0ESTL

BLATL
TLSTL
rhotL
FEERTA
LSSTL
2881L
SSSTL
955TL
€L9TL
TLITL
TLITL

§99TL
£991L

<02TL

¥SNVHL

ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/T
ST/60/T
ST/60/T

ST/60/T
ST/60/T

ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/T
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/T
ST/60/1
ST/60/T
ST/60/T
ST/60/T

ST/60/T
ST/60/T

ST/60/T
ST/60/T

ST/60/T
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
S1/60/1
ST/60/T
ST/60/1
S1/60/1
ST/60/%
ST/60/T
ST/60/T
ST/60/1

§1/60/1
ST/60/T

ST/60/T

ELYd

ST/60/1

FS¥NESId LNIWHSTNAYD
d4a00 ALNMNOD AH¥OLS

a¥dI T0000-Z2S0E£95SLL
E60YTESELE ANI

OHA TAIM OQE0LLIFELE ANI

18U % TNN-Md
ISC ¥ TNN-M4

dWnd HSWE

WY3E NOOY-FSZSZHd
THIEE¥LTHL-dOHS
LTI UIY-YOLITIWOD
HSOH ¥EILVIH -dOHS
DNI¥YEE E0H-¥TZZ908
d¥D SYO-v6ZYENTA
YOSNES IJIA-GHS9EMd
SAINTI-~TT9TS0S
WEMES /SEITM
SONILLIA RESOH
NOILNHLAO SSYSIA/IAOWIT

FSUNASId LNHWHS INIYD
HSUNASIT INAWHSINGYD

PL0Z ‘TE-8T WILAWIDAQ

I8VET

8P8¥P8L ARAOTHEW dOQ0 DY AN
04 HIVLE ¥EdL
Sa¥dI ¥04 LINFFLNY
ST0Z SANT HIEWIN
HD

d0HS

dOHS

AYANOYT ¥4 1S
AYONOYT EL IS
AUANANYT TL LS

Ldoddns
9d YOSEISSY JLISHHM MAN

UOLYIAYY -ddMS AHHLY

NOLLITHDSEd EDICANT

HALSIDFY ADIHD
ALNQOD ATEOQLS

AFN 0 HOTA¥ES NCOLLDATION

ANYJWOD DNIHSITHNG IAOD

dTHSYANIYYd QOTTED

ONI QD "II0 AITIVA NOSHRWD

SENIDNT TTYRS NOSUYD

SIL¥Yd 0IN¥ ALID T¥IIdWD
NIWFAQUAWI TYHENEZD NOANYD
IYIYLSNCNT ¥INYCAIITYD

ONI SEOIANES T-TWD

TUNQISEEIONd ¥ SSENIsSng

SIMAT LIODS 'I1a¥sndg
NOOTYS GOOIE 40 LININE
{LdHOD) SINIDIY 40 TUVOE
IS VAVARN L19LY

OTT II ALITISON INIV

NESY SHUOMIELYM NYITYIWY

ONI ODSTY

ONI SHHLSAS VIVO JIONVATY
ONTI dIVAEY YOLVICWE T1-Y
HOGNIA

$1/80/10

R

6ETTE

8ETTE

LETIS

9118

SETTE
PETTE
CETTS

TETTB

TETT®

0ETTS
62118
BEZIT8
LETII8
9ZT18

SZTI8

¥ZT18

gL
2z1Te

HATWON
AERD

3738J Uny

STETEd toN 3xodey




£2°1¢ 89GTL ST/60/T SEAQTD 'SOVE HSWAL-ISMT

YTONITHD SSTT8
LSTLIT'T LG LTT T ZZOTL ST/60/1 HSUNESTA INIWHSINSYD
aL? NYEX ¥ FTAVD ¥STES
SZ° TBEZ'BOT S5Z'T8C E 099TL © SI/60/1 ALYdO¥d IS € IWd ISTNILNT
00000 7S0T 0%3TL ST/60/1 AIHIIOUA
M NC¥ ‘UIHOYTTIVD £STtT8
00006 00006 STITL ST/60/T HONVHD TTDIHIA TV
ONI FDNYWYOIYAd XO0d Z5T18
T0°150°2 187589 £9STL SI/60/1 PAY 'TSA-WI
59°9TL £95TL  ST/60/T aINTE aiH
§5°8%L £96TL  ST/60/T OFMST 00% oda
2TT ADYEANT S¥EXTI TSTT8®
¥6 9614 S0 %02 6Z9TL ST/60/T 05
20°2S% EEZ9TL ST/60/T TIYL
L8 BET ZI9TL ST/80/T aoOMEDCT
47 SYOTIHYEAS 0STT8
00" %8 00 %8 SL9TL S1/60/1 WIOAINN SEWYH
g NHOD 'aNWTONT 6VTI8
%9828 PTSHT ¥9S5TL ST/60/1 UOLOY @AVNE SFS9EMd
98°LOT POETL SI/60/1 AMELIVE-666TMd
-00°08% ¥9STL  ST/60/1 LIJIYD ADOLS
-08° 21T TOSTL ST/60/1 LIQEED WAJITYO-STS9EMd
18 152 TOSTL ST/60/T VAIITYD LIS U¥d STS9EMd
BT 6T ¥S5TL ST/60/T "I¥ES TI0 $0£850S
%69 ¥9STL ST/60/1 TIO0 ADOLS
898°z81 FOSTL 5T/60/1 AIIAY) - GPSIEMT
S8 FTE $96TIL  ST/60/T S1I0-ADOIE
-00706 POSTL ST/60/T LIQEYD £¥QTSHIIE
ONI A7440S OLOY LIOITTX 8FTTR
007 09¢ 007 09¢€ ZE9TL ST/60/T O/A IV SYWISINHD YITHIVA
O NIATYD 'NOTIIC LYTTE
05°8ZE 58728 £T9TL ST/&60/1 HEONYNIINIYW ¥ELYM
S6°' 62T SS9TL ST/60/1 TYLNIE ¥ATO0D ATHLNOW
55°9€ PLOTL ST/60/1 HALYM FL LIS
56 Q€ FLITL  ST/60/1 qALTH TL IS
S6' €L ¥L8TL  ST/80/T YALYM 24 LS
S6°5¢ TL9TL  ST/60/T
061§ Z9STL ST/60/% YALYM HO
ONI ¥SN SHOIYA IFITE
06 9L 00'2T TEITL ST/60/T PI0Z 'LT-% SEEWEDIA
00°%9 TEITL $T/60/1 ¥I0T ‘T€-8T WIEWHIEQ
¥ OIAVIDO ‘YIS0 SHTIT8
00°6%T 00°6%1 009TL  ST/60/1 S0-T92-£00 N&Y
DNI DIDOTEACO PHITS
00" ¥LT 00°89 P99TL ST/60/1 STOE/TE/ED-TO/TO ~ATHYD
00°90T LOSTL ST/80/T TIIYD ©F
ONT AL ALINAWWOD MDOLSWOD I3 48¢:]
00°29t 05" TZT £E6STL 5T/60/1 LNAWTIVISNI Q¥€ 40 HOILON
05°' 0% 059TL ST/60/1 TIO¥ XYW) $T1-$T102 ¥OJ
{DA) HETDINOYHD MDOLEWOD ZPT18
66 'ST& LT G6°6%Z'9 899TL  ST/60/1 SEOIAYHS HITYIH
00°052°¢% 89914 ST/60/1 yoddans
00" STEF‘S 899TL ST/60/T
ONI ISEHD ALINOWWOD IPTTS
0L EEL §5°T0€ £Z9TL ST/60/1 HSENESTIA INIWHSINIVO
TELOL LNNOWY #SNVHL ENA-(us % o/d NOILAI¥OSAd FDIOANY HOANFA UHEWIN
ADFHD ADEHD
ST/60/T YILSISIY ADEHD ST/R0/T0 a3'Q@ uNny

z abeg LINNOD AEHOLS STETEd ‘ON 3xodey




06 ¢gre L¥ITL S1/60/1

00°s¥%e LY9TL  ST/60/T
oo SL L7ITL S1/60/1
05°29%'2 LB9TL ST/60/1
YETTIOULANOD AFN LTS8
66" ¥ 66'% 083TL ST/60/% SETNE EIVTd HSNEDIY ¥LO
SLEVE ¥ON¥UL ¥ OLOY VaUN SLTITS
00° 00T 00°00T S0STL ST/60/T TE-TPE-E£00 NAY
HITHLYEE ‘¥ TI0NW YLTTE
00" 58% €L TYE 609TL 5T/60/1 HIYONSTTH
R AR A A PLSTL ST/60/T TYLNAQ FITANI aNY
D TYINEd SdW €LTTB
00°52Z'¢€ 00°522'¢€ 0L9TL  STI/60/T
I IMEH0Y ‘SYHHOH ZLTT®
00*%9 00" %9 6LOTL  ST/60/T 0L D"
OLNEWYEDYS 40 FAIL NYOHECW TLIT8
05°62% TLT8 0T9TL ST/60/T avd ASHd
88°26 0T9TL ST/60/T TIVL/NESCQ/d2qdcoay
89' S8 £8ST4 ST/60/T S4IT) ¥EANIL
LETOOT 8LOTL ST/60/1 SEITAANS EDLLE0
98 " T¥%T 9G9TL ST/60/T SHITAINS EDIA40
NI SNOILNTOS H0ILA0 OHLAW OLTIB
00°%60°F 00" %60'% SLGTL ST/60/1 ET-¥102
YATIOULAWOD 0D NOAT 69718
0070052 D0"005°T T8STL ST/60/1 T3
LIIYOUYH ' SEHIMOT 89118
DO 9ET 00" 9€ET LLYTL 5T/60/1 $817dd0S SWE
DNI LSISSY-HJIT L9TTS
LO"ET L0TET £09TL ST/60/7 HAYL ‘EATYA NYJ-SLWIOIRYIA
2771 adp 99118
86 LST 86°2%T LS9TL ST/60/1 FAYISAN WYY TIYMINIL
C0"ST LSITL ST/60/1 TOUYHD ONIAAIHS aIVAND
OTT FD¥NOS TII §9TT8
zZ'bEZ [AAR 244 §S9TL ST/60/1 ST0Z NY[D LPTIN
NI LOW QANY NIVINNCH NOWI ¥9TIB
BE LT 8T LY BESTL ST/60/T dS0H JIL-IAMG-80T59amMd
ANES TYINISOANT DITNYTIaAH £9TT8
895 %€ 86°6T ZLSTL ST/60/1 LIN ¥IVAHEY LETIOL-JLOA
09" ¥T ZLSTL ST/60/1 SAEN-NYEAS SOLT
HITAMES LIGIND LOJEAd EWOH [4:28 47}
00°002°ST 00°002'ST 695TL ST/60/1
OHDS JY¥YM HINNOA DI¥CLSIH T9TI8
[4 AR 113 [4Al 123 9L9TL  ST/60/T SIITIANS SWA
NIFHDS XUNEH 0518
L9°6L9 L9 ¥8E 685TL  ST/60/T LES WO ¥ LUYHD
05° 84T 68S8TL  ST/60/T SLSAL
09° 5% 68STL ST/60/1 SL8H,
0016 685TL ST/60/T S159L
aLl INIVK TIDVA A1ddAS OH 6STTS
988z 98° 8¢ 909t L ST/60/T £0-TSE-£0D
ATIEE ? SYIHN0d SIYEVH BSTTY
06" 2LE'T 0S°ZLE'T SE9TL ST/60/T S¥H §°0E
ROL ' XYETESNVED LSTIS
T0'208 10 Z08 TZOTL ST/80/1 ASUANFSLG INIWHSINEYD
[ ADNYN ‘NVHD 95118
PS5 LE TE'9T 89STL ST/60/1 SOYE HSYEL -DSMT
TYLOL LNOOWY #SNTEL FLYA # 0/4 NOILAI¥OSEG IDIOANI ¥OANFIA FIEHON
MOEHD ASEHD
§T/60/T ¥WALSIDIY MDIHD ST/80/1I0 : &3eg uny

€ abeg ALNOD XTHOLS STETHd ‘oN Iaoday




NI =Z4IT JUYANYLE FONWITIY 10218

00’459 SL°6 LESTL ST/60/T
SZ° S5 LESTL  ST/60/T PI0& ‘T€-8T DACQ
W YHANYS 'a¥cJdavy 00ZI8
00 00€'E 00 00E'E Z6STL  ST/60/T WY¥D0dd YIAHW "IYIDOS
ONI SIIDIAIVELS Ay G6TTE
00°006'T 00°006'T S6STL ST/60/T £699T09T LIOY
YAMOd ISYHOUNA 86TTE
00°082'T 00°082°T L9STL ST/60/T
OLIVSNEAWOD ADNEDY JITNd LETTH
00754 00- 5L LI9TL SI/60/T SNIYOLINCH
ONI SHDIARD MOILDILOEd 96118
S8 182 S8° 182 8TI9TL ST/60/T TSYALSIA LNEWHS INUYD
I 0D EDNYNIA TYNOISSIIONd S6TT8
00°LTT 00°LTIT 9E9TL ST/60/T S9BTRILETTE IIDVW
ONI SHEMOY XENLIL Y6118
00° 0% 008 SE9TL ST/60/T F10E ‘LI~¥ DEQ
o0 ge SE9TL 5T/60/1 vI0Z ‘TE-8T DEQ
a OTIONY ‘INIYLAd E6113
00°'98S 00° 98§ £E9TL S1/60/1 ST/8G/2C - ST/ZT/T0Q
077 VIGEW INOUALNO 6118
00°06T 00" 0BT ¥6STL S1/60/1 OGNIM FAQEV MILNNOD ILNOEJ
IS ® SOIHAVHD AQIS FHI NO T6TTS8 :
05'9 05'9 T09TL ST/60/1 SHATATIS CI i
DNI L0433 EDILA0 CETTS !
00 89¢ 05602 189TL  ST/60/T TYDISAHd NHYD
05 85T 189TL  ST/60/T TYOISAHd HIIWS
FINED HLIVHH "T¥NOIIYANDD0 68118
8£'08T BE 08T 0ESTL  ST/60/1 Fd0" SHAOTD
ONI dWOD ALTAYS NETHION 88TTS
00 0LT 0O OLT 159TL  ST/60/1 HDTAYES NOILVIZNANTINI
TYNOIIYNHIINT AN NITHIION L8TT8
S0°9LE’T 8T BES LZ$TL  ST/60/T NOISSIMHOD HNINNTIL
£0'66S LTSTIL  ST/60/T SYANCISSIWWOD
¥8 8ET LEITL ST/60/T INFHAQTIATI WHOD
DNI YINNCAITYD 20 TILXIN 98TT8
00 0¥F [e[eR 2 999714 5T/60/T 89EZ9XE -EDIAGA FHYISANYH
EIYAHD ‘NIAEN S8TI8
z5'09¢e°¢g z5°0%E’S L99TL ST/60/1 9€a0 $I0Z AHAWIAON
dASY AINAOD THENE YAYAHN ¥8TIT8
00°5¢ 00'S¢ 8¥ITL ST/60/T
HIYNSYIAUL AN £8TTI8
00°SLY 00'SL¥% TLITL 5T/60/71
¥YE ELVIS AIN €8T18
6L 'SES'T 6L GE9'T LESTL ST/60/1 SLOTIVE IYHANTD
TESNNOD HALLYISIHET AN 18118
00°89%'9 52 96L'% €LSTL ST/60/1
SLTTLY'T €LSTL  ST/60/T £0-OW-dYA-ST RdS
SIDUNOBIY NYWOH AIN 08118
00°859°S 00°859°'S LBSTIL  ST/60/T NOILDALOYd HITYHH
NYWOH-HLTYEH JO0 ATQ AEN 6LTT8
9L 0% 9L° 0% FEOTL ST/60/T
NOILYXYL IdEd AN 8LTI8
00026 0006 BE9TL ST/60/T SLNIYdUIDNIA
ALTAYS DITEN IIZA ASN LLTTE
00°S8E2'¢ 0000t LP9TL  ST/60/1
IYLOL LNNOWY HSNTAL HLYd # o/d NOILAIEISEAd HEDTIOANI VOUNEA HIERON
¥OIHD MDEHD
ST/60/T YELSISEY NDIHD ST/BC/TO : 93eg unyg

7 abeg ALNOOD AZNOLS STETEd ‘oN 3I0day




ZT'6TT 889TL ST/60/T

Z1'6TT 8§8STL ST/60/T
ZT°6TT 885TL ST/60/T
607991 88GTL SET/60/T
ZT 61T BYSTL ST/60/T
ZI 61T §85TL ST/60/1
08'0€T 88GTL ST/60/1
08" 0€T 885TL ST/60/1
TG LLT GEITL ST/60/1 KSI¥NOL
8% Z¥%1 8989TL ST/60/1
WALSAS ¥EIVM CD LS yTeIe
00" €€8°'2ZT 00" £€8'ET 6LSTL  ST/60/T 130d4ns
(DAYHELNED YOINES CD IS £12T8
00°00T 00°00T §¥91L ST/60/T
IEO0D ADTLSNL 0D LIS [AA4:
0L"%9 0L %9 Z99TL ST/60/1 SYANYALS WOOULND
SHTEYNEA S NYOIS 11218
00°6€T 007 0ET 8€9TL  SU/60/% SdYW INAOW/S1Td FWYN
00°'6T 69974 51/60/T SATHA0EL XW/SAU¥D SNd HM
¥Ed D77 SAINLSNANI DI 0TZYL8
00°09L°T 007 094'T 6%9TL ST/60/1 TI0¥ XVI INI¥d 9T-5T0Z
SEINISNONT FIVLS YHATIS 60ZT8
00° 05 00° 0% ¥T9TL ST1/60/T SO0E qOOMIDOT
ORI 'TOMINOD ISHEd VI¥dIsS 802T8
9T 80T ‘T €9°€0T 9LETL  STI/60/T SIHOIT 1§ HD 30 NMOL
85" LL 9LSTL  ST/60/T IHPIT IS SYANOISSIWWOS 0§
ST ¥E6 9LETL §1/60/1 SILEDIT LS ALID YINIDYUIA
02 YAMOd DIJIOWd WHHIIS LOETE
6 v8 8271 9891L  ST/60/T DNINNYTE
IT°€ 9891L ST/60/T iI
$eg* 989TL  ST/60/T {ha) F4gIa
9% ¥ 989TL  ST/60/T YANOISSIHWHOD
IE£°6 989TL ST/60/T va
TE°S 989TL  ST/60/T HILYASIA TYdINAD
SE°9 989TL ST/60/T HOBSHASSY
0£°8 989TL ST/60/T INTHAOTEAZA ALYNAWHOD
£1°9 9891L ST/60/T {oA) YIS
0E£°T 9891y ST/60/T AOCMYDOT/IUII
£€°2 989TL ST/60/T NINWAY /T TIOELANG)
£5° 989TL ST/60/T ZIIYIUS
0g e 989TL ST/80/T ar
R 24 989TL ST/60/1 AL THFHS
Z28°1 989TL ST/60/T SHUOM DITENd
6% € SBOTL ST/60/T {OA) FWIZ
8%" 989TL ST/60/T AEAACITAA
PLTE 989TL ST/80/T ¥UETIO
a1 NI SEIDIAYES TIVEQTD DJ8S 90218
Z0°Z8T'6 Z0 EZBL'6 ¥ESTL ST/60/T 212 (JINY PSEELO00O0ANINY
YEH QIYYHATEd SAMYHW LNIYS 50218
00°'056°9 00'066°9 OLSTL ST/60/T ST~%T0E
ONT SIINIDINY SAYYHW INIYS Y0218
LE 95T LE'9ST Z289TL ST/60/T SHITIANS SWIE
DNI 0Dddn¥ £0Z18
0TS 01" S 98STL ST/60/1 AONYENSNI 41T ZIAILEA
NI FII7T QUVANYLS FONVITIE z0Z18
0€£' 069 0€° 089 T99TL S1/60/1 IYLNAC 4E¥ILEY
IYICL LNNCHY #SNYAL jchA (el # 0/d NOILII¥DSHA HEDTQANY HOaNdA ATEHON
ADFEHD ADEHD
ST/60/1T NWALSIDAA MOIHD S1/80/T0 : 33ieq uny

g  =beg ALNOOD AFHOLS §TETEd :oN 3iodey




S0°589'STE TYLOL SUDEHD

68 TEE 00°§€2 T6STL  STI/60/T SHAQTD-dOHMS
68798 TESTL ST/60/T STIIAEY LIM -dOHS
ONI IYDICEN ¥ED LZ2T]
05°2TT 05°€g9 Z¥OTL ST/60/1 HONVAONSNI O % F ZAYION MD
00°0S EY9TL ST/60/1 HONVENSNI dNQE XEVION MD
ANVARWOD ALTINS NUILSEM 9zZT18
LB LBE L8 LEE ¥O9TL S1/60/1 FAYNS H0d dTEYD
0D A1ddNs VA¥AHN NIZLSAM SZET8
00516 00°0¢ 06STL ST1/60/1 WHOAIT0D TLOL
00" S¥T 06STL ST/60/T 2¥0 TICL'ATTOD "LIOL ‘HIY
00064 06STL ST/60/1 OTYHINL TYLOL'AIDY O'I¥H
g9 TYINAWNOSIANE NYALSEM PLETE
09'£8T 09°'49% G8STL ST/60/7 HIETLIY TOOO L¥08PO OF
DNI 'NYTId "OTAYHS NOISIA £2TTI8
00" ¥0¥ 00°08% TP9TL ST/60/1 Y102 ‘T£-8T1 24
00 %2 IP9TL ST/60/T
ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDAIA ZZTTE®
00089 00°00€ 809TL ST/60/T HdY UYMW 9EZ4 IOYLS0d
00°00F 809TL ST/60/1 WY 'UYW g2 ZOVLS0d
00'09 9%9TL ST/60/1 %L9 XCH
(DA)  EOIJIOLS0d 8N T1ZZ18
0B £0T T£°69 98S5TL ST/60/1 AT~ O¥EI SOLT
8% PET 955TL ST/60/1 g/M- n¥Id SOLT
INEWHEAOYAWI TYHANHD IHL 0zeTs
057 05¢ 05 01 0%¥9TL  ST/60/T
00 0FE 0P9TL ST/60/T »T0Z ‘TE€-8T Dda
SESIYJUIING Nvdd NAS ETETH
10258 10°'258 £89TL ST/60/1 $TIT3dNS SWI
TYOIAEN YHARILS hgAd]
00°005°Z 00°005'2 99GTL ST/60/1 ST-%T02 HSYEI
HS50d 30 AILNANGCY AZUOLS L1218
PETTTE PETTE 619TL  ST/60/T H5YNESIA ILNAWHS INIVD
2d MOTOdOA ¥ NIHAZLS 9T1ZTe
00°g€6'% 00" 8€6°Z ZS9TL ST/60/1 SIITdS 'Wdd¥-T'ON ~IdL
AUVH QEOdIYIS S12T8
£59Le’e 29795 6ESTL ST/60/T Lod®d TIIH dues
£9°'95 88GTL ST/60/T
ZE° 09 885TL S1/60/1
ZI'&TT 88STL S1/60/1
0009t BBSTL  ST/60/T
TH 80T BESTL ST/60/1
TS'ST¥ 8BYTL ST/60/1
%' 9% BBSTL ST/60/1
TYLOL LNOOWY HSNTUL TIVA # 0/a NOILATHDIERA EOIOANI HOaNIA HALWAN
ADIHD p:nkcizml
ST/60/7 WALSIODTY ADTHO ST/80/T0 : o3®g uny
9  ebeg . AINAOD RHYOLS STETEd :ON 3zo0dey
» . ) i




HANOISSTHHWOD

YINOISSIWHOD
NYHEIVHD
WHANSYIUL
HITIQOTLIWOD
ST/60/T HELYQ MDIHD

50°589'ST¢€

TYLOL SMDEHD

NOLLVZI¥OHINY ONY MIIANY J0 LNIWIDAATMONIOY




S8/

29'LE9’S

9 LES'D

-66°¥E
06" 9%
SgLe
00" sS4
66697
§QTEE
LT EQE
oQ'TE
09" ¥2
T6'6T1
00" §S54
S0° 92T
2606
0o 0o0zT'Y
95°£1E
50°£8
6L 0K
69°L8T
66°6T
LL'TPT
&g’ s

IYLOL
QYD

LNOCHY

T abed

oLE
oLE
£9¢
oLe
0LE
28¢€
¥t
Tie
95¢
99¢€
Iit
TLE
99¢
99¢€
99¢
89¢
gLE
69¢€
69¢
CLE
TLE

#SHTEL

ST/60/T
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/T
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/T
ST/60/T
ST/60/1
S1/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/1
ST/60/T
ST/60/T
ST/60/T
ST/60/T
ST/60/1

[ERA

UENOISSINWOD

NIEOLEY QIq¥y Wd
SETLIIZ SONI SI¥D

HY ACIND SYIANOISESIWWOD
LI 18T LLY

d3ud ¥ENOISSIWWOD MEN
SEIVELIYE INYTd JEITM
H40 DEY DNILTAW/TTJI0D
oL W MENNYTE TIIHJHMNHD
SANFEN

dY¥HD ONINIVYL SIdd 9Fd
29 QANI OMINIVEL/ILXIL
YITTOULAKOD HO3 SWHOI
0Z@ SLT W04 dCOI ALdVd
LS E7EYL TIVINI0) LNIH
¥4 'A00OM  BYOWIIS NOSIOd
SHEITAANS

D/A ¥0A AYW/SIITAANS
HWEKW ¥OLYHISATII H20av
DOLKH -OHYOE NILETINE
FOIAJ0 DEE AOYLSOA

NOILdIYDOSEA

HILSIDEY ddvo ISYHOHNd
ALNNOD AHWOLS

ANYEA-LLETOLE
ANVEC-TSTPTTIZ
ONINNY'Id VdY¥ POREST
LZEGLLSET
HNYHG-ZECECD
AZZANDDH SO NALLIHM
AIND AMILIVE- XHYES
noTY# DIY

ESNOH LSYOM ENOH50
COOMADOT/ROOT WIADOT
ST/9/1-91/9/L ANI
Z58680E" " "# ANI
660T/2-M TIIND NIVS
AVAITOH VZNYNOE NIVL
SNOIS¥I20 1Y NIV
HSNEdNE ONILAIK ad
LOdEATHOH AUy ITvda
10dEd EDIAI0 MO
SWELSAS FACAY MD
NOZYWY ~NIAEN'D
ZOBTEO# TA¥AdAY
ININAYS

# EDIOANI IJEd-dNNg

+TBIOL PI®D«

JE¥D IVIDUAWWOD ENO STTIM 6t

HOANTA EHEWAN
2d
ST/80/T0 a3eq unyg

1808%544 *ON jzodsy




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [x ] Regularagenda [] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Approval of Auditors Recommendations pertaining to Storey County Audit Report for the
period ended June 30, 2014

2. Recommended motion
I hereby make a motion to approve the recommended actions pertaining to the Auditors
recommendations for the current Audit Report Period ended June 30, 2014.

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher

Department: Comptroller Telephone: 847-1006

4. Staff summary: The Comptroller and Sheriff will address the Auditors report on current
recommendations and purpose solutions for the next fiscal year.

5. Supporting materials: Provided prior to the meeting

6. Fiscal impact: none

Funds Available: Fund: X __ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
X Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [
[1 Denied [

Approved with Modifications
Continued

(SRS ]

Agenda Item No. 7/




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 01/20/15 Estimate of time required: 25 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1. Title: Discussion/Possible Action: In accordance with Condition No. 2.2 of Special Use Permit No.
2000-222-A-5 (SUP) held by Comstock Mining, LLC, the SUP holder (Comstock Mining)
submitted to the Board of County Commissioners a major modification to its mine operating plan
so that the Board may validate that the modification conforms to the conditions of the existing
SUP. The major modification will allow Comstock Mining’s ore haul trucks to cross over a
portion of State Route 342 between the Lucerne Pit and the “east resource area”, an arca
immediately east of the Lucerne Pit, in southern Gold Hill, Storey County, Nevada. The subject
area and plans are included in Enclosures A - C.

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with Condition No, 2.2 of Special Use Permit No. 2000-222-A-5,
I (Commissioner) validate that the operating plan major modification, in which ore haul trucks will cross
over a portion of State Route 342 between the Lucerne Pit and the “east resources area™, an area
immediately cast of the Lucerne Pit, in southern Gold Hill, as described in the submitted plans, conforms
to the conditions of the existing SUP, and, accordingly, I authorize county staff to accept the operating
plan major modification and to proceed otherwise in accordance with the applicable federal, state, and
county regulations,

3. Prepared by: Austin Osbomne
4. Department: Planning Telephone: 847-1144
5. Staff summary: See staff summary in Enclosure A.

6. Supporting materials: See Enclosures A-C: Staff summary; SUP 2000-222-A-5 Boundary;
and SUP holder’s submitted operating plan amendments.

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

District Attorney

9. Reviewed by:
7 Department Head Department Name:
Manager Other agency review:

10. Beard action:
[] Approved
M1l Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

—
L

Agenda Item No. \8




2015-001 - CML Operating Plan Modification (SR 342 crossing) Planning Dept. 775.847.1144

Enclosure A: Staff Summary

Summary and recommended conditions: In accordance with condition 2.2 of Special Use Permit No.
2000-222-A-5 (SUP), Comstock Mining, LL.C., (mining company) requests a major modification to its
mine operating plan so that ore haul trucks may cross over a portion of State Route 342 between the
Lucerne Pit and the “east resource area”, an area immediately east of the Lucerne Pit which is shown in
Exhibit A as within the boundaries of the subject SUP in southern Gold Hill. The area in which the crossing
is to occur is located within “Area A” of the SUP where mining, mine definition, exploration, and other
related activities are allowed.

The mining company submitted a narrative traffic management plan and engineered drawings (Enclosure C)
to the Building and Planning Departments for review and approval. Staff reviewed the plans and required
that they be amended to also include the items shown below. The requirements shown below, and other
comments submitted to the mining company by staff, must be met before building and grading permits are
issued. All associated costs will be borne by the mining company. After the corrections are made, planning
staff find that the major modification to the operating plan conforms to the provisions of the SUP, and,
therefore, recommend that the board validates the amendments as conforming.

1.

The mining company must conform to the provision of its approved operating plan for the haul
truck crossing at State Route 342 (traffic management plan and engineered drawings), and the
requirements of the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT). The traffic management plan
includes, but is not limited to: vehicular traffic management; haul truck traffic management;
certified flagger staff for northbound and southbound lanes; signage and lighting; safety design and
procedures; and grading and structural design of crossing infrastructure. The foregoing items apply
to construction and operating phases. The traffic management plan and use of the roadway crossing
must conform to the provisions of the subject special use permit.

The mining company must develop a 50 foot paved mud track-off approach where the haul road
abuts State Route 342. Beyond the 50 foot approach, an additional 100 feet of gravel/riprap mud
track-off must be developed and maintained. The track-off device will reduce or eliminate mud and
debris from entering State Route 342,

At all times during construction and operation of the crossing, the mining company must maintain
in close proximity to the crossing equipment that is sufficient to remove mud, dirt, rocks (including
large rocks), and other debris that may enter the roadway by haul trucks (e.g., street sweeper and
small tractor). Mud, dirt, and rocks will be immediately and consistently removed from the road
and with minimal disruption to regular northbound and southbound traffic. A gualified person to
operate this equipment must be immediately available.

The mining company must develop a vehicle turnout abutting the northbound lane of State Route
342. The turnout must be located within 100 preceding the truck crossing. The turnout will be
paved or based as required by NDOT or Storey County.

The road crossing must remain closed to haul truck crossing and gated during fog, ice, skeet, and
SNOW events.

During construction of the crossing, State Route 342 may not be closed to through traffic. One lane
may be closed, from which all vehicular traffic will be routed through an adjacent detour, After
construction, both northbound and southbound lanes must remain open to vehicular traffic, At ail
times the roadway will be accessible to northbound and southbound emergency vehicles.
Northbound and southbound vehicular traffic shall maintain the right-of-way, and haul trucks shall
yield to this traffic as directed by qualified flagger staff. (Haul truck traffic shall not impede or
cause interruption to regular traffic.)

The payload of each haul fruck crossing the roadway must not exceed the maximum payload
capacity set forth by the haut truck manufacturer. This condition is intended to reduce instances of
material falling from trucks onto the roadway.

Page 1 0of 16




2015-001 - CML Operating Plan Modification (SR 342 crossing) Planning Dept. 775.847.1144

Summary of SUP validation provision: The subject SUP allows the Board of County Commissioners to
validate that proposed major modifications to the SUP holder’s operating plan conform to the conditions of
the SUP. The SUP does not provide for planning commission review or hearing. If the Board finds that the
proposed modification conforms to the SUP, it shall without a formal vote direct staff to accept the
modification and allow the SUP holder to proceed as otherwise provided by federal, state, and county
regulations. SUP Condition No. 2.2 is as follows:

SUP Condition 2.2: Operating Plan SUP Conformance Review
The operating plan shall conform to the conditions of the SUP. The Permit Holder shall update the
operating plan concurvemtly with uses under the SUFP and submit the updated plan to the Plonning
Department prior to initiating activities under the modified plan.

For operating plan elements and uses within “Area A" (Exhibit A), the Board of Storey County
Commissioners (board) may verify if the drafi modified operating plan and each major modification
thereafter {"“modification”) conform to the conditions of the SUP. Operating plan elements and uses
within “Area B” are not subject to this validation requirement. For “Area A", the operating plan
required by the NDEP or BLM (i.e., State Permits or Federal Pian of Operations), and the additional
operating plan elements required by the SUP but not the NDEP or BLM, are all subject to the
requirements of this section, but only as to whether the entire submission conforms to the SUP
requirements and not as to whether the submission approved by other agencies conform to those
agency requirements.

Minor modifications to the operating plan are not subject to the requirements of this section. Major and
minor modifications are as defined in SCC 17.03.110. A "“Minor modification” defined by, or identified
as such in, the NDEP or BLM Plom of Operations or reclamation plan are not subject fo the
requirements of this section,

The Permit Holder shall submit to the Planning Department copies of the modification no later than
5.00 p.m. on the Friday of the third week before the board meeting at which the hearing will be
scheduled. The Planning Department and other applicable county departments, such as the Storey
County Fire Protection District, and the Emergency Management and Public Works Departments, as
applicable, will review the proposed modification and verify that it conforms to the conditions of the
SUP. If staff finds that the modification conforms to the conditions of the SUP, the Planning Director
will schedule the matter on the agenda of the board to be heard at its next regular meeting. If staff finds
that the modification does not conform to the conditions of the SUP, the Permit Holder may resubmit
the modification until it is found by staff to be in compliance.

There shall be no hearing or advisory recommendation of the planning commission, and the board shall
only verify that the modification conforms to the conditions of the SUP.

The Planning Director shall present to the board a summary report with findings. If all members of the
board find that the modification conforms to the conditions of the SUP, it shall without a formal vote
direct stqff to accept the modification and allow the Permit Holder to proceed accordingly. If one or
more members of the board expressly find that the modification may not conform to the conditions of
the SUP, the board shall by a majority vote verify that the modification is or is not conforming.

A majority vote verifying that the modification conforms to the conditions of the SUP authorizes staff to
accept the modification and allows the Permit Holder to proceed accordingly. If the board by its vote
determines that the modification does not conform to the conditions of the SUP, it shall state findings of
Jact of the nonconformance in its motion and vote to not authorize staff 1o accept the modification and
to continue the item to the next regular board meeting to aliow the Permit Holder the opportunity to
bring the modification into conformance,

The findings and determination of the board shall apply only to the modification’s evident conformance
fo the existing conditions of the SUP, and shall not affect the conditions or entitlements existing in the
SUP. The board's decision to authorize staff 1o accept the modification and allow the Permit Holder to
proceed accordingly may not be appealed, except by the Permit Holder. The Permit Holder may at any
time submit or re-submit modifications to its operating plan. There shall be no application fees or other
fees required.

Page 2 of 16




T i oo

o S

s

Rl

et S e AR I IBLE Mmuﬂwrﬁ«.

FEIT 24854, “3dag Buiuueyy (Suiss04d ZyE WS) uonesipow uelg Sunnessdo TND - TO0-SI0Z




91 3o § 98eg

10}
e B

"Wk ]

R N A
i

L PWIn -

= AL A0S

. HOS SNV Id INSINFAGHN T,

T v oo pmangpRegp T e

g WeaIesn | -

- SRR &
URRAT A A3SO5A0

v 0w W B L 5
AR WM W EDRROL] JGOH ST e CASATUGOTY MU U Chat Sy tlensed
¥ AR DN HY LEIBEEN VR XTHRTA S | A LB B e A,

AN e

- INGWSIVIS SHITANIONT

. XSGNITIERS

L Hdumer 0y TEIABIOOS LM SN BTkt

WIAONC

e frvvre 18 518 PO
i ank e Sen THE W

5 ARTMTA TACM S
B SR 3 S E A o) T

i Famig, 2 Hla
et
7 T SN ek o, ERION VIR 5 IS I A vty 9y
5 e e o TR ) BA e s m e Ciad -
L Wil B 0 IS Dz ALOI L WA b TRILNDG 3
WS Rl GRS R B 102443 B o

el S wammuie,
HAAE PO S AT BN DO Bk Oy BRIV I DT 25 D
+ SHMKa NG - YO0 10 ST SHENINPRASEE K TRl B 3G AN 200G

o NGUVAITIH0 SisvE

STt o 1 s
IFLS ALRNISOOS 1] ALXID WPRARR S Vi b L H | SAEwr i
FRCMLI SE9E SATARACOMAI N S TGH, G R S Sy A M1V RV YA RIECH

SAVNIGHOGD ONY SONMVIEIOSISVa

 HIJOTIATAIINM

Hefd JUsMOSeuE JIJe) FANELIBH PUE SAUIMEID BULIBOUIBUS JJ61p PIRIUIGNS - 2SO

PYTIT L¥8 5L 1dag Buluuejy

{Butsson zrg YS) Hoitedipow ue|d Sutelad) T - TOO-STOZ



Planning Dept. 775.847.1144

2015-001 - CML Operating Plan Modification {SR 342 crossing)

Nl
4w T Ve re et

T T MIAGS ATIOIE EEITI0R0 ; 5 i

¥ bals NS 13 LIRS WA e o 7 k. &
s LINWAS - mi'm T f S NI ONIOYEOANS.

| See next page zoom.

Page 5 of 16




Planning Dept. 775.847.1144

2015-001 - CML Operating Plan Modification (SR 342 crossing)

Page 6 of 16




91 Jo £ 98eg

L QSN Ok
GINOCHTH AN TBOL

S
Al

5 4SIqHOTOD LOAN
 SNISSOND 3avio 1v Zve
SNV T4 LNINIAORNI

HOd.

BT AR GRS §

PYIT Ly8SLL 1dag 3uluue|g (Buissosa Zpg YS) uoleNyPOIN ueld Bupesad IND - TO0-STOT




Planning Dept. 775.847.1144

2015-001 - CML Operating Plan Modification (SR 342 crossing)

L
AR '.‘}'.
%
z
i -
o

2 DRWOUT Ol e e A

T ERISTING AR~

e T

ERKISTAG AT

Page 8 of 16




91 JO g 99ed

Ryells

o] bt 2RIt

..z

,zuau._ﬁ.xxp;ﬂm
SRR

B e xney

.. TeB oIS oL FAVaIS

Co T e e
T e

AL A,

. ONISSOHD 3QVHO 1V 2PEYS.

WO SNVId LINFWIAOYA

v

FLOCTIRT Sy suikeg | VA

mimre] NVId TOHINGD Dl44v2 L NOLLANULSNGD

W AREDENE |

< RO ) BVS BN L e R

PPIT b8 5L Weq Suueg

(uissoud ZyE US) UolEIIPOIN Ueld SuneladO TND - TO0-STOZ




=TT sy Rrrr T AL IO ALt s IEATROR.
T el Vi Eobid e eyt s PR G SR Y by M ! ! b

"NY1d TOULNOD DIZvHL INVNIWTd
W] - ONISSONO IQYND IV ZHE DS
- HOJSNYId INIWIACHIWI TIAID

-
it REBEING BIGK

B
Y-‘fﬁ?% SO

Planning Dept. 775.847.1144

2015-001 - CML Operating Plan Maodification (SR 342 crossing}

Page 10 of 16




91 Jo 11 98eg

TR U0 [as BRI T e e L1

A T
L UENISYHY NOILONELSNGD
ONISSOMD 3AVHOIVEM HE
- HO4 SNYTd LNIWIA0HAWE MAID

$ITONT LN Pwteag | CeRR L

AROPDIND
. ofer W Q360430

PYIT P8 944 3dag Buluued {Suissoud Zie Ys) uonesyipo ueld SunessdQ 1A - TO0-STOT




01 J0 71 9%ed

=T

A R A TS

J3IHS YLD

oo

O
0
A=
RE
i
33
&
M . i ey R
_.:M Bl A psn v%nxmmmwwﬁnﬂ% WLLI Nt A3 DivHas Y
.g B A R M R
it e o
%m E:ER.B:B@.%%%&
Lz
&3
> BN

A S Ry A A Wi PPt fr

i TIINNS

m m m m S
i THEIVET
| a
] a
E m 27|E IS0
] M e AT
ORI oF
gl |§|2
H
. T
MY ANIENTA Sisnne LT i
etz W s, Wi patsnn— T -
.
st
slesi 3L A5 RE Snee -
B AT U AR ™

A B G bz, TIRIZ .'\
S pstie § O dioes

PPIT £¥8°GL 4 "3daq Buluuejd (Bu1ss01D ZEE YS) voneayIpo ueld Sunesado YA - T00-5TOT




2015-001 - CML Operating Plan Modification (SR 342 crossing) Planning Dept. 775.847.1144

Narrative submiited by
Comstock Mining, LLC

MINING
SR 342 At-Grade Crossing Amendment to Operational Plan per SUP # 200-222-A-5

Comstock Mining Inc (“Comstock Mining” or the “Company”) is in the process of assessing mine
opportunities on the East side of the Lucerne Resource Area (and also east of SR 342). The
Company has already done an extensive amount of environmental and cultural assessment,
including testing the designated risk arcas for the CRMSS. These assessments identified an
opportunity to remove certain dump materials, currently on the East of SR 342, that contain some
contaminants and also, potentially, some lower grades of gold and silver. This presents the
opportunity for an environmentally friendly, productive and efficient clean up of those dump areas.
In order to achieve this first phase of pre-mine planning and preparation, access to the east for
removing these materials is necessary. This is also prior to finalizing any plans for mining East-
side ore and finalizing any permanent plans for rerouting SR 342.

The Company has evaluated different methods of crossing the state route and has determined that
an at-grade crossing two lanes wide allowing haul frucks to pass each other safely offers the least
amount of impact to the surrounding community. We can provide the construction of the crossing
without closing the road. The purpose of the crossing will be to transport dump materials in haul
trucks to the west side of the state route for permanent disposal on the Company’s existing heap
leach pad (the pad is an ideal solution for removing contaminants but is only practical due to the
existence of some metals in these old dumps). It is our intent to phase the construction of the
crossing to minimize impacts to the community and any associated tourism, as well as leaving
access through the work zone for fire and emergency vehicles.

The Company has had civil improvement plans for the crossing prepared by Summit Engineering,
These drawings are available upon request and have been submitted to the county for review.
Drawing sheets C-3 and C-4 illustrate the three phase construction sequence, which will allow
consistent flow of traffic and emergency vehicles for the duration of the construction process. The
intent is to manage the construction of the crossing in an effort to keep the state route open at all
times.

Phase one of the construction will include a paved bypass to the east of the structural
improvements that need to be made within the state route to support mining equipment. This
phase of work will not include any improvements to the SR. It will be specifically for the
purposes of constructing a travel way for the public that is separate from the construction activities
that need to be made within the SR. This bypass will be constructed large enough to accommodate
any and all traffic that would normally travel the SR. When traffic is flowing on the bypass and
the work area is secure within the SR then construction of phase two will be performed. Phase two
will require saw cutting the existing SR roadway, removal of the existing asphalt and substrate and
the replacement of this section with 30” of structural fill on top of 24” of type 11 aggregate base
rock and 10" of asphalt. When phase two of the construction is complete (about 17 days) then
traffic can return to normal travel within the SR. Phase three of the construction phase would




2015-001 - CML Operating Ptan Modification (SR 342 crossing) Planning Dept, 775.847.1144
include the construction of the West shoulder outside of the travel way and independent of the
bypass.

The bypass in phase one of the construction sequences will be two lanes wide and fully paved.
The structural section of the bypass is planned for 3” of asphalt on 6 of type II aggregate base.
Traffic will be required to cross under the existing communications lines that are located on the
East side of the SR while traveling on the bypass. The clearance between the existing
communication lines and the finished surface of the bypass will be no less than 20 feet, which will
not impede emergency vehicles requiring 13.5 feet of clearance. During construction activities,
and where required, flaggers will be present to control construction activities and separate the
public.

Drawing sheet C-5 illustrates the construction traffic plan. It will be implemented when there is a
need to temporarily stop traffic during construction. The plan details the type of signs that will be
required and their approximate locations along SR 342, This traffic control system could be used
in any phase of the construction, but primarily in phase two, or when large deliveries or
construction activities require it (i.e. paving or material deliveries).

When construction of the crossing is complete, its primary use will be to transport material across
the SR in Cat 740 trucks. Periodically, other mining equipment will need to cross also, but
nowhere near the frequency of the Cat trucks. Drawing sheet C-6 illustrates the traffic control plan
that will be used for operations. SR 342 traffic will maintain the right of way with mine traffic
crossing only when the way is clear. It is the intent of the Company to stop the mining traffic for
the public, not the public for the mining traffic. Two flaggers will be located near the crossings for
the purposes of notifying the drivers (via radios) of oncoming traffic. Al mine trucks have radios
and they are on the same channels as the flaggers for constant real time communication.
Periodically traffic along the SR will need to be stopped for the purposes of street cleaning, but it
is not the intent of the mine to stop traffic for haul trucks. Some traffic may be slowed during
actual crossing. This will be subject to NDOT’s final plan approval, Flaggers will be trained to
ensure during morning and afternoon workplace drive times that trucks may be held longer than
usual.

Mine traffic crossings may take place 24 hours a day, seven days a week with exception for local
events and holidays. It will take mine trucks approximately 7-8 seconds to complete a single
crossing. The Company does not foresee more than a maximum of 200 round trip crossing events
in a 24 hour period. This represents the maximum expected traffic, with average traffic being half
of the maximum. In a 24 hour period this actually only consumes just over 2.2% of a day. Any
interruption to traffic shall be minimal as traffic on SR 342 is intermittent at best. This means even
though on average there would be a truck every 5 minutes, sometimes multiple trucks will cross
after waiting for the public to clear. Some of the expected crossing will be performed during
twilight or night time hours. NDOT approved lighting towers will be stationed and provided on
either side of the crossings during working hours.” The lights (an example is attached) will be
mobile and are similar to the lighting that CMI currently uses for operations and when observing
Dark Sky’s ordinance in the lighting direction. The proposed lighting will only be in use at the
crossing when operations are performing crossings. Once installed the lighting will be checked to
insure that no vehicles along SR 342 are being “blinded” by the lights. When the crossing is not in
use there will be provisions made to keep the public safe and out of the mining areas.

Page 14 of 16




2015-001 - CML Operating Plan Modification (SR 342 crossing) Planning Dept. 775.847.1144
A security gate will be installed on the haul truck approaches (east and west) which will prevent
the public from entering any unsafe locations, It will consist of a cable gate that is strung between
two steel posts. This cable will contain warning signs in an effort to deter anyone not part of the
Company’s operations to stay out. In addition to the gates, the Company would like to provide a
location available to the public to pull out and observe the carth moving activities. The proposed
location would be near the south end of the bypass along the East side of the SR. It would be
graded with Type II gravel for safe travel and would be kept a safe distance from the crossing and
operations. The Company would like to reserve the right to remove this should it pose a hazard to
the public or operations. Please see attached map illustrating the proposed location.

With mining equipment entering and leaving the State Route, mud, dust and other debris may get
deposited on the road surface. In an effort to mitigate some of this, the Company will install and
maintain as part of normal operations a series of track off stations. The stations will consist of a
coarse clean rock for at least 100° prior to the asphalt, for the purposes of removing any material
from the equipment tires prior to them entering the paved crossing. The Company is providing a
skid steer mounted street sweeper (example attached). This machinery will be incorporated into
operations for the purposes of keeping the SR clean, especially during periods of inclement
weather. Weather can cause slippery or low visibility conditions including but not limited to fog,
ice, sleet, and snow on SR 342, Should any of these conditions occur no material will be hauled
across SR 342. The trucks will traverse the crossing without turning to minimize any potential
load shifts. Should spillage occur from a truck onto SR 342, the flaggers will stop traffic and
effect cleanup. Appropriate equipment located in the immediate area will be dispatched to remove
the rock or debris as needed.

In closing, the Company appreciates the support of the community and county during
implementation of the at-grade crossing in accordance with the conditions of the Company’s
current SUP. It positions us for a most environmentally friendly clean up of the dumps, and
potentially preserve the possibility of not rerouting SR 342.

| Proposed lighting along SR 342

Page 15 0f 16




S
e
itk

i

H

e e
e 3
- o i

Planning Dept. 775.847.1144

£k

Street Cleaning Tractor

Page 16 of 16




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: I - =15 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval
2. Recommended motion; Approval
3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normaily
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting, A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to

Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: None

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by: /4
x__ Departme

————

@W Mehger

9. Board action:
[ Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[

[] Denied ] Continued

Department Name: Community Development

Other agency review:

Agenda Item No, |4




Storep County @ammunity Bevelopnent
Business

P O Box 526 « Virginia City NV 89440 » (775) 84?-09:66 + Fax (775) 847-0935 » buslic@storeycounty.org

| Litenging

To:

Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office January 12, 2015
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Please add the following item(s) to the January 20, 2015, COMMISSIONERS Agenda:

Storey County Building Department has inspected and found that the following businesses meet code
requirements necessary to operate in the county:

LICENSING BOARD
SECOND READINGS

FRErEAEEPAR

€C:

ROSENDIN ELECTRIC, INC. - Contractor / 880 Mabury Road ~ San Jose, CA (electrical contractor)
PANDA RESTAURANT GROUP — General / 745 Sparks Blvd ~ Sparks (caterer)

PEED EQUIPMENT CO - Contractor / 1480 Nandina Avenue ~ Perris, CA (heavy equipment)
SCHUFF STEEL COMPANY - Contractor / 1841 West Buchanan ~ Phoenix, AZ (steel erector)
QUALITY CONTROL SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 61 Continental Drive ~ Reno (hvac contractor)
SURFACE PREP & MAINTENANCE - Contractor / 240 Linden Street ~ Reno (asphalt contractor)
STERLING CRANE, LLC - Contractor / 2211 5" Street ~ Elko (heavy lift services)
ANNING-JOHNSON CO - Contractor / 13250 Temple Avenue ~ City of Industry, CA (metal deck install)
SUNVELOPE SOLAR, INC. - Contractor / 96 Glen Carran Cir ~ Sparks (solar contractor)

SAFWAY SERVICES, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 1991 ~ Milwaukee, W1 (scaffolding equip)
ANSBERRY SIGNCRAFT — General / 10865 Osage Road ~ Reno (signage manufacturer)

HARRIS INDUSTRIAL GASES — General / 236 East Sydney (welding equip supply) TRI

Inspection Required

Shannon Gardner, Building Dept. Gary Hames, Fire Dept. Sheriff’s Office
Austin Osborne, Planning Dept. Patty Blakely, Fire Dept.
Dean Haymore, Economic Dev. Assessor’s Office




